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999 Rush Creek Place
Novato, Galifornia
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ch rged for copies D strict facilities and meetings com plv with the Americans with Disabiliti ES Act. tf Special

accom mod ation s are needed p lease con tact the D strict Secreta ry AS soon AS possible, but at east two days prior to

the

Est.
Time Item Subiect

6:00 p.m. CALL TO ORDER

1 . APPROVE MI/NUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING, January 15,2019

2. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

3. OPEN TIME: (Ptease observe a three'minute time limit)

This section of the agenda is provided so that the public may express comments on any issues not

listed on the agenda i-hat are oi interest to the public and within the jurisdiction of the North Marin Water

District. Whei comments are made about matters not on the agenda, Board members can ask

questions for clarification, respond to statements or questions from members of the public, refer a

matter to staff, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. The public may also

express comments on agenda items at the time of Board consideration'

4. STAFF4DIRECTORSREPORTS

5. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT

CONSEATT CALENDAR

The General Manager has reviewed the following items. To his knowledge, there is no opposition to

the action. The items can be acted on in one consolidated motion as recommended or may be

removed from the Consent Calendar and separately considered at the request of any person.

Consent- Approve: Proposed FY19l2O Budget Review Schedule

Consenf - Approve: Proposed FY 19120 Rate Hearing Schedule

Consent-Approve: Amend Consulting Services Agreement - Cinquini & Passarino

Consent-Approve: General Services Agreement - Assoc. Right of Way Services, lnc.

ACTION CALENDAR

Approve: On-Call Construction and Repair Services Contractswith Team Ghilottiand Ghilotti

Construction

Approve: Consulting Services Agreement with SRT Consultants (Stafford Lake Watershed

Sanitary SurveY)

Approve:Amend Consulting Engineering Services Agreement -Michael Baker lnternational

Approve: Marin Country Club Recycled Water Service Agreement
(Amendment No. 2, Subordination Agreement, Deed of Trust) Resolution

All times are approximate and for reference only.

The Board of Directors may consider an item at a different time than set forth herein.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11

12
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(Continued)
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19

20

21

7:45 p.m. 23

22

INFORMATION ITEMS

Point Reyes System - Disinfection Byproduct Operational Evaluation

Revised Report - Taste and Odor Strategy for Stafford Lake Treatment Plant

Second Quarter FY 18119 - Water Quality Repoft

TAC Meeting - January 7,2019

Potter Valley Project Relicensing Update - PG&E License Application Withdrawal and

Bankruptcy Filing

Project Update - PRE Tank 4A Replacement

NBWA Meeting - FebruarY 1,2019

MISCELLANEOUS
Disbursements - Dated January 17 ,2019
Disbursements - Dated January 24,2019
Disbursements - Dated January 31 ,2019
lnformation - FY 19 2ND Quarter Labor Cost Report
lncrease in Directors' Compensation
Self-lnsured Workers'Comp -2nd Quarler Status Report
Customer Letter -22Portola, Point Reyes Station

News Articles:
County honing Stafford Lake plan - NOVATO
Reservoirs in'good shape'- THE COUNTY
City undergoing some changes in administration - NOVATO
pCAf haltê process to sell Potter Valley Project - MARIN WATER SUPPLIES
Gavin Newsom budget calls for drinking water tax to help poor communities

CLOSED SESSTON; Conference with Labor Negotiators Pursuant to California Government

Code Section 54957.6 (Joe Wiley, Christopher Boucher, and Drew Mclntyre) - Unrepresented

Employees (Auditor-Controller, Chief Engineer, and District/Administrative Secretary)

ADJOURNMENT
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Item #1

DRAFT
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

January 15,2019

CALL TO ORDER

President Baker called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of North Marin Water

District to order at 6:00 p.m. at the District Headquarters and the agenda was accepted as

presented. Present were Directors Jack Baker, Rick Fraites, Michael Joly, James Grossi, and

Stephen Petterle. Also present were General Manager Drew Mclntyre, District Secretary Terrie

Kehoe, Auditor-Controller Julie Blue and Chief Engineer Rocky Vogler.

District employees, Robert Clark (Operations/Maintenance Superintendent), TonyArendell

(Construction/Maintenance Superintendent), Jeff Corda (Sr. Water Distribution and TP

Operator/Employee Association Chair), Kent LeBrun (Maintenance Supervisor) and Stacie

Goodpaster (Senior Chemist) were in the audience.

Also in the audience were Novato residents Greg Larsen and Margarita Ajello.

MINUTES

On motion of Director Joly, seconded by Director Petterle the Board approved the minutes

from the January 8,2019 special meeting as presented by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

GEN ERAL MANAG ER'S REPORT

Oceana Marin HOA Meeting

Mr. Mclntyre informed the Board that he attended the winter Oceana Marin HOA meeting.

There were about 50 homeowners in attendance. Mr. Mclntyre stated he reviewed the financial

status through FY18 and included an update on CIP projects and grant reimbursementfor2OlT

winter storm repairs. He also stated that a flyer was handed out to remind homeowners not to flush

wipes down the toilet. Director Baker asked if people from the Dillon Beach Village came down to

the Oceana Marin HOA meetings. Mr. Mclntyre replied not to his knowledge.

Dillon Beach Villase
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Mr. Mclntyre also informed the Board that he will be attending the County's Dillon Beach

Village Water Resource Workshop No. 2 at 6 p.m. on Tuesday, January 29th.

Meetinqs

Mr. Mclntyre informed the Board that hewill have a WAC Water Supply Coordination Council

meeting on January 23'd, and the next NBWRA meeting is on January 28th and the next WAÇ

meeting is on February 4th.

OPEN TIME

President Baker asked if anyone in the audience wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda. During Open Time, Jeff Corda (Sr. Water Dist. & TP Operator) addressed the Board as

Chair of the Employee Association. Mr. Corda expressed his appreciation to the Board and

Management for listening to the employees. Mr. Corda felt that everyone had an open mind

throughout the process and they have reached a fair agreement that will help retain employees and

make the District more competitive when hiring for new positions.

STAF F/DI RECIORS REPORTS

President Baker asked if staff or Directors wished to bring up an item not on the agenda and

the following were discussed.

Mr. Arendell announced the beginning of our annual flushing program which staded on

January 14th. He added that the program has been posted on our website and the front office will

continue to get updates on which areas of Novato staff is flushing. Mr. Arendell noted that the

flushing program in West Marin will begin in February and will be performed by the Operations

Deparlment. Director Joly wanted to know when all flushing will be completed, and Mr. Arendell

replied in two to three months. Director Baker asked if the rainy weather slows down the flushing

program. Mr. Arendell responded that it is not a problem; staff can flush rain or shine.

Ms. Kehoe announced that each of the Directors have been given a packet to update their

Form 700 which is due on April 2nd. She also noted a copy of last years completed form was

included for reference.

Mr. Clark gave a brief weather update, stating Marin County had 2-3 inches of rain from our

last storm per the National Weather Service. He noted we are in good shape and ready in the event

of heavy rain and winds. Director Grossi wanted to know if the County of Marin rain gauges are

online now and Mr. Clark replied that they are but the National Oceanic and Atmospheric

Administration river gage data is not.

MO NTH LY PROGRESS REPORT

NMWD Draft Minutes 2of7 January 15,2019
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Mr. Mclntyre reviewed the Monthly Progress Report for December. He reported that water

production in Novato was up 4o/o from December one year ago and down 2o/o fiscal year to date. ln

West Marin, water production is up 14% from December one year ago and up 16% fiscal year to

date. Recycled Water production is up 85% from one year ago and up 27o/o fiscal year to date. He

stated that Stafford Lake holds 1240 AF and is at 30% of capacity. Mr. Mclntyre informed the Board

that Oceana Marin wastewater discharge continues in December and freeboard is excellent. He

added that, under Safety/Liability, we currently have 92 days without a lost time injury. On the

Summary of Complaints and Service Orders, the Board was apprised that overall the number of

complaints/service orders are up 24o/o fiscal year to date. Mr. Mclntyre reiterated the increase

continues to be a reflection of the new AMI meter implementation awareness. Additionally, Mr.

Mclntyre added that the number of questionnaires mailed out total 137, with 58 returned and over

90% of those received were positive comments. Ms. Blue reported on the December 2018

lnvestments, where the District's porlfolio holds $17.9M earning a 1 .98% rate of return. She noted

the LAIF rate is trending a little higher than the portfolio rate at this time.

COA'SENT CALENDAR

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Fraites the Board approved a

time extension amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement with Chris DeGabriele by the

following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

ACTION CALENDAR

APPROVE: CONSULTING ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT - STAFFORD WATER

TREATMENT PLANT PROCESS EFFICIENCY STUDY

Mr. Clark explained the efficiency study is needed to ensure that Stafford Treatment Plant

operates at optimum efficiency. He advised the Board that the main focus of the Study is evaluate

feasible options to recapture as much process water as possible so that we can run the plant in the

winter and not exceed the 40,000 gallon per day discharge limit. Mr. Clark expressed his

confidence in West Yost and felt that they are well qualified to perform the work. Director Joly

stated that if the point of the study is to reduce the amount of waste stream discharge to Novato

Sanitary District, and in doing so recapture the water, then the study should pay for itself. Director
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Joly inquired as to the duration of the study and Mr. Clark replied that it should be completed this

fiscal year. Director Grossi wanted to know the cost of the treated Stafford Lake water versus the

water purchases from Sonoma County WaterAgency. Ms. Blue stated that it fluctuates throughout

the year. On the motion of Director Joly, and seconded by Director Grossi the Board approved

authorizing the General Manager to enter into a Consulting Engineering Services Agreement with

West Yost for the Stafford Water Treatment Plant Process Efficiency Study by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

APPROVE: SALARY SCHEDULES AND S MEMO RA N DUM O F U N D ERSTAN DI NG

WITH NMWD EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATION (2018.20231

On the motion of Director Grossi, and seconded by Director Petterle the Board approved the

Salary Schedules and Successor Memorandum of Understanding with NMWD Employee

Association (2018-2013) by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Director Grossi left the meeting at 7:00 p.m.

INFORMATION ITEMS

AMI OPT.OUT OPTIONS

Ms. Blue introduced Greg Larsen and Margarita Ajello, two Novato residents living at 26

Aronia Lane who expressed their concerns regarding health issues associated with the AMI meters.

Mr. Larsen described their symptoms since the AMI meters were installed in August. He stated that

his partner, Margarita Ajello started hearing a very loud Morse code noise in her right ear making it

very difficult to sleep, and around the same time he staded feeling a static electricity sensation on

his skin which also makes it difficult to sleep. They asked the neighbors adjacent to them if they

were experiencing anything and they were not, and so then they began investigating to see what

recently changed that could be causing their discomfort. Director Baker asked if the noise is

external. Mr. Larsen stated that the cause is not tinnitus in the ears but from the outside. Mr.

NMWD Draft Minutes 4of7 January 15,2019
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Larsen described his research findings, and by use of an EMF meter he found that he could dampen

the effects by putting several layers of aluminum over the meters. Mr. Larsen also commented that

through all this investigative process the staff have all been very helpful and supportive. Director

Joly ask Mr. Larsen if he had a policy suggestion. He replied that he believes the OptOut Policy

should be free. Mr. Mclntyre replied that they did not. A general discussion ensued regarding this

issue. Director Joly empathized with Mr. Larsen and Ms. Ajello and thanked them for coming to the

Board and was sorry to hear they were experiencing discomfort. Director Grossi inquired if staff

has heard if there is anyone else experiencing these problems in the industry, and Mr. Clark replied

no. Director Joly asked if we could just change out the meter. Ms. Blue explained that these meters

are being billed to the HOA and staff has not yet scheduled a meeting with them to discuss possible

opt-out options. Director Baker asked if they believe their symptoms are from the water meters, and

Mr. Larsen stated that their symptoms did not occur until around the time the AMI meters were

installed. Director Fraites asked if any there have been any other customers that have had similar

complaint and Ms. Blue replied no. Director Joly again thanked Mr. Larsen and Ms. Ajello from

coming out, and asked them to give staff some time to investigate this issue and would also like to

hear from the HOA before getting back to them.

ANNUAL REPORT ON B OARD COMPENSATION

Ms. Blue reported that the Annual Report on Board Compensation is a new requirement

aimed to provide transparency. She advised the Board that in order to comply with the requirements

of Assembly Bill 2040 and Assembly Bill 1234, Íhe District prepares a yearly report of the annual

compensation and expense reimbursements paid to each board member. AB 2040 now requires

special districts to annually report this information and post it on their website. AB 1234 requires

special districts to diselose the reimbursements made to its elected officials. Ms. Blue noted that

this item will be reported under the miscellaneous category in future agendas.

AMI PROGRESS REPORT

Mr. Clark updated the Board on the Advanced Meter lnfrastructure (AMl) project progress.

With the final material order delayed, the project is now expected to run through February 2019 for

all of the contracted service conversions. He stated we have 1700 meters left to convert to AMI and

that District staff will need to install 350 of these AMI meters due to leaks and stuck meter stops.

Director Baker asked if this meant only 1700 total meters were left in Novato. Mr. Clark responded

that there are 1700left in this project; which does not include another estimated 75 that are three

inchmetersorlarger. DirectorJolyaskedifwearewithinbudget. Ms.Bluerespondedthatweneed

to do one last order and then we can do a reconciliation, but should be close to budget. Director
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1 Joly also wanted to know the number of people who have chosen to opt out. Ms. Blue stated

2 around 47, which is very low since the original estimate was 200. Mr. Clark added that we continue

3 to get good data with this program and we can detect leaks immediately with the help of the AMI

4 meters. He also noted that in the next four weeks an audit will be done with our Core Billing system

5 software to see how it matches up with the AMI ln-sight program software Director Baker requested

6 a comprehensive closeout report at the end of the AMI project.
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PRE TANK 4A REPLACEMENT

Mr. Vogler gave an update to the Board on the PRE Tank 4A Replacement Project. He

reported that due to a delay caused by the County of Marin submitting paperwork to the Coastal

Commission, the appeal deadline has been extended to January 29. District staff contacted both

the Coastal Commission and the County of Marin to raise awareness of the issue and assist with

coordination. Mr. Vogler stated that although it is possible that a further appeal may be filed with the

Coastal Commission, District staff intends to move forward with the project as currently scheduled.

Director Joly wanted to know if the extension of the 120 extra days imperils safety of our customers.

Mr. Vogler stated that it will delay building of the new tank and the PRE road maintenance

association will need to wait longer to perform repair. Director Joly asked if we have reached out to

those who have expressed an interest in the project. Mr. Vogler responded yes. Director Baker

asked a question about who will be paying for future Drakes View paving costs. Mr. Vogler stated

that we will photograph the road to document its current condition and will only be responsible for

repairs caused by our construction project. Director Baker thanked Mr. Vogler for his perseverance

on this issue.

NBWA UPDATE _ JANUARY 1 1- 2019

Director Fraites gave an update on the new water-use efficiency legislation that Gov. Brown

recently passed. Mr. Mclntyre reminded the Board that NMWD, with Ryan Grisso's oversight, is

participating in the state's 2nd pilot program which will give us a better understanding early on of the

requirements. A general discussion ensued. Director Fraites also mentioned that NBWA is working

on a new Strategic Plan and that the organization wants to expand their influence in Northern

California and have recently had two additional agencies join.

MISCELLAA/EOUS

The Board received the following miscellaneous items: Disbursements - January 10, 2019,

National Weather Service Precipitation Probability Map - January 2019 One Month Outlook,

Damage to 18-inch Zone 1 Steel Water Main at San Marin Drive and Novato Blvd., Russian River

NMWD Draft Minutes 6 o'17 January 15,2019
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Watershed Map and Current Lake Mendocino and Lake Sonoma Storage Graphs, Department of

Water Resources Letter - Novato Creek Dam, No. 88 - New lnundation Map Requirement for

Spillway and Oceana Marin Association Agenda - January 12,2019.

Mr. Mclntyre discussed the recent State letter regarding the need to prepare a new

lnundation Map for Stafford Dam. Mr. Mclntyre stated he is in communication with the firm,

Michael Baker lnternational, to perform the requested additional work and will report back to the

Board at a future meeting.

The Board received the following news articles: How hydropower plant sale could affect

Marin - POTTER VALLEY.

ADJOURNMENT

President Baker adjourned the meeting at7'.24 p.m.

Submitted by

Theresa Kehoe

District Secretary
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MEMORANDUM

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

Reviewed by: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

Prepared by: Nancy Holton and Nancy Williamson, Senior Accountants

Subj: lnformation - FY18/19 December Financial Statement
t:\accountants\financials\stmtfyl 9\md&a'1 21 B.doc

FISCAL YEAR PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET

To:

From

CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY
Actual vs. Budget
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Non-Operating Revenue / (Expense)

other sources l luses¡) 
t lncome / (Loss)

Cash lncrease / (Decrease)

See Page L

($45,192) $1,885,774

January 30, 2019

Dec-í8
Actual
$1,365,768

1,441,861

FYtS/19
Actual YTD

$12,445,654
10,445,764

(114,115\

FYtS/19
Budqet

$22,806,000
21,187,000

(460,000)

FYTD /
Budqet %

55o/o

49o/o

25%
163%

3837%o

0%
190%

30 901

$1 ,1 59,000
(5,326,000)975) 910 786

($66e,16?) $2,?96ø ($4,167,000)

For the first six months of the fiscal year, the District generated a net income of g1 ,885,774 and saw a
net cash increase of $2,796,561. On a seasonally adjusted basis, Operating Revenue came in 2%
under budget and Operating Expense came in 6% under budget. $2,290,587 (29o/o) of the Capital
lmprovement Projects Budget was expended this fiscal year{o-date. At month end the ratio of total
cash to budgeted annual operating expense (sans depreciation) stood at 1o2o/o.

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENTS BY SERVICE AREA
PRESENTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS

NOVATO WATER
Year over Year Gomparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)
lncome / (Loss ) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue
FRC Transfer (to)/from Recycled Water
Caltrans Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions

Dec-18
Actual
$1,235,239

1,333,381
(1,022\

_____aqee,rc4l
20,529

158

$5.22
($4'83)
($o'63)

$o
($550,741)

s2,012
$o

$74,622

FY18/19
Actual YTD

$10,925,254
9,348,541

(47,60e)

$ 1 ,529,1 04

20,529
1,439
$5.89

$74.49
$1.06

$95,800
$1,372,186

$13,346
$245,000
$146,010

FY17t18
Actual YTD

$11,144,482
8,783,678

(77,738\

____$?,28agqg_
20,551

1,485
$5,e2

$111.09
$1.54

$709,200
($7J22,418)

$339
$245,000

$50,401

FY19 vs l8
Up/(Down)

(2o/o)

60/o

(3e%)
(33%)

0%
(3o/o)

(1o/o)

(33%)
(31%)
(86%)

Consumption for the fiscal year{o-date was 3% less than the prior year same period. Total operating
revenue, which includes wheeling and other miscellaneous service charges, decreased 2o/o ($219,228)
from the prior year same period. Total operating expense was 6% ($564,863) more than last year same
period. The Stafford Treatment Plant produced 293 MG this fiscal year{o-date at a cost of $3,2241MG1
versus $2,74511\AG3 from SCWA. The budget for Stafford is 750 MG at a cost of $3,204lMG.

1



Memo - December Financial Statement
January 30, 2019
Page 2 of 3

Staff time (hours) charged to Novato operations was 3% more than last year. Salary and benefit cost
was $2,716,368, which was 42o/o of the $6,514,000 budget for Novato operations.

The fiscal year net income (which includes non-operating items such as interest revenue and expense)
of $1,529,104 compares to a budgeted net income for the year of $902,000 and to a net income of
$2,283,066 for the prior year. $1,865,557 (32o/o) of the Novato Water Capital lmprovement Project
Budget was spent versus $1,842,588 (18%) for the prior year. $95,800 in connection fees have been
collected ($680,000 is budgeted). Connection Fee reserves totaling $1,372,186 were transferred this
fiscal year from the Recycled Water Fund to cover the debt service and working capital requirements
for expansion of the RW distribution system. The Novato Connection Fee Reserve has a net deficit of
$8,217,413 arising from transfers to the RW Fund in advance of Connection Fee receipts. That deficit
will be reimbursed by future Connection Fee revenue. The Novato cash balance decreased $1,800,318
in December, and stood at $11,224,809 at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of
$8,189,000 at fiscal year-end.

NOVATO RECYCLED
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)

Average Commodity Rate i 1,000 gal (net)

Deer lsland Production (MG)

Novato Sanitary Production (MG)

Las Gallinas Production (MG)

Potable Water lnput (MG)

Dec-18
Actual

$58,504
47,782

(23,606)

____@99!r
93

9.4

$5.77
0.0

0.6
1.4

0.1

FY18/19
ActualYTD

$847,055
661,386

(12e,196)

__$56,44_
93

141.6

$5.77
4.0

109.2
15.7

20.0

FY17t18
ActualYTD

$558,656. 407,997
(105,828)

__$44!!l_
53

99.1

$5.48

. 7.0
60.8
24.4

0.8

FY19 vs l8
Up/(Down)

52o/o

620/o

22Yo

26Yo

75To

43o/o

5o/o

(43o/o)

B0o/o

(36%)

2397o/o

141.6 MG was delivered to RW customers in December, 43o/o more than the prior year. Operating
revenue was 52o/o more than last year due to the June 1, 2018 4.5o/o rate increase and the consumption
increase. Total operating expense was $253,389 (620/o) more than the prior year. The recycled water
was produced at a cost of $1,870/MG2 (including potable water consumed) versus 92,74S|MG' from
SCWA. The budgeted production cost of recycled water is $3,255/MG. The District began receiving
recycled water from Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District again at the end of August after a malfunctioñ
associated with their UV disinfection system was repaired.

The fiscal year{o-date net income of $56,474 compares to a budgeted net loss for the year of 910,000
and a net income of $44,831 for the prior year same period. $106,160 (88%) of the Capital
lmprovement Project Budget has been expended this fiscal year{o-date. The Novato Recycled cash
balance stood at $4,665,768 at month end, 93.4M of which amount resides in restricted reserves for
debt service, the Deer lsland Facility Replacement Fund and the Recycled Water Capital Replacement
and Expansion Fund.

l 
staffordproductioncost=TPopexpense($554,134)+sRFloaninterest($12r,092)+plantdepreciation(9269,533)/2g3MGproduced

2 
Recycled Water production cost = purchased water cost ($174,916) + treatment expense ($S,g16) + Deer lsland RW Facility SRF loan

interest ($26,092) + Deer lsland plant depreciation (957,960) / 141 .6 MG produced
t 

SCWR production cost per MG = O&M charge (g2,207) + debt service charge ($173) + Russian River conservat¡on charge ($337) + Russian
River projects charge ($28)

2



Memo - December Financial Statement
January 30, 2019
Page 3 of 3

WEST MARIN WATER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)
Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)
lncome/ (Loss) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue

Dec-18
Actual

$50,965
48,784
26,745

$28,926
782
3.2

$10.55
$36.99

$8.91
$o

FY18/r9
ActualYTD

$546,984
338,007
29 570

FY17t18
ActualYTD

$488,230
375,389

18,466
$131,308

781
37.7

$10.60
$168.13

$3.50
$45,600

FYl9 vs 18

Up/(Down)
12Vo

(10%)
600/o

82o/o

0o/o

7o/o

60/o

81o/o

690/o

(82o/o)

7
40.2

$1 1 .19

$305.05
$5.93

$8,000

Consumption for the fiscal year was 40.2 MG, 7o/o trrotê than the prior year. Operating revenue of
$546,984 was $58,754 (12%) more than last year.

Operating expenditures were $37,382 (10o/o) less than the previous year same period. The fiscal year
net income of $238,548 compares to a budgeted annual net income of 9183,000 and to a net income of
$131,308 forthe prior year same period. $52,310 (4o/o) of the Capital lmprovement project Budget was
expended this fiscal year{o-date, and $8,000 in connection fees were collected ($23,0öO is OuOgeted).
The West Marin Water cash balance increased $26,986 in December and stood at$1,742,8g2 at month
end, compared to a budgeted projection of $424,000 at June 30, 2019.

OCEANA MARIN SEWER
Year over Year Gomparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)
Active Accounts
Monthly Sewer Service Charge
lncome / (Loss) / Active Account
Connection Fee Revenue

Dec-18
Actual

$21,060
11,914
28 784

____$37.939_
234
$eo

$162.09
$o

FYrS/19
ActualYTD

$126,360
97,831
33,1 20

$61,649
234
$eo

$263.46
$0

FY17t18
ActualYTD

$119,618
97,991
32,528

$54,1 56

232

FYl9 vs 18
Up/(Down)

60/0

(0%)
2o/o

14o/o

1o/o

5o/o$86
$233.43

Operating revenue of $126,360 was 6% more than the previous year due to the So/o rate increase
effective July 1 , 2018. Operating expenditures were about the same as the previous year. The f¡scal
year net income of $61,649 compares to a budgeted annual income of $9s,000 and to a net income of
$54,156 for the pr¡or year. 47o/o of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget has been expended this
fiscal year-to-date.

No connection fees have been collected ($30,000 is budgeted). The Oceana Marin cash balance
increased $153,012 in December and stood at $269,520 at month end, compared to a budgeted
projection of $236,000 at June 30, 2019.

$0

3



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTR¡CT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 3I, 2O''8

NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

ASSETS
Gash & lnvestments
U n restricted/U ndesignated Cash
Restricted Cash (ruote r)
Connection Fee Fund
Revenue Bond Redemption Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
AMI Project Loan Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
Tax Receipts Held in Marin Co Treasury
STP SRF Reserve-Marin Co Treasury
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Designated Cash lttote z¡

Liability Contingency Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

TotalGash
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

Market Value of Cash & lnvestments

Current Assets
Net Receivables - Consumers
Accrued Water Sales
Accounts Receivable-Other
Prepaid Expense
Reimbursable Small Jobs
lnterest Receivable
Inventories
Deposits Receivable

TOTAL

$1,623,152

92,991
30,000

466,278
12,052

1,431,887
I,198,480

546
I,013,000

614,299
255,373

1,241,170
551 ,1 88

4,123,565
2,500,000
2,773,114

17,927,095
(24,106)

17,902,988

$0

0
0

30,545
12,052

0
0
0

013,000
0

0

1,142,285
518,306

4,123,565
2,500,000
1,909,162

11,248,915
(24,106)

11,224,809

0
0
0

0
1,431,887
1 ,198,480

0
0

614,299
255,373

0
9,1 89

0
0

618,952
4,665,768

0
4,665,768

$135,770
97,032

129,733
0
0

1,940
0
0

92,991
30,000

435,733
0
0
0

536
0
0
0

98,885
17,431

0
0

180,000

6125,423
48,092

0
0

416
0
0
0

0
6,262

0

0
65,000

($12,853)
0

186,679
2,113
3,235

0
0
0

$537,589 $887,316 $198,247

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1

1

À

1,742,892
0

269,520
0

1,742,892 269,520

$1,232,645
1,578,546

378,147
413,993

97,250
58,723

486,711
677 677

$984,305
1,43;3,422

61,735
411,881
93,598
56,783

486,711

711 4o2173 79,$Total Current Assets 94,278,692 $3,561, r 12 $364,475

t:\aøuntants\financials\stmtÍxffintyu.xls1/30/2019 5:47 PN,



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 3I, 2018

Loans Receivable
Employee Loans (Note 3)

Due From Other Funds (Note 1o)

Other Long Term Receivables 1ruote +¡

Loans Receivable

Propertv and Plant
Land & Land Rights
Dam, Lake, & Source Facilities
Treatment Facilities
Storage Facilities
Transmission Facilities (16"+¡
Distribution and Pumping Facilities
Sewer Mains, Pumps, & Laterals

Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (Note s)

Net Property and Plant

Buildings and Equipment (¡lote o)

Buildings
Office Equipment
Laboratory Equipment
Trucks & AutomobÍles
Construction Equipment
Tools, Shop Equipment
Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (ruote s¡

Net Buildings and Equipment

Construction In Proqress

TOTAL

$714,200
0

2,291,733
$3,005,933

$1,473,091
5,596,066

21,184,413
23,077,919
29,405,627
84,803,636

1,203,030

$166,743,783
(55.092.280)

$1 11,651,503

NOVATO
WATER

$714,200
0

0

$r,368,872
5,103,654

17,607,109
20,453,383
29,283,304
61,683,537

0

$135,499,858
(46,713,796)
$88,786,062

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

$103,41 I
492,412
319,913

2,105,523
122,324

5,818,882
0

$8,962,465
(3,833,276)

0

$0

$o
496,119

$496,1 I 9
$5,625,308

0
0

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$808
0

591,1 93
0
0

0
1 203 030

$1,795,032
(1,025,917)

$0
0

$0
401 826
01,826

ç1,170,942
0
0

$o $0
0
0

$0
0
0

$1,902,893
698,725
252,324

1,302,299
855,144
222,390

$5,233,775
(4,137,119)
$1,096,656

$1,902,993
698,725
252,324

1,302,299
855,144
222,390

$5,233,775
(4,137,119)

$1,096,656

$545,228
7,447,768

$7,992,996
ç97,875,714

3,538,326
0

0
291 733

$0
0

2,666,198
519,014

0
17 ,301,217

0

$20,486,428
(3,519,291)

$16,967,137

$0
l5 729 441

915,729,441
$32,696,578

0
0

9714,200 $2,291,733 $o

(¡ $5,129,189 $769,115

$0
0
0
0

0

0

$0

$0
0
0
0
0
0

$0

$0
0
0
0
0
0

$0
0

$0

Developer
District

Total Construction in Progress
Net Utility Plant

Deferred Outflow of Resources-GAsB68
Deferred Outflow of Resources-GASBZS

TOTAL ASSETS

ç545,228
24,075,154

$24,620,383
s137,368,542

3,538,326
0

$116,914,16' $00,018,555 $7,542,130 $1,619,636$166,094,482

t:\accountants\fi nancials\stmtf}¡s\fi nfys.xlsl/30/201 I 5:47 P¡.¡l



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 3I, 2018

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Trade Accounts Payable
Reimbursement Prog. Unclaimed Funds
Bond Debt Principal Payable-Current
Loan Debt Principal Payable-Current
Bank of Marin Principal Payable-Current
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan-Current
Bond/Loan Debt lnterest Payable-Current
Accrued lnterest Payable-SRF Loan
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Payabte
DepositslPerformance Bonds
Unemployment lnsurance Reserve (Note B)

Workers' Comp Future Claims Payable
Payroll Benefits (Note e)

Due To Other Funds (Note 1o)

Deferred Revenue
Total Current Liabilities

Restricted Liabilities
Construction Advances

Total Restricted Liabilities
Term Liablilities Note

Bonds utstanding - PR6 (FmHA)
Bonds Outstanding - PREI (FmHA)
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan Payable
STP Rehab SRF Loan
RWF SRF Loan
RWS North/South Expansion SRF Loan
RWS Central Expansion SRF Loan
Bank of Marin Loan
Net Pensbn Liability @6t30t18
TotalOPEB Liability
Retiree Health Benefits Payable (Note 2)

Total Long Term Liabilities
Deferred Inflow of Resources-GASB 68
Deferred lnflow of Resources-GASB 75

TOTAL LIABILITIES

$0
0

4,360,000
8,829,777

0
0
0

4,686,070
12,774,724
4,123,565

0

$34,774,136
727,627
158,61 1

$0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
3,000

0
1,159

10,757
0

126,360
$138,240 6141,276

$1,030 $700
$1,030 $700

$24,000
13,000

0
0
0
0
0

687,820
0
0
0

$911,028
30,475
24,000

1,615,470
360,937
240,000

325
62,682
41,247

395,546
20,107
89, I 78

722,236
0

126,360

$805,467
19,375

0
818,739
314,698
240,000

0
987

41,247
367, I 35
20,107
82,490

660,1 78
0

0

0
0

796,732
0
0
0

61,695
0
0
0

2,497
23,168

0

0

$0
I 1,r00
24,000

0
46,238

0
325

0
0

25,411
0

3,032
28,133

0
0

05,56$1

O')

$4,639,592

$280,898
$280,898

$24,000
13,000

4,360,000
8,829,777
1,968,463
6,895,455
6,705,816
5,373,890

12,774,724
4,123,565

0
$51,068,689

727,627
158,611

$3,370,422

$269,168
$269,168

$989,654

$10 000
$10,000

$0
0
0
0

1,968,463
6,895,455
6,705,816

0
0
0
0

$r 5,569,733
0
0

$0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0

$724,820
0
0

$864,089 $141,976

$0
0
0

$56,87 17 $39,299,964 $16,569,387

t:\amuntants\f nancials\stmtffs$nryÃ.xls1 130/2019 5:47 pM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 3I, 2OI8

Net Assets
in GapitalAssetf

Contributions in Aid of Construction
Grants in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

Total lnvestment
Restricted Reserves
Connection Fee Fund
AMI Project Reserve Fund
Revenue Bond Redemption Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Designated Reserves
Liability Contingency Fund
Maíntenance Accrual Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Operating Reserve Fund
Earned Surplus - Prior Yrs
Net lncome/(Loss)
Transfer (To)iFrom Reserves (see berow)

Total Restricted & Designated
TOTAL NET POSITION

Transfer Reserves

AMI Project Fund
Liability Reserve
Maintenance Reserve
RWF Replacement Fund
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
(Gain)/Loss Self-lnsured WC Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

TOTAL

$84,345,503
13,197,035
38,711.012

$r36,253,550

NOVATO
WATER

$75,727,271
407,945

26,179,560
8102,314,777

(s8,217,413)
12,052

0
30,545

0
0
0
0

1,142,285
2,500,000

435,815
2,759,513
5,481,000

(27,197,195)
1,529,104

(3,176,286)
($24,700,579)
$77,614,197

(15,280)
1,512,762

(1,142,285)
r,915,681

0
38,863
(e,905)
4,877

(5,481,000)

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$5,800,128
9,961,904

10,490,518

1,431,887
1,198,480

614,299
255,373

0
0

6,692
0

161,000
(6,432,441)

56,474
(e5,146)

($2,803,383)
$23,449,167

0
0
0
0

(78,e53)
0

(1e4)
0

(16,000)

WEST MARIN
WATER

$2,138,348
2,827,187

373 284

$92,991
0

30,000
435,733

0
0
0
0

98,885
0

14,399
0

180,000
(657,428)
238,548
(93,e05)

$339,222
$6,678,041

(1,562)
0

(e8,885)
0
0
0

(33e)
12,880
(6,000)

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$679,755
0

0
0

5,1 03
0

65,000
171,580
6l,649

878
130,255

$1,477,659

0
0
0
0
0
0

(122)
0

667 649
$26,252,550 $6,338,8r9 1,347,404

1

($8,298,376)
12,052
30,000

466,278
1,431,887
1 , r 98,480

614,299
255,373

73,954)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1($$0
0
0
0

{
1,241,170
2,500,000

462,009
2,759,513
5,887,000

(34,115,484)
1,885,774

(3,364,459)
($27,034,485)
$109,219,065

(16,841)
1,512,762

(1,241,17O)
1,915,681

(78,s53)
38,863

(10,559)
17.758

1 000
$878($95'146) ($e3,905)Total Transfer ($3,364,459) _l$3,116,æg_

t:\accountants\financ¡als\stmt¡Dodf¡nfyÃ.xls1 l3Ot2O1g 5:47 pM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTR¡CT
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS STATEMENT . ALL SERVICE AREAS COMBINED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2OI8

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charge
Sewer Service Charge
Wheeling & Misc Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPEN DITU RES
Source of Supply
Pumping
Operations
Water Treatment
Sewer Service
Transmission & Distribution
Consumer Accounting
Water Conservation
General & Administrative
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITU RES

NET OPERATTNG TNCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATINc REVENUË(EXPENSE)
Tax Proceeds
lnterest Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue
Bond & Loan lnterest Expense
Miscellaneous Expense

TOTAL NON-OP REVENUE(EXPENSE)

ER SOURC
reciation Expense

Connection Fees
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Marin County Club Loan Principal Pmts
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
StoneTree RWF Loan Principal
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Capital Equipment Expenditures
Capital I mprovement Projects
Bond & Loan Principal Payments
Change in Working Capital

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES(USES)

$12,445,654 $22,806,000

$9,742,503
2,395,526

126,360
181,265

$17,411,000
4,796,000

252,OO0
347,000

$9,730,984
2,280,784

I 1 9,318

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

YTD/
Budget %

560/o

50o/o

50o/o

52%
55%

4S%
65%
79o/o

37o/o

460/o

47o/o

38o/o

41o/o

60%
49o/o

49o/o

124o/o

52o/o

106%
85o/o

54o/o

9o/o

25o/o

1630/o

49o/o

14o/o

0%

Prior YTD
Actual

179 900

$3,483,361
256,001
548,249
962,410
65,525

1,553,700
245,605
159,783

1,448,871
1.722.260

$7,044,000
394,000
697,000

2,591,000
143,000

3,323,000
648,000
390,000

2,417,000

$12,310,986

$2,810,040
236,115
453,081

1,349,367
64,660

1,531,771
319,032
143,985

1,035,564
721,438

$9,665,054

$2,645,933

$56,791
87,392
87,021

(362,101)

132,572)

3. 540,000
$10,445,764

$1,999,889

$59,590
168,620
116,973

(457,501)
(1,7e6)

$21 ,1 87,000

$1,619,000

$114,000
159,000
137,000

(850,000)
(20,000)

($114,115) ($460,ooo)

N Er I NcoME( Loss) --*-$îFB57A *:$i750o0-d-

OF FU DS

$3,528,000
733,000

0
349,000

0
1,000

222,000
245,000

(355,000)
(7,770,000)
(2,279,O00)

0

$2,513,361

81,722,260
103,800

2,033,836
1,688

429,897
13,346

110,094
245,000
(67,867)

(2,290,587)
(e56,3e5)
(434,285',)

1335%
50o/o

100%
19o/o

29%
42o/o

$1,721,438
754,800

2,033,836
1 ,1 83,099

0
735

71,515
245,000

0
(2,522,036)

(27e,331)
(653,271)

$910,786 ($5,326,000)

cAS H t Nc REAS E(DECRE,ASE) ---8706,5-6f --TS4-¡6mõõI

$2,555,785

--Tlõdoø

B
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT AND CASH FLOW BY SERVICE AREA

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 3I, 2018

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT

Operating Revenue

Operating Expense
oPERAT|NG TNCOME(LOSS)
Non-Operating Revenue/(Expense)

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
SCWA Prop 84 Water Conserv Grant
RW Central Area Expansion Grant
Developer ln-Kind Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contributions
MMWD Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
CHANGE IN NET POSIT¡ON

Net Position June 30, 2018
Net Position December 31, 2018

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Net lncome/(Loss)
Add back Depreciation
Cash Generated From Operatione

Other Sources of Funds
Fee Revenue

Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Capital Assets Acquisition
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Marin Country Club & Stone Tree Loan Principal Pmts

Principal Paid on Debt
Consumer Receivables Decr (lncr)
Construction Advances (Decr) lncr
Other Assets Decr (lncr)
Other Liabilities (Decr) lncr
Trade Accounts Payable (Decr) lncr
Connection Fee Transfer
lnterdistrict Loan Due To (From)
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Net Cash Provided (Used)

MV Cash & lnvestments June 30, 2018
MV Cash & lnvestments Dec 31,2018

$1,885,774 $1,529,104 $56,474 $238,548 $61,649

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$12,445,654

10 445 764
$1,999,889

(114,115\

$10,925,254

9,348,541

$847,055 $546,984

338,007

$126,360

97,831661 386
$1,576,713

(47,609)
$185,670
(1 29, I e6)

$208,978
29,570

$28,529
33,1 20

$1,688
0

146,010
13,346

245,000
103,800

0

$1,688
0

146,010
13,346

245,000
95,800

1.372j86

$o
0
0
0
0

000
0

I
(1 .372.1 86)

$o
0

0
0
0
0
0

$o
0
0
0
0
0

$509,843

$2,395,618
106,823,448

$1,874,03Ó

$3,403,134
74,211,064

($1,372,186)

($1 ,315,713)
24,764,880

$8,000

$246,548
6,431,493

$o

$61,649
1 ,416,01 1

$109,219,066 $77,614,198 $23,449,167 $6,678,041 $1,477,660

$1,885,774
1,722,260

$1,529,104
1,373,280

$56,474 $238,548
93,476

$61,649
18,593236 911

$3,608,034 $2,e02,38- $293,385 $332,024 $80,242

$103,800
2,033,836

1,688
(2,356,705)

13,346
245,000
539,991

(e56,395)
393,588
(34,978)

1,409,980
(474,129)

(1,730,496)
0
0

$95,800
0

1,688
(1,931,675)

13;346
245,000

0
(556,994)
242,646
(36,008)

1,318,740
(340,345)

(1,729,652)
'1,372,186

$o
2,033,836

0
(1 06,1 60)

0
0

539,991
(365,669)
156,942

0
236,319

(252,264)
60,233

(1,372,186)

$8,000
0
0

(52,310)
0
0
0

(33,732)
(21 ,901)

1,030
42,995
(e,201)

0
o
0

$0
0
0

(266,55e)
0
0
0
0

15,900
0

(188,073)
127,681
(61,076)

0
018

($811,4 ,848,486) 1,474,260 ,127)

$2,796,561 $1,053,898 91,767,644 $266,904 ($291,885)

15,106,428 10,170,912 2,898,124 1,475 988 561,404
$11,224,809 $4,665 ,768 $1,742,892 $269,520

9

$17 ,902,988
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018

DECEMBER

2018
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Hydrant Meter Up/Down Charges
Backflow Service Charges
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Wheeling Charges - MMWD

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Source
Maint/Monitoring of Dam
Maint of Lake & lntakes
Maint of Structures
Maint of Watershed
Water Quality Surveillance
Purchased Water

PUMPING
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Pumping
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power

$829,422
(5,e7e)

379,088
6,454

495
I
0

11,502
6,267

$8,524,273
(50,703)

2,274,530
36,866

3,475
117

2,800
71 ,504
18,440

$8,878,123
(86,075)

2,176,584
39,1 68

4,030
351

2,860
69,618
15,465

43 951

$1,235,239 $10,925,254
7 982

54%
33%
50o/o

50%
50o/o

12%
140o/o

51%
71%

59o/o

53%

9%
46%
33%
90%

6%
2%
50%

49%

Oo/o

119%
34%
70%
66%

44 357
$11,144,482

$51 3
152

1,014
54

0

0

101

$3,221
5,470

22,415
1 6,1 98

205
3,037

504
3,245,687

$5,1 83
1,982

15,650
566

0

21,841
4,410

2,651,558410 968

SOURCE OF SUPPLY $412,802 $3,296,737 $2,701,190

$o
0

1,625
2,431

$o
0

30,959
20,900

$o
n

12,497
17,613

171 ,712

OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry Equipment/Controls Maint
Leased Lines

12 973 176 '105

PUMPING $17,028 $227,965

$94,630
158,772
22,232
39,691

Õ 369

OPERATIONS $4e,253 $323,694

$201,823

$124,079
200,864
23,951
43,O47
8,589

$400,529

$13,e07
20,438
4,942
9,868

9B

560/0

63o/o

40o/o

46%
49%

56%
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018

DECEMBER YEAR TO DATE YTD/
2018 ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

WATER TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Water Treatment
Purification Chemicals
Sludge Disposal
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Water Quality Programs
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Water Quality Supervision
Laboratory Supplies & Expense
Customer Water Quality
Lab Cost Distributed

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Safety: Construction & Engineering
Customer Sêrvice Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Maint of Mains
Leak Detection - Mains
Backflow Prevention Program
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Single Service lnstallations
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Collection Expense - Agency
Billing & Consumer Accounting
Contract Billing
Stationery, Supplies & Postage
Online Payment Processing Fees
Lock Box Service
Uncollectable Accounts
Office Equipment Expense
Distributed to West Marin (4.1%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

$131,582 $882,800

$52,720
1,170

0

2,318
7,915

11,940
6,202
8,357

29,678
1,235
4,671
4,276
2,383

(1,283)

$40,769
11,078
12,656
12,856

5,1 88
19,6'19

0

3,064
161
270

11,221
474

10,289
8,592

38,924
15,913
6,394

12,659
J 148

70o/o

29o/o

27%
34%
14%
40%
47%
50%
41%
42%
39%
36%
29o/o

49o/o

37%

58%
I O-/o

11%o

47%

41%
42o/o

32o/o

70%
42o/o

63%
10%
34%
25%
14%
60%
169%
41%
32%
7 1To

$106,086
112,706
124,406
40,098
17,098
81,113
72,626
57,494

178,048
22,382
33,222
29,040
20,671

(12,191)

$1 10,838
186,535
338,928

54,772
14,323
79,878
98,419
64,111

192,210
21,562
42,490
33,065
23,883

(16,1 36)

$266,771
75,972
68,694
84,370
28,307

124,409
3,008

41,576
4,258

31,670
91,143

6,776
97,834
59,280

331,555
34,680
62,058
53,241

8,424

$1,244,875

$323,751
81,162
70,9'10
74,872
17,184

104,488
7,220

46,050
7,311

101 ,89'1
113,517

2,217
98,1 09
72,452

232,920
(3,024)
58,034
36,897
17,024

$213,274 $1,474,025 $1,462,985

$6,452
1,002

410
'l 3,109

1,252
4,196
4,662

912
(102)
100

(1,012\

$49,371
11,104
1,299

'100,364

7,977
26,473
31,824

5,472
5,268
2,630

(7,363)

$74,761
12,233

1,260
141,376

9,624
30,416
23,786

5,472
4,916

10,748
(e,0e3)

24%
2B%
43%
44%
44%
48o/o

103%o

50%
3Bo/o

10%o

46Yo

38%o$30,980 $234,418 $305,498
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018

DECEMBER YEAR TO DATE YTD/
20'18 ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

WATER CONSERVATION
Residential
Commercial
Public Outreach/l nformation
Large Landscape

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Directors Fees
Legal Fees
Human Resources
Auditing Fees
Consulting Services/Studies
General Office Salaries
Safety: General District Wide
Office Supplies
Employee Events
Other Administrative Expense
Dues & Subscriptions
Vehicle Expense
Meetings, Conferences & Training
Recruitment Expense
Gas'& Electricity
Telephone
Water
Buildings & Grounds Maint
Office Equipment Expense
lnsurance Premiums & Claims
Retiree Medical Benefits
(Gain)/Loss on Overhead Charges
G&A Applied to Other Operations (5.9%)
G&A Applied to Construction

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$17,836 $157,800

$14,809
915

1,314
799

$2,693
3,591
9,563

392
14,57 4
64,242
2,020
2,361

309
567

9,937
676

4,985
0

2,508
38

282
7,405
7,1 86
9,219

16,536
112,555
(10,624)
(31,064)

$17,367
10,521
73,468
19,992
85,872

518,043
16,516
10,566
6,703
3,071

51,102
4,056

66,304
925

18,686
227

1,194
29,004
58,127
53,058
95,088

484,105
(6e,432)

(176,741)

$1 10,663
3,486

13,352
13,396

$140,897

$16,099
11,574
1 4,036
1 9,1 96
63,675

695,577
'17,996
't '1,509

3,401
6,689

51,428
4,056

75,217
1,052

18,848
3,400

653
23,679
53,327
45,521
78,272

(20,62e)
(78,025)

(159,964)

$956,587

1,369,293

$8,783,678

$121,904
3,875

'19,863

12,158

41%
20%
51%
53%

42%

49%
49%

45%
55%

115o/o

100o/o

22%
40%
27%
22%
56%
19%
70%
51%
29%
31%
4B%
3%
60%
55%
45%
41%
55%

-1241%o

48%
42%

629/o$229,952

230,673
$1,333,381

$1,377 ,822

1,373,280

$9,348,541

oPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) ($e8,142) $1,576,713 131% $2,360,804
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018

DECEMBER YEAR TO DATE YTD/
2O1B ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund
Collector #6 Financing Fund
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Comp Fund
Conservation lncentive Rate Fund
Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Proj Fund
Funds Held in County Treasury
Recycled Water Advance (Note 1o)

Total lnterest Revenue
Rents & Leases
Other Non-Operating Revenue
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Bond lnterest Expense
Bank of Marin AEEP Loan lnterest Exp
STP SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Drought Loan lnterest Expense
Debt lssuance Costs
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME/(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
SCWA 84 Water Conservation Grant
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer to/from Recycled Water

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$o
U

U

20,398
1 ,380

$o
3,098

12,181
74,684

8,504
0

525
3,716

0

$o
4,028

14,402
30,673

5,478
6,908

298
2,678

0

Oo/o

77%
72%
191%
142%

0
79

0
0

$21,858
7,754
5,192
Õ 451

$43,255 $219,747 94%

50o/o

49o/o

$267,355

$1 ,529,104

51o/o

3%
48o/o

$0
$13,429
20,401

0
0

10,312
135

$o
$86,1 59
121,092

0
0

59,464
640

$0
$92,225
130,61 1

0
0

0

888

ç102,707
60,1 89
49,541
7,310

124%
0%

103Yo

73%
99o/o

$64,466
71,525
19,810
(e,814)

$44,277

($ee,164)

$145,987

$223,725

$2,283,066

$79,268,844
2,283,066

42,567
50,401

339
245,000
709,200

(7,122,418)

__$z!129,e99_

(99,1 64)
0

74,622
2,012

0
tt

(s50,741)

974,211,063
1,529,104

1,688
146,010

13,346
245,000

95,800

173o/o

6%

1335%
100%
14o/o

-109%1 372 'l86

$77,614,197
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018
DECEMBER YEAR TO DATE YTD/

2018 ACTUAL BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
OPERATING REVENUE
Recycled Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Water Loads
Account Turn-on Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERAT]NG EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Purchased Water - NSD
Purchased Water - LGVSD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power

PUMPING
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Potable Water Consumed
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry EquipmenVControls Maint

OPERATIONS
WATER TREATMENT
Pu rification Chemicals
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Cathodic Protection
Customer Service Expense
Storage Facilities Expense
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Maint of Meters
Maint of Mains

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

$58,s04 $847,055 71%

$54,457
0

4,017
0

30

$81 7,1 93
0

28,403
1,375

B4

71%

69%

73o/o

35%

64%

11%
88%
5Bo/o

23o/o

25%

$97,594

$540,8'18
0

16,747
1,085

6

$822
1,967

$ 1 52,958
21 957

$2,789 $174,916

$558,6s6

$72,1 65
25,429

$0
293

$225
2,654

$0
2,032

$293

$273
0

431
220

0

$2,879

$5,1 75
6,819

191,777
409
510

$2,032

$924 $205,690

35o/o

34%
1743o/o

8%
12o/o

321o/o

5Bo/o

23%
0%
17%

$5,008
3,931
5,122
9,624
3,540

$27,225

$842
8,989

0
923

0
551

rì

0
0
0
0
0)

$

(2

$2,308
3,508

n

1,201
JJ

684
($zo¡ $7,734 $11,304

$707
0

2,229
112

0
0

590
4BB
717
887

$o
0

0

0

0

$2, 163
0
0
0
0

9%
0%
0%

0%
25o/o
ao/zto
0%
0%

12o/o

220 4,194
211

0
0
0

5
n

0

0

$235 $6,568 $5,730
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018
DECEMBER YEAR TO DATE YTD/

2018 ACTUAL BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Distributed from Novato (0.2o/")

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Distributed from Novato (2.4%)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciatiorì (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATI NG EXPENSE

oPERATTNG TNCOME/(LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Repl & Exp Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Comp Fund
StoneTree RWF Loan

Total lnterest Revenue
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
RWF SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Expansion SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense
lnterest-Advance from Novato (Note 1o)

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME/(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
FRC Transfer to/from Novato
RW CentralArea Expansion Grant

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$10,722 $185,670

$75 $547
$75 $547 55%

55%

51%
51o/o

50%
69%

77%

-12o/o

93o/o

122%

49%
63o/o

61%

(627%)

$440
$440

$26,613$¿ 000 $26 142

$4,000

39,486
$47,782

$26,142

236,911
$661,386

$26,613

237,060
$407,997

$150,659

($3,ooe)
3,761

0
25

($1 ,1ee)
21,453

0
151

$0
0
0
0

4 399 27 013 7987

$5,1 75
0

$47,418
0

$17,798
0

$5,1 75 $47,418 122%

$4,397

$'17,798

$29,1 33
94,494

0

0

38424
$26,092
147,168

3,354
0

0
0

$28,780

($ 12,883)

$176,614

$56,474

$123,627

$44,831

$24,764,880
(12,883) 56,474

00
550,741 (1,372,186)

00--w4N1ffi-
-109o/o

1 571 285
25,871,780

$17,146,483
44,831

(13,237)
7,122,418
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018

DECEMBER
2018

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Backflow Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maint of Structures
Water Quality Surveillance
Purchased Water - MMWD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY

PUMPING
Maint of Structures and Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equip
Electric Power

$50,965 $546,984

$385
2,164
8,736

101
aaa

$36,704
(2,463)
15,432

180
20

0

$460,611
(10,248)
92,592

642
80
I

3,298

67o/o

50%
64%
oolo/o

66%

63%

36o/o

109%
10%

82%
3%

74%
60o/o

42o/o

44o/o

26%
41%
36%

$41 1,530
(14,4e7)
87,453

590
'100

I
3,045092

$o
70

0

0

0

$488,230

$424
2,097
8,200

535
0

$70 $11,708 78%

$720
0

2,589

$4,1 1 I
245

$1 1,256

$397
17,999
13,86520 794

PUMPING $3,309 $25,1 58 $32,261

OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maint of Telemetry Lines
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Leased Lines

WATER TREATMENT 
OPERATIONS

Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electrlc Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Laboratory Services
Water Quality Supervision
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMENT

$722
941

0

960
340

$8,1 58
4,315

0
'10,465

$5,012
6,607

0

5,204
2 043 a 385

$2,963

$1 82
5,423

0

0

694
1,09'1

2,283
898

0
49

$18,866 $25,327

041 10 061

44%
69%
55o/o

}Yo

17%
62%
41%

138%
6%
21%
53%
45%

$3,092
13,796
2,774

0

4,322
13,095
17,659
5,527

495
1,055

$2,s32
16,01 I
11,623

242
8,237

'13,738

22,820
1 ,5'15
1,272
1,585

13,613
$11,661 $93,1 88

16

$71,876
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018

DECEMBER
2018

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Facilities Location - USA
Customer Service Expense
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves
Valve Operation Program
Maint of Mains
Water Quality Maintenance
Maint of Backflow Devices
Backflow Dev lnspection/Survey
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants
Hydrant Operation
Single Service lnstallation

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Uncollectable Accounts
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

WATER CONSERVATION
Water Conservation Program

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciatiorì (Nore s)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$1,854
0

2,599
3,957
5,487
1,436

899
4,433
5,423

304
0

2,547
8,231

21,908
429

0

1,582
4,856
7,162

$3,1 85
0

9,744
7,751
6,171

942
378

0

5,915
0

0

3,152
665

19,027
2,025
1,654

0

0

2,448

$444
0

407
594

1,076
0

0

9%
0%
20%
57%
21%
36%
15%

222%
108%
15o/o

0%
127%
274o/o

78%
9%
0%
53%

243%

981,9

1

0

0

0

0

412
26

133
0

0
2,185

0

$8,275 $73,1 07

$3,746
26

(2e8)
6,104

51o/o

20o/o

20%

057$63

$ 1,007
0

0

841

31%o

3%
-30%
47%
35%

$3,939
156

0

7,641
$1,848 $9,578

$1,982

$11,736

$282 $3 088

$282 $1,982

$898
31,358

$o
4,798

7%
38%
34%o

$3,088

$o
39,085

$4,798

15,578

$48,784

$32,256

93,476

$338,007

47%o

46%

$39,085

96,390

$375,389

oPERATTNG TNCOME/(LOSS) $2,1 B1 $208,978 156% $112,841
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018

DECEMBER
2018

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - FRC
lnterest - Self-lnsured WC Fund
lnterest - Bank of Marin Project Fund
lnterest - CIR Fund
Rents & Leases
Tax Proceeds - OL-2 G.O. Bond
Tax Proceeds - PR-2 Tax Allocation
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin Loan lnterest Expense
PRE-1 Revenue Bond lnterest Exp
PR-6 Revenue Bond lnterest Exp
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME/(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
Connection Fees

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$1,971
108
146
392

$12,647
650
875
392

$13,538
950

1,150
38't

9441
258
46

1 ,'1 86

$6,490
1,562

287
7,264

0

0
1

28,846
(317)

39o/o

73o/o

ooÂ

52%

60o/n

49o/o

65%
44%

$3,982
(7,e53)

115
5,614

234
5,000

1

27,492
0

27,43

0

0

0
1

0

$29,362 $44,134 $34,485

$2,618

$28,926

28,926

$14,564

$238,548

$6,431,493
238,548

0

o 000

$6,678,041

0

0

50% $16,019

$131 ,308134%

$6,'l 55,744
131 ,308

35%
3,430

45,600
$6,336,082

,18
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2018

DECEMBER YEAR TO DATE

2O1B ACTUAL

YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
OPERATING REVENUE
Sewer Service Charges
lnspection Fees

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SEWAGE COLLECTION
Supervision & Engineering
lnspection
Operating Expense
Facilities Location
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Sewer Service lnstallation
Maint of Lift Stations
Maint of Manholes
Maint of Sewer Mains
Electric Power
GAS86B Adjustment

SEWAGE COLLECTION
SEWAGE TREATMENT
Operating Expense
Maint of Structures
Maint of Equipment
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato
Electric Power

SEWAGE TREATMENT
SEWAGE DISPOSAL
Operating Expense
Maint of Pump Stations
Maint of Storage Ponds
Maint of lrrigation Field

SEWAGE DISPOSAL
CONTRACT OPERATIONS

$21,060 $126,360

$689
0

839
0

20
0

1,658
0

0

662
0

$3,869 $26,295 34%

$4,322
0

6,082
896

1,309
0

7,534
0

0

6,1 53
0

$6,282
384

4,627
1,044

9'18

0

$21,060
0

$126,360
0

$119,318
300

50%

50% $119,618

3,41494%

12%
0%

61o/o

90%
44o/o

0%
0%
51%

101%
0%o

58%
28%
72%
51%
68%

21%
16%
28%
ao/

18%

n

U

7,143
0

$427
0

619
521
263
770

$20,294
0

4,668
2,538
1,446
3 074

$32,019

$2,520
1,091
3,407

194

$23,812

$21,268
0

211

3,307
1,972
Ã 164

$2,601 $31,922

$557
(422)

19

0

fi2,434
1,442
2,966
2,084

$1 53 $7,211 $8,927

CONTRACT OPERATIONS
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Collection Expense - County of Marin
Distributed from Novato (0.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

$o

$350
96

$o

$350
712

$o

36%
53%

$345
1,012

$1,357$445 $1,062
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018

DECEMBER YEAR TO DATE

2018 ACTUAL

YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Distributed from Novato (1.1%)
Liability lnsurance

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

oPERAT¡NG TNCOME/(LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
Rents & Leases
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - Self lnsured WC Fund
Tax Proceeds - OM-1/OM-3 Tax Alloc
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME/(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Contribution in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$9,1 46 $28,529

$1,826
(80)

$1 1,932
719

12,651

18,593

$97,831

44o/o

36%
44%

50%
42%

143%

$12,327
952

$1,746

3,1 01

$1'1,914

$1s,279

18,695

$97,991

$21,627

$o
(48)
17

29,233
0

$250
2,789

102
30,742

0

$29,202 $33,884 52%

$41 8 $764
$41 B

$37,929

$764

$61,649

0

460/o

520Â

73%

$500
3,098

39
29,299

(1)

$32,934

$406
$406

$54,1 56

$1,340,901
54,1 56

244
0

$'1 ,416,01 I
6'1,64937,929

0

0 00%
$1,477,659 __$1,39!,3!!_

20
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
ANALYSIS OF WORKERS'COMP AND CONNECTION FEE FUNDS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2OI8

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN

SEWER
RECYCLED

WATERWORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND
WC Cash Balance 6/30/18
Less: Projected Prior FY Claims Liability
Add: Funds borrowed to subsidize operations
WG Reserve Balance 6/30/18
Add: WC Expense Charged to Operations FYTD

lnterest Earned
Subtotal
Less: Claims Expense Paid

Excess lnsurance Premium
Administration Fees

WC Reserve Balance 12131118

Add: Projected Claims Liãbility
wc cAsH BALANCE 12t31t18

CONNECTION FEE FUND
Connection Fee Gash Balance 6/30/18
Add: funds borrowed to subsidize operations
Connection Fee Reserve Balance 6/30/18
Add: Connection Fees Collected FYTD

Repayment Prior Year Loan from RWF
lnterest Earned

Close out of Wohler & Collector 6 Reserves
Subtotal
Less: Fees Expended FYTD

Fees transferred to RWS FYTD (Note 14)
Connection Fee Reserve Balance 'l2l31l'18
Less: Funds borrowed to subsidize operations
CONNECTION FEE CASH BALANCE 12131118

$55'1 ,188 $51 8,306 $17,431

$549,030
97,580

0

$516,563
90,652

$17,573
3,513

0

$6,054
1,073

0

$8,840
2,342

0

$451,450
51,376

$425,911
47,523

$14,060
1,747

287

$4,981
668
102

$6,498
1,439

151I 044 504

$511,871
8,106

35,755

$481,938
7,498

33,073

$16,094
276

1,216
204

$5,751
105

465
78

$8,088
227

1,001

1686 000 5 550

$462,010

89 178

$102,491
(1784.4A5\

$435,816

82,490

$14,399

3,032

$5,1 03

1,159

$6,692

2,497

$6,262 $e,1 89

$o $102,49r
0

$0
(47.613)fi

($11,681,994)
103,800

0

1,562
2,068,744

($11,736,872)

95,800
0

0

2.068.744

$102,491
8,000

0

1,562
0

($47,613)

0

0

0

0
($s,507,889)

162,674
(1 .372.1 86)

($s,s72,328)

17,270
(.372.1

$112,053
19,062

0

($47,613)

126,341

0
($8,298,376)

(8.391.367)
($8,217,413) $92,e91

0

($173,954)
($173,954)(8,217,41

$92,991 $0 $92,991 $o

21 llaccornlanls\flnanclals\stmti/,odfnfyft.¡ls(confeest)1/23l2019 1:58PM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 3I ,2018
t:\accountants\f¡nanc¡als\stmtfy1g\[cpm1 21 8,xls] equip

DECEMBER
2018

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 18/19
BUDGET

(ovER)
UNDER Notes

1 ADMINISTRATION
a. Website Upgrade
o. Timekeeping Software Upgrade

2 CONSTRUCTTON
a. Pipe Locator
b. Fittings & Hose for Emergency Hose Trailer

3 OPERATIONS/MAINTENANCE
a. Metals Analyzer
¡. Autoclave for Lab

c. Tire Balance Machine
d. STP Reclaim Cleaning Pump

$0
0

$0
0

$10,000 $10,000
10 000 10 000

$o

0

$0 $2o,ooo $2o,ooo

$0 $5,863
0

$8,000
6,000

$2,137 t

6,000
$0 $5,863 $14,000 $19,863

$o
864

0

0

3

$o
0

0

0

$105,000
27,000

8,000

$105,000
1 3,1 36

8,000

3 VEHICLE & ROLLING EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES
a. S-Yard Diesel Dump Truck With Sliding Bed $0 $O
ø. 112 Ton 4x4 Pickup 4-Door with Shelt Z,1ST 99,231
c. SïP Equipment Cart 0 14,909

6 000 6 000
$0 $13,864 $146,000 $132,136

$120,000 $120
40,000 6
15,000

92,157 $48,139 $175,000 $126,S61

867 000 860

,000
,769

91

TOTAL EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES 157 $67

Notes:
(1) Replacement item

22
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OPERATING EXPENSE

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2018

West Oceana YTD
Marin Marin Total

Annual YTD Prior otto

ChangeNovato led Bu Bu et% YTDActual
1

2

J

4

5

6

7

B

'10

11

Water Purchases
Depreciation
Materials, Services & Supplies
Consulting Services/Studies
Chemicals
Electric Power
Vehicles and Equipment (Distrib)
Tools & Supplies (Distrib)

Retiree Medical Expenses
Water Conservation Rebates

12 lnsurance & Claims
13 Offìce Supplies & Postage
14 GASB 68 Adjustments
15 Overhead Charges (Gain)/Loss
16 Distributed Costs (Lab,G&A,ConsAcctg)
17 

Total operating Expense
18 lnterest Expense & Other
19

Total Expense

Warehouse. ShoD & Yard
Salaries & Benefits
Materials, Services & Supplies
Depreciation
Distributed Costs

TotalWH, Shop & Yard

District Capital Outlav
25 Salaries & Benefits
26 Equipment Expenditures
27 Debt Principal Payments
28 Materials, Services & Supplies

29 Total District Capital Outlay

Develooer Funded Proiects
30 Salaries & Benefits
31 Materials, Services & Supplies

32 Total Ðeveloper Projects

Total

3,229,687
1,362,895

877,193
85,872

124,406
248,731

132,550
127123
95,088
13,770
53,058
37,039

0
367,723

(252,810)

172,127
236,911
193,838

0

2,308
2,654

798
1,283

0

0

0

0
0

0
23,319

$654,542
1 18,880

$15,843
0

365,669
90,317

0
93,476
33,588

898
2,774

33,889
11,452
7,111

0

0

0
0

0
0

40,844

$331,327
14,564

s22,246
0

33,732
30,065

$2,466
(2,050)

$416

$432,350

0
18,593
27,948

0

0
9,227
1,883
1,043

0

0

719
0
0
0

10,723

$95,647
764

$10,030
0
0

256,529

$52,985
13,858

3,401 ,814
1,711,875
1,'132,568

86,770
129,487
294,500
146,683
136,560

95,088
13,770
53,777
37,039

0
367,723

(177,924)

$83,545
150,303
61,514

(295,361)

$0

$221,086
67,867

956,395
2,069,501

$149,431
116,159

6,823,000
3,528,000
2,064,000

335,000
464,000
477,000
293,000
188,000

172,000
104,000
155,000
102,000

0
(39,000)

(421,000)

50%
49o/o

55o/o

26%
28%
620/o

50%
73%

55%
13%
35%
36%

-943o/o

42o/o

49%
46%

32%
46o/o

0%
5Oo/o

26%
19%
42%
30%

64o/o

84%

720/

2,749,151
1,721,438

799,841
63,675

351,392
312,072
130,809
113,987
78,272
14,300
46,472
65,712

0
(20,62e)

(161 ,937)

$95,217

$129,483
$67,699

(2e2,400)

$373,688
0

940,497
4,540,896

$46,701
97,585

23%
-0%
41%
36%

-63%
-5 o/o

12%
19%
21%
-3 o/o

15 To

-43%

-1882%
9%

6%
10%

6%

-12%
16%
-9%
1%

-40%

1%
-54%

-43%

219 o/o

19%

84 o/o

$9,665,493
362,989

$9,486,048 9773,421 $345,891 $96,411 $10,701 ,772 $22,057,000 49o/o $10,028,483

$9,218,693
267,355

$83,545
150,303
61,514

(295,361)

$172,968
67,867

556,994
1,692,590

$93,980
104,351

$198,331

812,174,797

$10,300,209 $21,r87,000
401,563 870,000

N)
C,)

20

21

22

23

24

$o
0
0

0

$o
0
0

0

$0
0
0

0

$263,000
325,000

0
(588,000)

$0

$844,000
355,000

2,279,000
6,926,000

$232,000
138,000

$0 $o $0 $0 $0

$2,49A,418 ç471,828 $86,042 $266,559 $3,3,14,848 $10,404,000 32% $5,855,081

$o
0

$o

s1,245,250

$66,843 $265,590 $370,000

$429,814 $14,282,210 $32,831,000 44%

6144,285

$16,027,848 -10 o/oJJ

1 0:1 8:1 9AM 1t11t2019 S:\SageSoftware\SAGE1 00\v20'16\MAS90\Reports\1 PAS ExpCategory FY1 9.rpt



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
VEHICLE FLEET ANALYSIS

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018
Fiscal Year to Date Vehicle Cost M¡Ie

Life to Date FYTDÍ9 FYTDIS FY17

$0.30

$1

14

15

16

17

lö

20
N) ..

22

23

24

za

08
81
68
75
04
14
10
52

Year

z 2003
s 2004
¿ 2004
s 2005
o 2005
t 2005
e 2006
s 2007
g 2008
ro 2008
tt 2Ð08
tz 2009
ts 2010

Veh#

49
53
54
56
57
58

501
504
505
506
509
510
511
512
513
515
516
517
518
520
521
522
523
524
526
527
528

19
44
52
s03
s08
514
519
525

2,998
2,223
2,905

534
1 ,166
1,504

0
5,455
2,746
2,508
3,461
7,764
1,132
4,035
3,222
4,996
6,012
1,038
8,475
9,1 53
3,817
6,460
2,949
5,517
3,824
4,468

0
102,257

1,389
2,465
2,499
2,429
2,423
2,622
4,325

$1,268
$871

$1,756
$521
$590
$6e9
$392

$3,05e
$1,s69
$3,365
$2,810
$1,331
$2,674
s2,332
$1,020
$3,868
$3,839

$480
$3,371
$2,583
s1,174
$3,337
$1,036
$2,290
$1,161
$4,238

$2,532
$3,738
$1,861
$4,939
$2,965
$3,531
$4,5s3

$1,660
$1,02s

$865
$354

$1,053
$661
($tt¡

$5,046
$2,960
$1,539
$2,152
$2,897
$2,281
$5,288
$1,742
$6,768
$6,318
$1,567
$7,270
$5,499
$1,799
$3,009
$1,931
$6,098
$1,347
$5,241

$392
$154

($8et ¡
($1oz¡
$462
($a;

($+o+¡

$1,988
$1,391

($1,azs¡
($65e)

$1,566
($3e2)

$2,956
s722

$2,900
$2,478
$1,087
$3,899
$2,916

$625
($328)
$895

$3,808
$3,808

$1 86

107,212
130,783
104,169
79,940
78,942

131,607
145,060
76,949
97,385
74,178

103,865
127,106

84,228
106,132
79,388
55,814
62,542
12,283
75j20
55,670
36,678
35,103
16,545
17,504
6,040
4,468

136,726
103,058
94,639
43,897
34,741
37,514
32,384

50.42
$0.46
$0.47
$0.30
9o.24
$0.46
$0.37
$0.43
$0.77
$0.79
$0.35
$0.1 9
$0.50
$0-49
$0.47
$0.61
$0.54
$0.40
$0.40
$0.24
$0.29
$0.38
$0.30
$0.40
$1.13
$0.95

$0.00
$1.76
$0.00
$1.74
$2.05
$1.45
$1.04

$0.42
$0.39
$0.60
$0.98
$0.51
$0.46

$0.56
$0.57
$1.34
$0.81
$0.17
$2.36
$0.s8
$0.32
$0.77
$0.64
$0.46
$0.40
$0.28
$0.31
$0.52
$0.35
$0.42
$0.30
$0.9s

$0.54
$0.48
$0.53
$0.56
$0.28
$0.63
$0.31
$0.37
$1.81
$0.41
$0.31
$0.12
$0.39
$0.54
$0.s6
$0.40

$0.46
$0.46
$0.79
$1.81
$0.1 5

$1.07
$0.20
$0.36
$1.80
$0.63
$0.29
$0.1 3

$0.69
$0.44
$0.54
$0.84
$0.47
$0.21
$0.41
$0.18
$0.17
$0.38

2010
2010
2012
2012
2014
201s
2Ð15
2015
2016
2017
2016
2018
2018
2019

Dodge Dakota 4x4
Chev C1 500
Chev C1500 Xtra Cab
Honda Civic Hybrid
Honda Civic Hybrid
Ford Ranger
Chev Colorado
Chev Colorado
Ford F250 4x4
FordF2SO 4x4
Chev Colorado 4x4
Toyota Prius Hybrid
Ford F150 4x4
Ford F150
Ford F'f 50
Ford F250
Ford F250
Ford F150
Ford F250 4x4
Ford Escape 4X4
Ford F150 4X4
Nissan Frontier
Ford Escape 4X4
Nissan Frontier
Ford Cargo Van
Dodge Ram 2500
Chev Colorado 4x4

Elec/Mech
Backflow/Pool
Pool
Engineering
Wtr ConsiPool
FSR/Pool
Totaled
Rodriguez
Maintenance
STP
Engineering
Clark
STP
Kurfìrst
STP
Reed
Castellucci
Grisso
Kehoe, Chris
Arendell
Lemos
Roberto
Lab
Bynum
On-Call
Corda, Joe

$3.27
$0.46

82
$6
$1

$3
$4
$1

$1

$0.60
$0.45
$0.47
$0.23
$0.30
$0.32

$1.93
$1.97
$1.47
$1.30

1999
2002
1999
2006
2009
2012
2Ð15
2017

Ford F350 WSvc Body
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
Ford F550 3-Yd Dump "
lnt'l 4300 Crew
Peterbilt 325 Crew
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
Ford F350 4x4

Pool
Construction
Construction
Bergstrom/Barrilleaux
Bieit/Crew
Rupp
Sjoblom

$'1 ,s18
$11,563

$8,623
ç12,375
$13,530

89,127
$10,849

0 849

$1

($1,013)
s7,825
$6,762
87,437

$10,565
$5,s96
$6,296

$0.00
$1.52
$0.00
$2.03
$1.22
$1.35
$1.05

$1.51
$1.78
$1.21

6 .43

1 
Expense amount shown excludes deprec¡ation (approximately $96,ooo for FY19).

$7/hr and the recovery rate for vehicles l-ton and over ¡s $14lhr. An addÍtionel 50% is charged to developer projec{s to reflect the fair market velue of the vehicle be¡ng used.
3 Purdæd @d in 20øffi 32 500 milæ. Miþase $om s ffiliÞr€d drc Dffi pudæ T;\Amuntants\Financials\sÍntfyl gwehss.rslDEc 1e



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DETAIL
FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 3I, 2018

conseryalion

THRU DECEMBER
2018

FY 18/19
BUDGETJUNE 2018 TOTAL

(ovER)
UNDER COST

67,361
25,',t83

77,971
85,224
20,290

130,018
r52,596

11,327

90,689
38,059
14,460
19,421
82,896

1-770041

1-770ùO2

1-Zl00-03

1-r/0S.06

tn0607
lnoù11
1-770ç12

1-77b-13

1-770G.15

tnoç16
1-770ù17

't-T/oG.19

1-770G08

't-770ç20

1-770ç21

1-T7o+24

1-7700-25

1-7/OG28

1-770È26

1-7700-27

$401,449
23,492
45,649

u7,112
54,416

981,400
18,173

æ6,744
242,177

90,875
3,258

33,553
1,419,540

88,418
2,816
3,300
2,266

$975
100

0
100

0
1,757

0
2,304

0
188
35

524
7,961

791
0
0

75
0

$8,405
246

4,981
755

0
7,897

0
31,326

0
1,269

206
1,253

60,477
4,939

0
0

150
0

$35,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
1,000

18,000
2,000

65,000
0

7,000
1,000
5,000

130,000
15,000
2,000
1,000
2,000

$26,595
4,754

19
4,245
1,000

1 0,1 03
2,000

33,674
0

5,732
794

3,747
69,523
10,061
2,000
1,000
1,850

0

$409,854
23,738
50,630

347,867
u,416

989,297
18,173

418,070
242,177

92,143
3,464

34,806
1,480,017

93,357
2,816
3,300
2,416

66,421

a. Residential
t Cash for Grass
z Landscape Efficiency Rebates
¡ Fixtures Purchases
+ Washing Machine Rebates
s Demonstration Garden lmprovements
o Toilet Rebate SF
z Toilet Rebate MF
e Residential Audits
s Hígh Efficiency Toilet Distribution
10 Water Waste Ordinance Monitoring
tt Swimming Pool Cover Rebate
lz ET Controller Rebate
ts Administration
t¿ New Development Wtr Cons Program
ts Demand Offset Rebate Program
16 Grant Administration
rz Hot Water Recirculation Rebate
ta Residential Fill Station

b. Commercial
l Toilet Rebate Program
z Commercial Audits

c. Public Outreach/lnformation
t Fall Newsletter
z Spring Newsletter
3 Summer Newsletter
¿ Public Outreach lH,O Fair' s Marketing
o PublicOutreach/Leadership Novato

d. Large Landscape
t Large Landscape Audits
e Large Landscape Budgets
a Large Landscape lrrig Efficiency Rebates
¿ CIMIS Station Maintenance
s Administration-Large Landscape

TOTAL NOVATO WATER CONSERVATION

WEST MARIN WATER
a. Water Conservation Program

90,427
37,883
14,460
18,866
71 730 11

$4,990,655 $17.836 $157

$89,054 s282

$380,000 s222.200 $5,148,455

$1 ,982 $10,000 $8,018 $91 ,037

f\)(¡

1-T/Où29

tnoùN

1-TtW31

'1-770Ç32

1-770ù33

't-77W34

1-7701-02 1-7701-05

1-7701-03 1-7701-U

066,421

311

67,061
21,608

67,368
85,224
20,290

122,868
150,716
1l,098

300
3,575

10,603
0
0

7j50
1,880

230

261
176

0
555
166

10,000
9,000

8,000
9,000

0
7,000

15,000
0

3,000
1,000
4,000
2,000

13 000

" (2,603)
, 9,000

0
(r50)

13,120
(230)

9,700
5,425

2,739
824

4,000

0
915

1-æ72-16

't-æzzl-tz

1-æ72-18

1-770GO4

1-770G05

1-770G-22

1-8653.02

1-770241

[no2-02 1-7702-U

1-8653-01

1-7702-03

0
0
0
4
0
0

0
0
0
5

784
445
835

2-516ù00

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION EXPENDITURES $89.054 $282 s $10.000 s8 018 $91.037



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2018

tþæouruß$nanqatsffittyl guveß.Éldec I I
cosT THRU DECEMBER FYTD Fy 18/19 (OVERyUNDER TOTAL

Description JUNE 2018 2019 rorAL BUDGET BUDGET cosr

1 -7't 6't -00 r Ridge Road 6" ACP (8" @ 1,400)
z Replace Shady Lane Service Saddles
s Other Main Replacements (60+ years old)
o Ridge Road 6" ACP-Materials Purchase
z Bel Marin Keys/101 On Ramp Pipe Repair
a Montego Keys Pipeline Replacement

b. Main/Pipel¡ne Additions
r San Mateo lnleVOutlet Pipe (2,200')

c. PB Service L¡ne Replacements
I Country Lane 2" Plastic
+ Repl PB-BrookeiRobinhood/Mclntosh/Charmaine/Timothy
s Rush Creek Pipe Protection

d. Relocations to Sync w/City & County CIP
r Other Relocations
z Montego Keys Pipeline Replacement

TOTAL PIPELINE REPI.ACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

e. Aqueduct Replacements & Enhancements
1 MSN B2-Utility Agreement Costsl
z AEEP Post Construclion Costs
3 AEEP 83 Betterment & Depr Cost

$682,854
4,548

0
67,832

0
0

45,348

7,M5
66,286

0

0
0

13

$72,949
3,221

439

$131,448
0

l ,016
3,849,7M

0
5l

$0
52,381

2,346
0

$2,012
98

$0
0
0

0

0
0

500

284
0
0

0
0

$88,004

48,209
0

't,197

4,695
26,642

0

$13,346
4,610

0

9140,000
100,000
160,000

n

0
0

500,000

150,000
0
0

70,000
0

$60,000
30,000

100,000
2,500,000

75,000

$140,000
250,000

590,000
50,000

0

30,000
250,000
280,000
200,000

$51,996
73,177

160,000
0

(48,209)
0

498,803

145,305
(26,642)

70,000

$0
(4,610)

0
($4,610)

$57,083
30,000

100,000
990,815
74,516
17 348

$140,000
250,000

531,665
43,826

(175)

30,000
250,000
264,766
163,736

$770,858
31,370

0
67,832
48,209

0

46,545

12,140
92,928

0

$86,295
7,831

439

$134,365
0

't ,016
5,358,939

4U

$0
52,381

60,681
6,174

79,779

15,145
0

118,332
91 ,541

26,8231-717ñ0

0

0

1 -71 5G00

1-716141

1-7179.00

l -71 80-00

1-716900

1-717740

1€737-q

1€737-06

1.711442

1-711ù11

1-711919

1 4600+9

I €60G92

1$60GSt

0
792

0
792

$0
0
0

0

638

$0,609 $2,1 1 0 $1 7,Ì\)
o)

1-7007-12

'1 -7090-04

1-7157+0

1-71584ll

1-7178{o

1-713ffi

2 SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
a. Detecior Check Assembly Repair/Repl 1-r+ry4
¡. Anode lnstallations (1so/yr)

c. Automate Zone Valve
¿. Advanced Meter lnformation Rekofitl
f. Asset Management Software ProcuremenVlmplementation
e. Facilities Security Enhancements

TOTAL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
3 BUILDINGS, YARD. & S.T.P.IMPROVEMENTS

r$501 -4:Ì

145Ð14

a. Administration Building
r Electronic Document Management System
e Office/Yard Building Renovation,

b. Stafford Treatment Plant
z Coal Concrete Clean¡vells (Borh units)
4 Other Treatment Plant lmprovements
s Stafford Spillway Repairs

TOTAL BUILDING, YARD, & STP IMPROVEMENTS

4 STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS
a- Tank Construction

1s207-20 t Old Ranch Rd Tank Replacement
o. Tank Rehabilitation

1-71zo4o t Hydropnuematic Tank Repairs
1<,20sl22 z Cherry Hill #2 Recoat
1+112-21 c. Lynwood Pump Station Moior Control Center
r¡r+r¡o d. Crest P.S.(Design/Const)/Reloc School Rd P.S

$2,917
0

0
16,239

0

$0
0

29,313
6,174

s2,917
0
0

1 ,509,1 85
4U

58,335
6,174

'175

0
0

15,234
36,264

7

$0
0

79,604 0

$134,331 $35,487

$14,394 $928

15,145 0
00

103,098 1 ,819
55,278 16,389

$64,684 $1,030.000 $965,316 $199,014

$11,820 $60,000 $48,1 80 926.214

TOTAL STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS $187,914 $19,136 $63,318 $820,000 $756,682 5251,232



NORTH MARIN WATER D¡STRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2018

DECEMBER
2018

$r,307,784
0

1,094,677
83,607

774,727
29,338

4,072,735
353,862

6,863,454
1J22,107

8æ,674
0

$16.556.966

$5,528
1,242

0
2,532

0
0

626

$39,'195
2,239

44,610
0

tÞmuÉnE\inanoâbWW1 9!vercSldec I õ

f)cçcriôfiôn
COST THRU
JUNE 2018

5 RECYCLED WATER
5-712740 a. NBWFTA Grant Program Administration

b. Other Recycled Water Expenditures
$605&10 c. Expansion to Central Area3

5€os&15 d. RW Central Right of Way Costs3

ffios&2o e. RW Central Private Onsite Retrofif
ffios&2s t RW Central Public Onsite Retrofif
$6oss-30 g. RW Exp-Central-East Side Consf
s+os&3s n. RW-Central East-Rowland Wat'
s6os8-40 i. RW Exp-Central-West Side Consf
s-605&50 j. RW Central-Norman Tank RehabiConsf
s-605e-60 k. RW Central-Highway10l Crossing
t?16242 I. So Novato Dual Plumbed Shell Loop

TOTAL RECYCLED WATER
6 WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

$199'266
z¿soszo b. New Gallagher Well #2
zaeærrc c. PB Replace in Sync w/County Paving
zæot-zz d. TP Solids Handling

e. Relocation of Production Meter
z-ztzrzz f. PB Replacement-State Route One
2€ei2-oo g, Lagunitas Bridge Pipeline Replacement

TOTAL WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

7 OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM

$39r,015 $9,928 $5

$892
0

300
0
0
0

M3
0

963
0
0
0

$6,966
0

780
3,077

89,638
0

3,837
0

1,336
0
0

525
$106.160 $120,000 $r3,840 $16,663,126

FYTD
TOTAL

$29,643
2,426
1,455
3,1 55

0
13,677

1,955

$0
264,895

1,664
0

$2,227,069
43,026

(13,346)
0

FY 18/19
BUDGET

(OVERYUNDER

BUDGET

$13,034
100,000

(780)
(3,077)

(89,638)
(0)

(s,837)
0

(1,336)
0
0

(525)

$595,357
87,574
48,545

546,845
10,000

(13,677)
(l,955)

$40,000
1 35,1 05

(1,664)
125,000

($2,227,06e)
(43,026)
13,346

0

TOTAL
cosT

$1 ,314,750
0

1,095,457
86,683

864,365
29,339

4,076,572
353,862

6,864,790
1,122,107

854,674
525

$228,909
3,014
1,455

200,316
0

13,677
1,955

$39,1 95
267,'t34

46,274
0

$o
0

(r4,93r)
ß2.597\

$20,000
100,000

0
0

$40,000
400,000

0
125.000

$625,000
90,000
50,000

550,000
10,000

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

$2.599

588

97
0

161

0
0
0

I\)-\l

a#r2-za e. lnfiltration Repair
çzrzr¡o b. Pond Dredging & Relining
ø-717s4o c. OM Treatment Pond Rehab404 Grant-FEMA
*æot-¿. d. OM Treatment Pond-Storm Damage-FEMA

rOTAL OCEANA MARIN SEWERSYSTEM

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDITURES

8 LESS FUNDED BY GRANTS, LOANS & REIMBURSEMENTS
{Accrued}/Deferred

a. RW Expansion - Central Service Area SRF Loan'
b. RW Expansion - Central Service Area Granf
c. MSN Aqueduc{ Caltrans Reimb-Segment 824
d. OfficefYard Building Renovation'?

FUNDING BY OTHERS (ACCRUEDYDEFERRED

Received
a. RW Expansion - Central Service Area SRF Loan'
o. RW Expansion - Central Service Area Granf
c. MSN Aqueduc{ Caltrans Reimb-Segment 82'
d. Office/Yard Building Renovation'?

FUNDING BY OTHERS RECEIVED

NET PROJECT EXPENDITURES

$0
3,1 03

0
0

$86,044

$22.347.002

(s2,227,o6s)
(43,026)

(1,585)
(52.597)

$3,103 $266,559 $565,000 $298,441 $352,603

8s2.572 $2,290,587 $7,770,000 $s,492,759 $24,637,588

$0

(2,01

$0
0
0

0

0
2)
0

($2,324,277) ($2,012) $2,256,749 $0 ($2,256,74s) ($67,528)

:

($4,883,337) $0 ($2,227 ,O6s) ($2,227 ,O6el $0 ($7,1 1 0,406)
(s,s88,079) 0 (43,026) ($43,026) 0 (6,031,105)

(59,974)0000(59,974)
0 0 0 (250,000) (250,000) 0

$9,091,335 $90,56



NORTH MARIN WATER D¡STRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2018

COST THRU DECEMBER

2018Descri E 2018

Notqs to Gaoital lmorovement Proiects Schedule:
(1) FYf 8 Radio Read Meter Retrofrt cost funded by $4.6M Loan. Loan or¡ginat¡on fee is gBS,300
(2) Office/Yard Refurbish to be funded by Bank Loan.
(3) $1 1.7M RW Central Expansion funded by Federal Grants, SRF Loan, local

contribution & Marin Country CIub contribution. Debt serv¡ce paid from FRC Funds.
Fund 00% Caltrans.

FYTD FY 18/19

BUDGET

tÞccouÈñ\manciaþffi 1 9!veNstdec 1 a

(OVERYUNDER TOTAL
COST

N)
æ

Novato Water Gapital Projects
Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects
Wqst Marin Water Capital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

32o/o

88o/o

4o/o

47%

CIP SUMMARY-GROSS EXPENDITURES B

559266

FYTD TotalCurrent Month
942

103
Gross

120,000
1,325,000

$1,865,s57
1 06,1 60
52,310

2,599
9,928

43o/o24

CIP SUT'MARY.NET EXPENDITURES:

Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects
West Marin Water Capital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Gapital Projects

4%
-5%

47o/o

c
't7t18

FYTD Total

103
Net

559

$5,5r0,000
(2, r 50,095)
1,325,000

$74,930
2,599
9,928

1 06,1 60
52,310

SERVICES/STUDIEScoNs
a.

b.

f.

s.
h.

k.

t.

Novato Creek Steelhead Recovery
Local Water Supply Enhancement Study
Novato Water Master Plan Update
Cost of Service Study Peer Review
Stafford Lake Water Rights Update
STP Efficiency lmprovements
Novato Asset Management Study
Surplus Property
Dig¡tize West Marin Water Facility Maps

45,121
0

76,946
0
0
0

50,336
200

0
0

2,422
't1,944

0
0

209
0
0

336
0

59,290
11,9M

0
608

12,800
0

0
150,000
30,000
30,000
50,000
75,000

0
0
0

(336)
150,000
(2e,2eo)
18,056
50,000
74,392

(12,800)
0

45,457
0

136,236
't1,944

0
608

63,1 36
200

17

50)

-00

1 -1055{0 50

$86,026

rveyLake

-1059{0

405740

-7039+2

r4060-00

1 -4063¡0

1407S0



North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

North Marin water District Financial statement Notes
Notel-RestrictedCash

Gonnection Fee Fund: Cash available from collection of Connection Fees. The fee is charged to
developers based upon the estimate of cost necessary to construct capacity to serve the new
development. These funds are restricted by law for expansion of the water oi sewer facilities within the
service area where the development occurs. Funds are disbursed from the Connection Fee Reserve as
expenditures are incurred to increase system capacity to serve new development. The fund balance
accrues interest monthly.

Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund: ln December 2002 the Sonoma County Water Agency sold $6.g
million (par) of 3O-year revenue bonds to finance the Wohler to Forestville Pipeline. NMWD's åhare of the
debt is $844,050 ($6,800,000 X 11.2 / 90.4). ln January 2003 the District established this designated cash
and corresponding reserve account and transferred $844,050 of FRC money into the fund. Íhe Wohler
Pipeline Financing Fund is credited with interest monthly. The restricted casñ Wohler pipeline Financing
Fund account and the related reserve account have been closed as of 10/31/18.

Gollector #6 Financing Fund: The Sonoma County Water Agency received a $15.8 million State
Revolving Fund loan commitment at an interest rate of 2.8o/o repalablé over 20 years for construction of
Collector #6. NMWD's share of Coilector #6 is $1,950,000 ($lS,8OO,OOO X 11 .Zi gO.q. tn January 2003the District established this designated cash and corresponding reserve account and transferred
$1,950,000 of FRC money into the fund. The Collector #6 Finañcing Fund is credited with interest
monthly. The restricted cash Collector #6 Financing Fund account and the related reserve account have
been closed as of 10/31/18.

AMI Project Fund: The District received a $4.6 million loan from Chase Bank in March 201g to fund the
Automated Meter lnformation System Project. The 15-year,2.690/o annual percentage rate loan requires
semi-annual payments and will be fully amortized on 3t1t2033. The fund is reduced by pioject
expenditures and once all loan proceeds are disbursed, the fund will be closed. The fund balance does
not accrue interest.

Revenue Bond Redemption Fund: Comprised of one year of debt service as required by West Marin
revenue bond covenants. These funds are restricted for payment of bond prìncipal, interest and
administration fees. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

lank of lllarin Project Fund: The District received an $g million loan from the Bank of Marin in October
2011 to fund the Aqueduct En"rgy Efficiency Project. The 2O-year,3.54o/o annual percentage rate loan
reguires monthly payments of $46,067 and will be fully amortized on 1012712031. ln june ZOilZtne Board
authorized reallocating $1 million of this loan to West Marin Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed
for previous loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects and ths remainder to fund the solids
Handling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant. The unexpended fund balance accrues
interest monthly.

Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund: The State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan agreement required the
District to agree to establish and maintain a Water Recycliñg Capital Réserve Fînd (WRCRË) for the
g¡!?lslon, major repair, or replacement of the Deer lslanã Recycled Water Treatment plant. The
WRCRF is maintained in compliance with the "Policy for lmplementing the State Revolving fund for
Construction of Wastewater Treatment Facilities" in efiect at the time thè agreement was signeO by the
District. The September2003 Recycled Water Master Plan prepared by Nutã Engineering reõomm"nded
limiting the reserve to fund replacement of the RWF electrical and 

-mechanicãl 
equip-nrent (including

transmission pumps) as they wear out. The cost of said equipment was $1,4g3,000 which, at Nute'Ë
recommended 6% interest rate factor and 25-year life, renders an annual funding requirement$115,000.
The fund balance accrues interest monthly.

Recycled Water Gapital Replacement and Expansion Fund: The 2011 lnteragency Agreements for
Recycled Water between NSD, LGVSD & NMWD require that any payments to tñe D¡str¡n-utor (NMWD)
þV tne End User (Consumers) in excess of actual costs (marginãt þayments) shalt be depositeà in thiéfund. Operation and Maintenance Costs are defined as t'he actuat'coit of: lábor (includinþ general and
administrative overhead plus tools and supplies normally applied), equipment'and veh-icie charges,
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North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

consumables (such as chemicals and electrical power), and spare parts and/or replaced components
necessary to reliably treat and deliver recycled water to the End Users. Operation and Mainienance
costs do not include costs for major capital replacement or process changes.

Tax Receipts held in Marin County Treasury: Balance of tax proceeds collected and disbursed by the
county of Marin for repayment of the olema (oL-2) general obligation bond debt. The county creo¡ts
interest to these funds quarterly.

STP SRF Reserve Fund - Marin County-Treasury: The 2004 Stafford Treatment plant State Revolving
Fund (SRF) loan agreement requires the District to build a Reserve Fund equal to one year of paymentð
($1,044,474) in the Marin county Treasury during the first ten years of thé 2o-year repayment period.
Every January 1 and_July 1, commencing January 1,2010, the District deposits w¡tn tne Cbunty iOo/o ot
the semi-annual SRF payment. The County credits the fund with interest quarterly, and will use the
Reserve to pay the last 2 semi-annual SRF loan payments.

RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreements for the
seven Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loans made for expansion of the Recycléd Water System
dìstribution system require that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt särvice
($614,299) prior to the construction completion date.

RWS Central SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreement for the Clean
Water State Revolving Fund Loan made for expansion of the Recycled Water Syãtem distribution system
requires that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one yeáfs debt servióe ($255,373) priorio the
construction completion date.

Note2-DesiqnatedCash

Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund: Commencing July 2011, the District began self-insuring its
workers' compensation liability. The savings accrued through self-insuring the liability is reserved in-this
fund for possible future c,laims expense. The District carries a workers' ðompensation excess policy for
claims that exceed $1,000,000. See schedute on page 21.

Retiree Medical Benefits Fund: NMWD pays the cost of health insurance for retirees between the ages
of 55 and 65 and spouse under any group plan offered by CaIPERS. The retiree must be at least 55 ãnd
have a minimum of 12 years of NMWD service at the date of retirement. NMWD's contribution toward the
chosen plan is capped in the same manner as all other NMWD employees in the same class. Goverage
terminates for the spouse when the spouse becomes eligible for Meáicare, or for both the retiree añd
spouse when the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare. When the retiree or spouse becomes eligible for
Medicare, NMWD pays_ up to the couple annuitant rate, which is capped at $3;830 per year ($19ñnonth).
ln August 2003, NMWD transferred $2.5S million ($2.3 million for cuirent retirees pìus $ZSO,'ó00 for future
retirees) from unrestricted cash into a reserve to fund this obligation. ln 2010 the Board directed staff to
add $1,500 per employee annually as a payroll overhead to accrue and accelerate amortization of this
liability. The accrual is maintained as a Long-Term Liability entitled Retiree Health Benefits payable. The
Total OPEB Liability has a balance of $4.1M. ln 2017 an Actua¡al Analysis calculated run¡WO's totat
actuarial liability at $5.6 million. The Retiree Medical Benefits cash fund earns interest monthly.
Accounting standards require that the $5.6M reserve by fully funded in 20 years.

Drought Contingency (Rate Stabilization) Fund: ln August 2008, the Board directed staff to establish
this reserve with $135,000 from the Self-lnsured Workers Compensation Fund for the Novato district to
draw upon during dry years. A threshold of 3.2 billion gallons of potable consumption was established asa benchmark for 'normal' years. During any fiscal year that water sales volume exceeds 3.28G, the
incremental revenue generated is deposited into the Drought Contingency Reserve. ln those years when
sales volume falls below the benchmark, funds are withdrãwn from the reserve to maintain thê budgeted
revenue forecast. The goal is to build a reserve equal to 20% (currently $2,500,000) of budgeted añnual
watercommodity sales. ln FY09 $50,335 was added to the reserve. Thê fund was fully deplãted in Fy10.
The fund balance accrues interest monthly,

Maintenance Accrual Fund: Established in FY91 to provide a source of maintenance money for
replacement of treatment, storage, transmission and distribution facilities as they wear out. The annual
contribution from operating reserves was initially $200,000. Net polybutylene claìm set¡ement proceeds
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North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

of $671,060 were closed into the fund in FY93. ln FY94 the annual contribution was reduced to $100,000.
The District's goal is to build a reserve equal to 10% of the net book value of Novato's existing plant,
currently $7.0M. Funds are borrowed from the Maintenance Accrual Fund to offset the sho-rtfall ¡n
unrestricted Cash & lnvestments. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Operating Reserve Fund: This reserve, com$rìsed of four monlhs of budgeted operating expenditures
(less depreciation) as recommended by the District's financial advisors, serves to enðure'adequate
working capital for operating, capital, and unanticipated cash flow needs that arise during the year. The
fund balance does not accrue interest.

Note3-EmploveeLoans

Housing Loans: The District's Employer Assisted Housing Program allows up to $300,000 to be loaned
to an employee for a period of up to 15 years for the purchase of a home within the District service
territory that will enable the employee to respond rapidly to emergencies affecting the operation of the
District. Repayment is due upon sale, termination of employment, or other event as described in the
Program. lnterest on the loan is contingent upon and directly proportional to the appreciation in value
occurring on the purglgsed property. There are four employee-housing loans currenily outstanding
totaling $714,200: a $39,200 loan dated September 2004, a $150,000 lóan dated November 2OOT,á
$250,000 loan dated March 2015, and a $275,000 loan dated June 201g.

Note 4 - Other Lonq Term Receivables

The District entered into a temporary water service agreement with Black point Golf Links in lggg to
provide potable water for StoneTree Golf Course until recycled water was available. ln 2006 the District
received a $4.3 million 2}-year 2.4% SRF loan to finance the Deer lsland Recycled Water project, and
Black Point Partners agreed to pay the District $3,612,640 in bimonthly paymànts of $41 ,i6Z- at 2A%
coinciding with StoneTree's water service payments. The final payment from StoneTree is due in
February 2024.

ln 2015 the District entered into an agreement with Marin Country Club for their share of the pipeline
extension to provide recycled water for the Marin Country Club Golf Course. ln 2016 the District received
I $6 6 million 30-year 1.0% SRF loan to finance the Recycled Water Gentral project, and Marin Country
Club agreed lo pay the District $1,265,295 in bimonthly payments of $8,142 at-1.\yo over 30 years for
their share of the pipeline extension. Marin Country Club also agreed to pay $430,463 of the District,s
local share of the project in bimonthly payments o1$8,242 over 10 years at 2.8%, which is the Novato
Potable Fund's weighted average cost of debt. The payments will coincide with Marin Country Club's
water service payments. Marin Country Club paid the 10 year loan in full in December 2018. ihe finat
payment from Marin country club for the 30 year loan is due in November 2047.

Note 5 - Depreciation

Assets are assigned a useful life based on consultations with the District Chief Engineer and a survey of
other water agencies. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the èstimated useful life of
the various classes of property as follows:

Facilitv
Aqueduct... . ..

Dam..............
Buildings & Structures...
Mains.. . ...

Pumping Equipment.....
Water Treatment Equipment..
Etorage & Transmission (16"+) Facilities... ... ..

Distribution Facilities (includes Pump Stations)... ... ... ... ... ...
Office, Laboratory, Construction & Shop Tools & Equipment.
Vehicles 'l ton or greater.. . ... . .. .

All other vehicles. ,. ...

Sewer Mains...
Sewer Pumps.

Lifejþq¡g)
150
100

40
50
25
20

50

50
10

10

5

40
10
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Note 6 - Capitalization Policv

The Government Finance Officers Association Guide for State and Local Governmenfs recommends that
a capitalization policy incorporate a minimum threshold of $5,000 and an estimated useful life of at least
two years. lt also cautions that federal grant and loan requirements prevent the use of capitalization
thresholds in excess of $5,000. Thus NMWD's capitalization threshold is $5,000:

NoteT-Bond&Loan
Servicinq Schedule for FiscalYear 2018-2019

FY19

Sorvice Area ptlon
lssue
Date Rate

Original
Amount

Payment
Due

lnterest
Exoense

Prlncipal
Paid

6/30/19
Outstanding

Balance
Final
Pmt

1 Novato

2 Novato

3 Novato

RWTP

RW North

6 RW South

7 RW Central

8 PRE

9 Point Reyes

10 WMWater

SRF Loan
STP

Bank
Loan

Marin

Chase Loan

SRF Loan

SRF Loans
(4)

SRF Loans
(3)

SRF Loan

2OO4 2.39o/o $16,528,850

$7,ooo,ooo

$4,600,000

7t1 & 1t1 7tilzg $235,405 $809,069 $9,241,578

2011

201 I
3.54%

2.69%

$4,302,560

$4,37s,605

$5,359,858

$7, I 30,503

$240,000 10t1 & 4t1 4t1t20

$217,800 7t1 & 1tt 7t1t21

$1 ,000,000 27thlmo 1Ot27tg1

West Marin Water Total

FY19 Totat

2Tthlmo 10t27t31 8171,462

311 & 9t1 3/1/33 $116,522

$1,300

$1,750

$25,'t69

$310,580 $4,845,316

000

$13,000 $13,000

$11,000 $34,000

4

5

2006 2.4%

2013 2.60/o

Novato Total $523,389 $1 ,359,649 $18,446,894

6/19 6rt9t27 $52,543 $220,824 $1,968,463

$194,743 $3,157,142Varies Varies $87,149

Varies Varies $94,132 $238,275 $4,040,446

12t18 12t3'U47 $53,287 9206,427 96,924,076

Recycled Water Total $287,111 $860,269 $16,090,127

2013

2016

2.2o/o

1.0%

PRE-I
Revenue

PR-6
Revenue

Bank Marin
Loan

1980 5.0%

1981 5.0o/o

2012 3.54o/o $710,934

$28,219 $69,590 $757,934

$838,719 $2. 289,508 $35,294,955

1. ln April 2004 the Calif_ornia State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.3go/o 2}-year loan for
reconstruction of the Statford Water Treatment Plant. The project was completed in Fy0-g with repair
of the Outlet Tower Sluice Gate, lnterest paid during construction totaled $1,636,328. The lôan
covenants require an annual reserve fund contribution of $104,447 (10% of the annual debt service
obligation) be deposited into the Marin County Treasury during each of the first ten years of the
repayment period. Debt service is funded 25o/o by Facility Reserve Charges. The first payment was
made in December 2009.

2. ln October 201 1 Bank of Marin made a 2}-year 3.54o/o (APR) loan of $8 million to fund the District's
share of the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. See Note 15 below, and note to loan g above.

3. ln March 2018 Chase Bank made a 1b-year 2.69% (ApR) loan of $4.6 million to fund the District's
Automated Meter lnformation System project.
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4. ln August 2006 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.4o/o 2o-year loan of
$4,264,545 for construction of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Facility. With the addition of $38,01S
in Construction Period lnterest, the loan principal totaled $4,302,560. The project was completed in
June 2007, and the first payment was made June 19, 2008.

5. ln July 2011 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of four 2.6Vo 20-
year loans which totaled $4,375,605 for the Recycled Water North Service Area Expansion project.
The projects were completed on October 31, 2012, and the first payment was made'in Novembér of
2012.

6. ln March 2012 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of three 22%
29-year loans totaling $5,361,952 for the Recycled Water South Service Area Expansion project. The
projects were completed on September 4, 2013, and the first payment was made in Decémber of
2013.

7. ln May 2016 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 1.Oo/o 3o-year loan of
$6,592,295 for the Recycled Water Central Service Area Expansion. 

'ihe 
project will be iompleted in

December 2017, and the first payment will be made December 31 ,2019.
8. The Paradise Ranch Estates private water system was created by David Adams and Sons in 1gS2 to

provide water to 85 homes in the PRE subdivision located nortñ of lnverness Park. problems with
water quality and quantity developed and in 1969 the Marin County Health Department issued a boil-
water order to all customers of the company.ln 1972 the County declared a moratorium on issuance
of building permits.. A suit by property owners resulted in an agreement reached in Marin Superior
Court in late 1978 directing Adams to finance a District feasibilityìtudy for the takeover of the syit"r.
This culminated in _formation of lmprovement District PRE-1 and án election authorizing isáue of
$240,000 of 5o/o 4O-year revenue bonds, which, in conjunction with a $720,000 Farmérs Home
Administration grant, fin-anced system rehabilitation. Service was provided from the point Reyes
System by installation of an additional well, expansion of the treatment plant, and a 6-inch pipeúne
connection at the lnverness Park pump station extending 1.6 miles along Sir Francis Drake Bouievard
to the newly reconstructed Paradise Ranch Estates distribution system. On 4l22lg0 the USDA
purchased the revenue bond issue in its entirety.

I' ln 1981 work commenced on rehabilitating the Point Reyes lnverness Park water system. 18,g65 feet
of pipeline was either replaced or installed, a 300,000-gallon tank was added ¡n pó¡nt Reyes Station
gnd a 100,000-gallon tank was added in lnverness Park. Total cost of these improvements was
$820,01 5' A72% grant combined with.a $217,800 5o/o A}-year revenue bond acquire d Bl2gtgl by the
Farmers Home Administration financed the project.

10' ln June 2012 the Board authorized reallocating $1 million of the Bank of Marin loan to West Marin
Wate¡ to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed for loans to fund Long Range lmprovement projects
and the remainder to fund the Solids Handling Facility at the Point ReyeJ Water Treatment Élant.
See note to loan 2 above.

Note 8 - Unemplovment lnsura,nce Reserve

NMWD uses the "Reimbursable Method" of paying for Unemployment Costs. Under this method, the
District reimburses the State Employment Development Depariment for all unemployment benefits paid
on our behalf. The reserve is maintained at an amount equal to the higher of the'average claim amòunt
paid over the last 5 years or 52 times the maximum weekly benefil amount (currenly $4S0 x 52 =
$23,400).

Note 9 - Pavroll Benefits

Payroll Benefits Payable includes Employ_er and Employee paid payroll taxes; vacation, sick, floating
holiday and comp time leave, Section 125 payments; cancer, long ierm care and disability insurancé
premiums; union dues; and employee benefit fund.

ln the event an improvement district expends all of its Undesignated Funds, it shall borrow funds from that
improvement district's Board Designated Fund reserves to meet ongoing requirements. ln the event an
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improvement district expends all of its Board Designated Fund reserves, it may receive a loan from the
Novato lmprovement District in an amount sutficient to meet its ongoing requirements. Restricted Funds
shall not be used to finance ongoing normal operating expenses.

No interest shall be paid by an improvement district on funds borrowed from that improvement district's
Board Designated Fund reserves. lnterest on loans from the Novato lmprovement Distiict shall be paid by
the recipient district to the Novato district based upon the outstanding loan balance at the close of thä
previous accounting period. lnterest shall bé calculated at the higher oti t. Tfre weighted àverage interest
rate of Novato improvement district debt (2.78% at6t30l17); or 2.The average inteËst rate earned on the
District treasury since the close of the previous accounting period; plus $50 [er month.

Note 11 - Budqet Auomentations

Note l2 - Prior Period Adiustment

Note l3 - Explanation of Financial Statement Comoonents

The District's financial statement is comprise,cl of four components: 1) Statement of Net position, 2)
Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Òombined, 3) lncome Statement and CasÉ
Flow by Service Area, and 4) Notes to the Financial Statements, This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

The Statement of Net Position (page 4) reports the District's assets and liabilities and provides
information about the nature and amount of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the
District's creditors (liabilities). The difference between assets anO lian¡l¡ties ii reported ajnef position.
over time, increases or decreases in the fund balance may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Gombined (page B) compares fiscal
year{o-date performance against the Board approved annual budget - presenteà ¡ñ tné aOoËted budget
format. This Sources and Uses of Funds Statement varies from tñe income statement in that it includls
capital expenditures, debt principal repayment, connection fee revenue, and cash infusions from debt
issuance.

The lncome Statement and Cash Flow by _service Area (page 9) presents the net income (loss) for the
fiscal year{o-date (FYTD) period for each of the District's iouiservice areas. The income and expenses
on this report_ are presented- in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting principles lGnn'n¡ anO
comply with Governm.ental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements. Accbrdingly, all ìncomé and
expenses are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. This statement measures the sulcess of each se-rvice area's õperations and
can be used to determine whether the service area has successfully recovered all costs through user fees
and other charges.

Also included at the bottom of page g is a statement of Cash Flow by Service Area. The primary purpose
of this statement is to reconcile in an informative manner the differen-ce between the net iircomellioså¡ tor
the period of each service area with the resultant change in cash balance that occurred over the same
period.

Notes to the Financial Statements (page 31) provide a summary of significant accounting policies and
assumptions and other information of value to the financial statement reader.

Other Supplementary lnformation includes Detail lncome Statements presented in accordance with
GAAP for each of the four service areas (pages 10, 14, 16, 19). These statements present income and
expenditures in close detail for further analysis. Other supplementary schedules 

'of 
note include the

Vehicle Fleet Analysis. (page 25), Equipment Expenditures ipage 22) ând Capital lmprovement project
Expenditures (page 27), which show outlays to date, compared witn núOget autËority.
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Note 14 -Gonnection Fee Transfers from Novato Water To Recvcled Water

The following Connection Fee (FRC) reserve amounts have been transferred to the Recycled Water fund

Expans¡on Local Share SRFRWF Expansion
t ' r't l

Loan SRFLoan CIP Total

Transfef

ExecutedNorth South Ceritral NBWRA

FYOT

FYOS

FYO9

FYI O

FY11

FY12

FY1 3

FY14

FYl 5

FY1 6

FY17

FY1 8

FY1 9

$133,659r

$233,478\

$236,291

$o

$265,500\

$723,525\
$ I 7,563r

$o

$4,024r
(E¿,oz¿f

$66,72sr
$362,524\

$5,071 ,512'

$133,659

$ I ,970,400

$1,s50,200

$688,916

$806,664

$1,230,940

$5,747,513

$133,659

$1 ,175,098r
(sz,osol

$802,390\

$l,550,200

$688,916

$806,664

$1,230,940

$5,747,513

,922

829,725

$50,478

$ 1 50,455

$75,1 98

$ 1 33,31 s\
$ 1 1 5,88¡t
$31 5,023

$63,035

$38,2A¡t
$ 1 02,842

$1g4,0e6'
$38,908

s22,795

$22,795

922,795

$22,795

822,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,7e5

$22,795

$22,795

s22,795

$29,725

' ç72,271

$ 1 73,250

$23'l ,652

$156,114

$637,656

$464,s72t $Boz,sgo

$soo,s2gt $1,5s0,200

$6l4,2ggt $688,916

$614,299r $806,664

$614,29g' $g6,6a7t $r,230,940

$6 14,299t $5,747,513

$245 776 ,922,527

7

17 4,3 $6

$603,428 $1,006.589 $1,313,859 $250,744 $3,668,072 $36,G87 67 $10,205,767 $10,205,767

Note 15 -Debt Service Goveraqe Ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio is the ratio of net income/(loss) plus interest expense, depreciation, and
connection fee revenue for the fiscal year to the sum of the fiscal year's principal and interest payments
on the District's total debt.

Budget
FYIS FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19

Net lncome/(Loss)

Depreciation

lnterest Expense

Connection Fees

Total Available For Debt Service

$1,050,523

$3,183,725

$847,951

$801,600

$91,719

$3,286,353

$807,035

$278,690

$597,600

$3,416,507

$757,935

$1,860,520

$3,434,069

$833,197

$1,455,400

$1 ,1 59,000

$3,528,000

$850,000

$733,000$1.034,585

$5,883,799 84,463,797 $5,806,627 $7,583,186 $6,270,000

AnnualDebt Service $2,5U,473 $2,528,938 $2,527,O21 ç2,201,451 $3,129,000

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2.32 1.77 2.30 3.45 2.01
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Item #6

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

February 1,2019

^þSubj: Proposed FY19120 Budget Review Schedule
t:\ac\word\budgst\1g\proposed budget rev¡sw sched fy19.docx

RECOMMENDED AGTION: Approve

FINANC¡AL IMPACT: None

PROPOSED BUDGET REVIEW SCHEDULE FY 2019-20

Approved bY G

tlt t1

Date Location Item Service Area RevieWApprove

April 16 Novato
Capital Project & Equipment
Budqet Schedules Novato/RWAffM/OM Review

Mav 7 Novato
Operations & Maintenance and
Capital Budqet - District Novato/RWA/r/M/OM Review

Mav 21 Novato
Operations & Maintenance and
Capital Budqet - District Novato/RWMM/OM Review

June 4 Novato
Operations & Maintenance and
Capital Budqet - District Novato/RWA/r/M/OM Review (if needed)

June 18 Novato

Operations & Maintenance and
Capital Budget - Novato and
Recycled Water Novato/Recvcled Water Approve

June 25 Novato

Operations & Maintenance and
Capital Budget - West Marin
Water West Marin Water Aoorove

June 25 Pt Reves

Operations & Maintenance and
Capital Budget - Oceana Marin
Sewer Oceana Marin Sewer Approve

Date





Item #7

To: Board of Directors

From: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

MEMORANDUM

February 1,2019

W
Subj: Proposed FY19120 Rate Hearing Schedule

t:\ac\budgetw - 20 1 9.2o\proposed rats hearing schsdulê fy20.docx

RECOII,IMENDED AGTION: Approve

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None

PROPOSED RATE HEARING SCHEDULE FY 2019-20

Approved by

Date zltlfi

Action

Novato Potable
& Recycled

Water

West Marin
Water & Oceana

Marin Sewer

Consider Proposed Rates March 5,2019 April 16,2019

Approve Letter to Customers March 19,2019 May 7,2019

Customer Letter Postmark Deadlinel March 29,2019 May 10, 2019

Rate Hearing May 21,2019 June 25,2019

Rate Effective June 1,2019 July 1 ,2019

1 To meet minimum 45-day hearing notice requirement letters must be postmarked on or before the date shown





Item #8

MEMORANDUM

To:

From

Re:

Board of Directorr , February 1,2019

Rocky Vogler, Chief Engineer W
Amend Consulting Services Agreement - Cinquini & Passarino, lnc.
RiNON JOB No ISSUES\Consultants\C¡nquini & Passar¡no\Agmts_BOD Mêmos\2o19\A9mts_BOD Memos\C&P Amend Contract BOD momo 2-5-19,doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize General Manager to Amend the Consulting Services
Agreement with Cinquini & Passarino, lnc.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $30,000

From time to time, it is necessary for the District to request surveying services from a

California Licensed Land Surveyor. On April 4,2017, the Board approved an Agreement with

Cinquini & Passarino, lnc. (C&P) and established an initial budget of $30,000. C&P is a
professional land survey firm located in Santa Rosa, CA. The purpose of this memo is to

request an amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement with C&P.

Since 2017, primary work performed by C&P under the current Agreement includes the

following projects and tasks with associated costs:

. So. Novato Blvd. & Rowland to Sunset Pkwy $ 6,200

o Bear Valley Topo Survey - Upsize 4" Pipeline $10,000

. PRE Tank 4A Land Surveying $ 9,990

Remaining Balance out of ($30,000) $ 3,810

This amendment will increase funds for C&P to provide as-needed land surveying

services, and to extend the term of the agreement to December 31, 2021. The first project to be

authorized under the amended agreement will be for the San Mateo lnlet/Outlet project for a

proposed fee of $4,900.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board authorize the General Manager to amend the Consulting Services

Agreement between NMWD and Cinquini and Passarino, lnc., and increase the budget by

$30,000.

Approved by G

Date





MEMORANDUM

Item #9

February 2,2Q19To:

From

Re:

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Man

Approve General Services Agre ent - Assoc. Right of Way Services, lnc.
r:\non job no issues\ænsultants\assoc right of wây seru¡ces\aMs genl servs agmt bod mem o 2_2-19.doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize General Manager to execute a General Consulting
Services Agreement with Associated Right of Way Services
lnc.

FINANCIAL IMPAGT: $25,000

The purpose of this memo is to request a General Consulting Services (GCS)

Agreement with Associated Right of Way Services lnc (ARWS). ARWS is a consulting firm with

specialized expertise in right of way and real estate services (Attachment 1). From time to time,

the District is in need of specialized right-of-way expertise not readily available within the

District's in-house staff for:

1. Unauthorized Encroachment on District Property

2. Negotiation of Permanent Easements

3. Eminent Domain Support Services and

4. Surplus Property Appraisals/Appraisal Reviews

Attached is an agreement for ARWS to provide miscellaneous right of way services on

an as needed basis with a not{o-exceed limit of $25,000 (Attachment 2). ARWS is a Bay Area

based consulting firm located in Pleasant Hill, Ca. Over the past 30 years, ARWS has

completed hundreds of projects in the North Bay for agencies including the City of Novato,

Marin County, Sonoma County Water Agency and Novato Sanitary District.

To best meet project demands, a new GCS Agreement is desired and will be executed

with individual task orders on a job-by-job basis. The first task order to be funded through this

Agreement will be for assistance related to easement acquisition for the FY19-FY20 budgeted

Gallagher Well No. 2 project.

Approved by GM

Date

RECOMMENDATION

I



New GSA with ARWS BOD Memo
February 2,2019
Page 2 of 2

That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a General Consulting

Services Agreement between NMWD and Associated Right of Way Services, lnc with a not-to-

exceed limit of $25,000.



ASSOCIATFD
RIGHT OT WAY
SERVICËS. INC.

2300 Contra Costa Blvd.

Suite 525

Pleasant Hill, CA 94523

925.691.8500 p/,one
925 691.6505 fax

w\ /w arws com

January 23,201,9

Drew Mclntyre
General Manager
North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place

Novato, CA 94945

Re Miscellaneous General Right of Way Contract
Right of Way Services

Dear Mr. Mclntyre:

Associated Right of Way Services, lnc., (AR/WS) respectfully submits our firm brochure, project experience,

references, and resumes in to provide right of way services to the North Marin Water District (Client). AR/WS will
provide right of way services on an on-call basis. Right of way services include, project management, cost estimating,

appraisal, appraisal review, acquisition, and relocation advisory experience.

AR/WS is wellsuited to perform services requested by the Client including, unauthorized encroachment on district

property, negotiation of permanent easements, eminent domain support services, and surplus property

appraisals/appraisal reviews. To expand on our areas of expertise related to the above requested services, we have

included a scope of worl< as an attachment.

Since l-989, AR/WS has successfully completed hundreds of projects within the North Bay for local, state, and federal

agencies, special districts, transportation authorities, and engineering firms. AR/WS North Bay county clients

include Napa, Marin, and Sonoma; and our North Bay city clients include American Canyon, Dixon, Fairfield, Napa,

Novato, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, San Rafael, Santa Rosa, Sausalito, St. Helena, Vacaville, and Vallejo. AR/WS has

also provided right of way services to special districts, transportation authorities, and others in the North Bay

including, Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District, Marin County Flood Control Water Control District, Napa County Flood

Control and Water Control District, Napa County Transportation & Planning Agency, Napa Sanitation District,

Novato Sanitary District, Sausalito-Marin City Sanitary District, Sonoma Marin Area Rail Transit, and Vallejo

Sanitation and Flood Control District.

We have reviewed the Standard Consulting Services Agreement and included our requested revisions to the

agreement. Feel free to contact me if you wish to discuss or if you have any questions and thank you for including

AR/WS on your team for right of way services.

Sincerely,

'---t ttli;;ra*7(c*.Ø,,o_

Larry Castellanos
Vice President
(92s) 691-8s00
LCastella nos@ a rws.co m

FlTrSrtlrr'*rl-ñz

ATTACHMENT 1



Scopr op WoRx

AR/WS staff propose to provide services to the North Marin Water District (Client) in the following areas

Unauthorized Encroachment on District Property

Negotiation of Permanent Easements

Eminent Domain Support Services

Su rplus P roperty Appra isals/Appra isa I Reviews

Our experience and scope of work of the above areas is outlined below

t. Unauthorized encroachment on d¡str¡ct propertv
AR/WS has extensive experience providing encroachment removal and support assistance. An example of our

experience with encroachment removal and support services is our worl< for the San Francisco Public Utilities

Commission. Since 2012 AR/WS has teamed with the SFPUC Right of Way Management to build a successful

encroachment removal program and has provided encroachment removal and support services on L00+ properties.

ENCRoACHMENT REMoVAL AND SUPPoRT SERVIcES SCoPE oF WoRK

- AR/WS will provide field inspections and documentation of unauthorized encroachments based on target
areas determined by the Client.

* Provide notifications to owners on Client letterhead of encroachment violations with demand for date
specific removal.

* Serve as Client contact for owners to respond to explain encroachment removal policy and administer
encroachment removal plan.

* Provide follow up phone calls with owners to ensure compliance with the Client's encroachment removal
policy.

2. Negotiation of permanent easements

AR/WS acquisition consultants are experts in negotiating permanent, and partialeasements. All AR/WS acquisition

agents are currently licensed brokers or salespersons by the State of California Bureau of Real'Estate. AR/WS

acquisition agents also hold notary public commissions. The majority of AR/WS acquisition agents have successfully

completed a course in the Uniform Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act. Our acquisition agents

have training related to acquisition of propefty for public projects. Many of our acquisition agents have earned a

professional designation or certification from the IRWA. Our scope of negotiations and acquisition of permanent

easements is as follow:

NEeornrrorus / Aceursrrrorus ScopE or Wonr
, AR/WS to prepare acquisition documents. Said documents include, but are not limited to, offer letter,

appraisal summary statement and summary of the basis for just compensation, summary statement
pertaining to the acquisition of real property or an interest therein, purchase agreement, deed, public

acquisition brochure and goodwill information sheet.
. AR/WS will negotiate to acquire easements that are identified by Client.
* All acquisition documents to receive Client's written approval as to form prior to use in the field. lf

agreement with all owners and other required interests cannot be reached, AR/WS will advise Client that
negotiations have reached an impasse. The Client will consider scheduling of an action in eminent domain
including the required public necessity hearing. AR/WS will provide condemnation support as needed and

requested, budget allowing. AR/WS will initiate and maintain individual acquisition files.
* lf settlement with owners and other required interests is reached pursuant to the Client approved appraisal

or Client approved administrative settlement, AR/WS will prepare a Memorandum of Settlement for
transmittal to Client. lf an administrative settlement appears to be prudent, AR/WS will prepare a

t
2
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settlement discussion memorandum reviewing the issues. This memorandum will require Client written
approval before implementation of any settlement agreement.
AR/WS will establish with Client a process of coordinating escrow closings and reviewing escrow
instructions. Where there are escrow closings, preparation of escrow instructions will be completed by title
company. Approval of conditions of title and escrow instructions, including but not limited to, "subject to"
title exceptions, will be done by Client.
All discussions for the acquisition of property or an interest therein will be directed to result in the payment
of just compensation.
AR/WS will make every reasonable effort to acquire property on behalf of the Client expeditiously through
agreement with its owner and to avoid litigation. This may necessitate greater levels of effort in the
negotiations phase and, where appropriate, should continue after eminent domain has been initiated.
Client will provide ongoing feedback to AR/WS as to authorization for settlements.

3. Eminent domain support services

Our appraisers, acquisition agents, and lelocation advisors have worked with legal counsel on various projects
where the condemnation process was initiated. Our detailed and organized files, diary logs and support material
have been used by many attorneys in preparation foreminent domain actions.

Evr rtrl Erur DoMArru CooRDrNATroN Scopr oF WoRK

AR/WS consu lta nts will work with the Client's staff a nd lega I cou nsel to in itiate a nd com plete condem nation

proceed ings.

We will assist in preparation of documentation establishing the basis to use the power of eminent domain,

including evidence about: the necessity of the project; the project location being most compatible with the
greatest public good and least private injury; and the necessity of the subject propedy for the project.

4. Surplus propertv appraisals/appraisal reviews

The majority of AR/WS appraisal reports are prepared for the acquisition of property for public projects. However,

a significant port¡on of our appraisals are prepared for property disposition. AR/WS appraisers are certified with the
State of California Bureau of Real Estate Appraisers. All AR/WS appraisers have successfully completed a course in

the appraisal of partial acquisitions for public agencies, an easement valuation course, a course on the Uniform

Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act, and each appraiser has training related to California eminent

domain law. The majority of our appraisers have earned a professional designation or certification from the IRWA

andlor the Appraisal lnstitute. One AR/WS appraiser has earned the prestigious MAldesignation. AR/WS appraisers

have bacl<grounds in appraising various types of properties including residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural

and special uses, and are experienced in appraising property for public acquisitions through the eminent domain

process.

APPRAISAL SCoPE oF WORK

* Appraisals to be provided addressed and delivered to Client staff as directed.
* Appraisals to be prepared in accordance with California Eminent Domain Law; California Government Code

Section 726Oel seq.; and the Uniform Standards of ProfessionalAppraisal Practice requirements, except as

jurisdictionally exempt, the Caltrans Right of Way Manual, and 49 CFR, Part 24.

* The owner or a designated representative will be invited by the appraiser to accompany him/her during the

inspection of the property.
* Appraisals to be prepared in an Appraisal Report format in accordance with Uniform Standards of

Professional Appraisal Practice, Standard Rule 2-2.



Appraisal is for the "Fair Market Value" of the property as per California Code of Civil Procedure, Section

1263.320.

The market value of the property taken will not include any increase or decrease in the value of the property

that is attributable to any of the following:

+ The project for which the property is taken;

- > The eminent domain proceeding in which the property is taken;

- > Any preliminary actions of the acquiring authority relating to the taking of the property.

Appraiser will not give consideration to, nor include in their appraisal, any allowance for relocation benefits

of personal property.

lf updated values are requested, appraisal services will be billed on an hourly basis in accordance with the

AR/WS Fee Schedule. (Optional Service)

lf revisions are made to the propefty requirements during the appraisal process or upon completion of the

report, appraisal time to address these revisions will be billed on an hourly basis in accordance with the
AR/WS Fee Schedule. (Optional Service)

Expert witness related services, including preparation for and appearances at depositions, court,

arbitrations/mediations, hearings, and testimony will be billed on an hourly basis in accordance with the
AR/WS Fee Schedule. (Optional Service)

lf properties are split oradded, additional appraisal reports may be required. (Optional Service)

AppRnrsnr Revrrw Scope oF WoRK

Appraisal reviews are required on federally funded projects. AR/WS staff appraisers have experience preparing

appraisal reviews.

u Upon receiving appraisal reports, an office review of the reports using the various standards prescribed by

the Federal and State Uniform Acts, Federal Highway Administration, Caltrans appraisal procedures,

Uniform Standards of ProfessionalAppraisalPractice (USPAP)and the California Eminent Domain codes will
be completed.

* A checklist identifying the various requirements of the appraisal reports will be used to ensure that the
reports contain all of the prescribed requirements.

* Review appraiser will prepare a summary of the appraisal process and provide comments regarding any

omissions or problems with the reports, such as lack of reasonable support for the appraisal conclusions.
ø Review appraiser will make initial call to the appraiser to inform the appraiser that the reports are being

reviewed. Comments will be provided to the appraiser for discussion.

^ Schedule a field review and if needed schedule a meeting with the appraiser.
N Communicate with the Client to clarify potential issues, resolve problems and notify Client of progress.
, lf required by Client, review comments will be provided to Client at the same time they are sent to the

a ppra ise r.

n Upon satisfactory completion of the appraisal reports, a review certificate report will be prepared.

w
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CorurRncr Revrsrorus

AR/WS respectfully requests the following contract revisions to the Standard Consulting Services Agreement.

with respect to design professional services provided under this agreernent,
consultant shall assume the defense of and defond N$/n/vD, iis directors, officers,
agents, and employees in any action at law or in equÌty to the extent that liability is
claimed or alleged to arise out of, pertain to, or refate to, either directly or indirectly,
the intentional or wiilful misconduct, recklessness, or negligent act, error, or omission
of Gonsr.¡itant (or any person or organization for whom consultant is legally liable) in
the performance of the aclivities necessary to perform the services for District and
complete the task províded for herein. ln addition, consultant shall indemnify, hold
harmless, and release NMWD, its directors, officers, Êgents, and employees [rorn and
against any and all actions, claims, dânrages, disabilities or expenses, including
attorney's fees and witness costs, that may be asserted by any person or enlity
including the consultant, to the extent arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to, the
negligent acts, enors or omissions, recklessness, or intentional or willful misconduci
of the Consultant (or eny consuìtant or subcontractor of Consuliant) in connection with
the activities nece$sary to perform the seruices and complete the task provjded for
herein, lrut excluding liabilities due to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of
NMWD.

b. With respect to alf services other than design professional seruices provided under
this agreement, consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless, release and defend

r* nes,iqen t yrÊ',yanr#ffi¿J:iËgiÏl¡-3ii :il9;133: i"ü, rui,iå,iäl-i3å.':loii,îiiïl;J,f"i}l;;ijt uriu*..1 ¡'r,s¿d^¿lu¿+ mey be qssedad by any.perçe+gr en{ity; ineluding the,Geneultant, arising out of-er.t{.|cntullaat 
--Þin connection wíth the activities necessary to perform those services andcomplete

the tasks provided for hsrein, but excluding liabilìties due to the-cel+ negligence or
wlllful misconduct of NMWD.

This indemnification ís not limited in any way by any limitation 0n the amount or type of
damages or cotrìpensation payable by or for the NMWD or its agents under workers'
compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acf s.

4' PROSECUTION OF WORK: The execution of thís agreement shall constitute the
Consultanl's authority lo proceed immediately with the performance of this contract. Perfornrance of
the services hereunder shall be completed by , provìded, however, that if lhe
performance ls delayed by earthquake, flood, high water or other Act of Goct or by stríke, lockout
or similar labor disturbance, the time for the Consultant's performance of thís cóntracl shall be
extended by a number of days equal to the nunrber of days the Consultant has been delayed.

5. METHOÐ AND PLACE OF GIVING NOTICE, SUBMITTING BILLS AND MAKING
PAYMENTS; All notices, bills and payment shall be made in writing and may be given by personal
delivery or by maì|. Notices, bills and payments sent by mail should be addressedãs follows:

â

North Marin Water District
P.O, Box 146
Novato, CA 94948
Attention:

Consultant;

and when so addressed, shall be deemed gJven upon deposit in the United States Mail, postage
prepaid. ln all other instances, notices, bills and payments shall þe deemed given at the time 

-of

actual clelivery, Changes may he made in the names and addresses of the persòn to whom notices,
bills and payrnents are to be given by giving notice pursuanl to this paragraph.

:¿o1s-r€!ìseíLa'-s8436 -docx 
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AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

The following is an agreement between North Marin Water District, hereinafter "NMWD",
and ASSOCIATED RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES, ¡NC., hereinafter, "Consultant".

WHEREAS, Consultant is a duly qualified consulting firm, experienced in right of way
real estate services,

WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Directors of the NMWD, it is necessary and
desirable to employ the services of the Consultant to provide miscellaneous right of way
services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the
pa(ies hereto agree as follows:

PART A -- SPECIFIG PROVISIONS

1. DESCRIPTION OF SERV¡CES AND PAYMENT: Except as modified in this
agreement, the services to be provided and the payment schedule are:

a. Specific work scope tasks, schedules and estimate of services cost shall be
discussed, agreed upon and documented between NMWD and the
Consultant prior to beginning any work under this agreement.

b. The fee and fee payment for such work shall be as stipulated under the fee
schedule included in Exhibit A of this agreement. Agreement cost shall not
exceed $25,000 in totalwithout additional Board of Directors' authorization.

PART B .. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION: Except as above, neither party hereto shall
assign, sublet or transfer any interest in or duty under this agreement without written consent of
the other, and no assignment shall be of any force or effect whatsoever unless and until the
other parly shall have so consented.

2. STATUS OF CONSULTANT: The padies intend that the Consultant, in performing
the services hereinafter specified, shall act as an independent contractor and shall have the control
of the work and the manner in which it is per-formed. The Consultant is not to be considered an
agent or employee of NMWD, and is not entitled to pafticipate in any pension plan, insurance, bonus
or similar benefits NMWD provides its employees.

3. INDEMNIFICATION: NMWD is relying on the professional ability and training of
the Consultant as a material inducement to enter into this agreement. The Consultant hereby
warrants that all its work will be performed in accordance with generally accepted professional
practices and standards, as well as the requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws,
it being understood that neither acceptance of the Consultant's work by NMWD nor Consultant's
failure to perform shall operate as a waiver or release.

R:\NON JOB No ISSUES\Consultants\Assoc Righl ofWay Services\ARWS consultant services w-prof liability Nov 2018_revised_per_SB 496.._.docx
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With respect to design professional services provided under this agreement,
Consultant shall assume the defense of and defend NMWD, its directors, officers,
agents, and employees in any action at law or in equity to the extent that liability is
claimed or alleged to arise out of, pertain to, or relate to, either directly or indirectly,
the intentional or willful misconduct, recklessness, or negligent act, error, or omission
of Consultant (or any person or organization for whom Consultant is legally liable) in
the performance of the activities necessary to perform the services for District and
complete the task provided for herein. ln addition, Consultant shall indemnify, hold
harmless, and release NMWD, its directors, officers, agents, and employees from and
against any and all actions, claims, damages, disabilities or expenses, including
attorney's fees and witness costs, that may be asseñed by any person or entity
including the Consultant, to the extent arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to, the
negligent acts, errors or omissions, recklessness, or intentional or willful misconduct
of the Consultant (or any consultant or subcontractor of Consultant) in connection with
the activities necessary to pedorm the services and complete the task provided for
herein, but excluding liabilities due to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of
NMWD

With respect to all services other than design professional services provided under
this agreement, Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless, release and defend
NMWD, its agents and employees from and against any and all actions, claims,
damages, disabilities or expenses, including attorney's fees and witness costs that
may be asserted by any person or entlty, including the Consultant, arising out of or
in connection with the activities necessary to perform those services and complete
the tasks provided for herein, but excluding liabilities due to the sole negligence or
willful misconduct of NMWD.

This indemnification is not limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of
damages or compensation payable by or for the NMWD or its agents under workers'
compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

4. PROSECUTION OF WORK: The execution of this agreement shall constitute the
Consultant's authority to proceed immediately with the performance of this contract. Performance of
the services hereunder shall be completed by December 31, 2020, provided, however, that if the
performance is delayed by earthquake, flood, high water or other Act of God or by strike, lockout
or similar labor disturbance, the time for the Consultant's pedormance of this contract shall be
extended by a number of days equal to the number of days the Consultant has been delayed.

5" METHOD AND PLACE OF GIVING NOTICE, SUBMITTING BILLS AND MAK¡NG
PAYMENTS: All notices, bills and payment shall be made in writing and may be given by personal
delivery or by mail. Notices, bills and payments sent by mail should be addressed as follows:

North Marin Water District
P.O. Box'146
Novato, CA 94948
Attention: Drew Mclntyre

Consultant:
Associated Right of Way Services, lnc
2300 Contra Costa Blvd., Suite 525
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523
Attention : Larry Castellanos

a

b.
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and when so addressed, shall be deemed given upon deposit in the United States Mail, postage
prepaid. ln all other instances, notices, bills and payments shall be deemed given at the time of
actual delivery. Changes may be made in the names and addresses of the person to whom notices,
bills and payments are to be given by giving notice pursuant to this paragraph.

6. MERGER: This writing is intended both as the final expression of the agreement
between the parties hereto with respect to the included terms of the agreement, pursuant to
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1856 and as a complete and exclusive statementof
the terms of the agreement. No modification of this agreement shall be effective unless and until
such modification is evidenced by a writing signed by both parties.

7. SEVERABILITY: Each provision of this agreement is intended to be severable. lf
any term of any provision shall be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or
invalid for any reason whatsoever, such provision shall be severed from this agreement and
shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the agreement.

8. TERMINATION: At any time and without cause the NMWD shall have the right in its
sole discretion, to terminate this agreement by giving written notice to the Consultant. ln the event
of such termination, NMWD shall pay the Consultant for services rendered to such date.

9. TRANSFER OF RIGHTS/OWNERSHIP OF DATA: The Consultant assigns to
NMWD all rights throughout the work in perpetuity in the nature of copyright, trademark, patent,
and right to ideas, in and to all versions of any plans and specifications, repods and document
now or later prepared by the Consultant in connection with this contract.

The Consultant agrees to take such actions as are necessary to protect the rights
assigned to NMWD in this agreement, and to refrain from taking any action which would impair
those rights. The Consultant's responsibilities under this contract will include, but not be limited
to, placing proper notice of copyright on all versions of any plans and specifications, repofts and
documents as NMWD may direct, and refraining from disclosing any versions of the reports and
documents to any third party without first obtaining written permission of NMWD. The Consultant
will not use, or permit another to use, any plans and specifications, reports and document in
connection with this or any other project without first obtaining written permission of NMWD.

All materials resulting from the efforts of NMWD and/or the Consultant in connection
with this project, including documents, reports, calculations, maps, photographs, computer
programs, computer printouts, digital data, notes and any other pertinent data are the exclusive
property of NMWD. Re-use of these materials by the Consultant in any manner other than in

conjunction with activities authorized by NMWD is prohibited without written permission of NMWD.

Consultant shall deliver requested materials to NMWD in electronÍc format
including but not limited to engineering calculations, plans (AutoCad, current edition) and
specifications (MS Word, current edition).

10. COST DISCLOSURE: ln accordance with Government Code Section 7550, the
Consultant agrees to state in a separate portion of any report provided NMWD, the numbers and
amounts of all contracts and subcontractors relating to the preparation of the report.

11. NONDISCRIMINATION: The Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal,
state and local laws, rules and regulations in regard to nondiscrimination in employment because of
race, color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, marital status, age, medical condition or physical
handicap.
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12. EXTRA (CHANGED) WORK: Extra work may be required. The Consultant shall not
proceed nor be entitled to reimbursement for extra work unless it has been authorized, in writing, in
advance, by NMWD. ïhe Consultant shall inform the District as soon as it determines work beyond
the scope of this agreement may be necessary and/or that the work under this agreement cannot
be completed for the amount specified in this agreement. Said review shall occur before consultant
incurs 75o/o of the total fee approved for any phase of the work. Failure to notify the District shall
constitute waiver of the Consultant's right to reimbursement.

13. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: The Consultant covenants that it presently has no
interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner
or degree with the performance of its services hereunder. The Consultant further covenants that
in the performance of this contract no person having any such interest shall be employed.

14. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSULTANTS

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against
claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with
the performance of the work hereunder by the consultant, his agents, representatives,
employees or subcontractors.

Minimum Scope of lnsurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability coverage

2. Automobile Liability

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California.

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the consultant's profession. Architects'
and engineers' coverage is to be endorsed to include contractual liability.

Minimum Limits of lnsurance

Consultant shall maintain limits no less than:

1. General Liability (including operations, products and completed operations.): $1,000,000
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. lf Commercial
General Liability lnsurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this projecUlocation or the general
aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability. $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation lnsurance: as required by the State of California.

4. Professional Liability, $1,000,000 per occurrence.

Verification of Goverage

Consultant shall furnish the District with original certificates and amendatory endorsements
effecting coverage required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received
and approved bv the District before work commences. The District reserves the right to require
at any time complete and certified copies of all required insurance policies, including
endorsements affecting the coverage required by these specifications.

Subcontractors

Consultant shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish
separate ceñificates and endorsements for each subcontractor to the District for review and
approval. All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.
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Self-lnsu red Retentions

Any self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District. At the
option of the District, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such self-insured retentions as
respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or the Consultant shall
provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the District (such as a surety bond) guaranteeing
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.

Other lnsurance Provisions

The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1. The District, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
insureds with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, leased, hired or
borrowed by or on behalf of the Consultant.

2. For any claims related to this project, the Consultant's insurance coverage shall be
primary insurance as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees, and
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, its officers,
officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and
shall not contribute with it.

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage
shall not be canceled by either pafty, except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice by
cedified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the District.

Acceptability of lnsurers

lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vll.

15. DISPUTE RESOLUTION: Any dispute or claim in law or equity between District and
Consultant arising out of this agreement, if not resolved by informal negotiation between the parties,
shall be mediated by referring it to the nearest office of Judicial Arþitration and Mediation Services,
lnc. (JAMS) for mediation. Mediation shall consist of an informal, non-binding conference or
conferences between the parties and the judge-mediator jointly, then in separate caucuses wherein
the judge will seek to guide the parties to a resolution of the case. lf the parties cannot agree to
mutually acceptable member from the JAMS panel of retired judges, a list and resumes of available
mediators numbering one more than there are parties will be sent to the parties, each of whom will
strike one name leaving the remaining as the mediator. lf more than one name remains, JAMS
arbitrations administrator will choose a mediator from the remaining names. The mediation process
shall continue until the case is resolved or until such time as the mediator makes a finding that there
is no possibility of resolution.

At the sole election of the District, any dispute or claim in law or equity between
District and Consultant arising out of this agreement which is not settled through mediation shall be
decided by neutral binding arbitration and not by courl action, except as provided by California law
for judicial review of arbitration proceedings. The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with
the rules of Judicial Arbitration Mediation Services, lnc. (JAMS). The parties to an arbitration may
agree in writing to use different rules and/or arbitrators.

16. BILLING AND DOCUMENTATION: The Consultant shall invoice NMWD for work
performed on a monthly basis and shall include a summary of work for which payment is requested.
The invoice shall state the authorized contract limit, the amount of invoice and total amount billed to
date. The summary shall include time and hourly rate of each individual, a narrative description of
work accomplished, and an estimate of work completed to date.
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17. REASONABLE ASSURANCES: Each party to this agreement undertakes the
obligation that the other's expectation of receiving due performance will not be impaired. When
reasonable grounds for insecurity arise, with respect to performance of either pady, the other may,
in writing, demand adequate assurance of due performance and until the requesting party receives
such assurance may, if commercially reasonable, suspend any performance for which the agreed
return has not been received. "Commercially reasonable" includes not only the conduct of the paÍy
with respect to performance under this agreement but also conduct with respect to other
agreements with parlies to this agreement or others. After receipt of a justified demand, failure to
provide within a reasonable time, not to exceed 30 days, such assurance of due performance as is
adequate under the circumstances of the pafticular case is a repudiation of this agreement.
Acceptance of any improper delivery, service, or payment does not prejudice the aggrieved paÍy's
right to demand adequate assurance of future performance.

18. PREVAILING WAGE REQUIREMENTS: Prevailing Wage Rates apply to all
Consultant personnel performing work under the Agreement for which wage determinations have
been made by the Director of lndustrial Relations pursuant to California Labor Code Sections
1770- 1782,. Consultant shall comply with all applicable prevailing wage labor code requirements.

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
,NNMWD''

Dated Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

ASSOCIATED RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES, INC.
''CONSULTANT''

Dated
Larry Castellanos, Vice President
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Principal Consultant

Managing Consultant
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Depositions, Court Appearances, Arbitrations / Mediations,
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Item #10

MEMORANDUM

To:

From:

Subject:

February 1,2019

Approve - On-Call Construction and Repair Services Contracts with Team Ghilotti and
Ghilotti Construction
R:\NON JOB No ISSUES\On-Call\OnCall Services Approve Conkact Award BOD Memo 2-5-19.doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: Board authorize General Manager to execute agreements with
Team Ghilotti and Ghilotti Construction.

FINANCIAL IMPAGT: $200,000 each for a total amount of $400,000

Backqround

On April 7,2015, the Board authorized staff to proceed with solicitation of a Request for

Proposal for on-call construction services in order to hire local third party contractors in the

event of an emergency and also to accommodate more efficient completion of small District

projects in a timely and cost effective manner. On February 2,2016, the Board authorized the

General Manager to execute agreements with Team Ghilotti and Ghilotti Construction for the

purpose of providing On-Call Construction and Repair Services. The District's traditional

advertise-bid-award procedure for hiring contractors contínues to be utilized for most projects.

The original agreement with each of the construction firms provided an initial term

through June 30, 2017, and also reserved the right for the District to extend the agreement for

two (2) one-year contract extensions. The District is currently on the second annual extension

with both firms, with agreements slated to expire June 2019. Since inception of these

agreements, the following projects have been completed:

Stafford Dam Spillway Repairs - 2016 (Team Ghilotti)

o Zone 1 Pressure lmprovements (Ghilotti Construction)

o Stafford Dam Piezo Wellhead Repair (Ghilotti Construction)

o Stafford Dam Apron Repairs (Ghilotti Construction)

o Stafford Dam Spillway Repairs - 2017 (Ghilotti Construction)

o Center Road Pipeline Replacement (Ghilotti Construction)

Current Aoreement

As in the past, work will be approved based on negotiated task orders with the contractor

that can most efficiently complete each task based on type of work and availability of resources.

Pricing for projects under $50,000 will be based on the proposed hourly rates and mark-ups.

For projects over $50,000, pricing will be obtained from both contractors with the lowest price

selected to ensure strong price competition. The maximum value for individual task orders will

be $100,000. This contracting approach minimizes District administrative costs associated with

developing multiple construction contracts and allows the smaller Capital lmprovement Projects

(ClPs) to be implemented more quickly and cost effectively.

Board of Directors

Rocky Vogler Chief Engineer ß/



On-Call Construction and Repair Services for NMWD Facilities- Authorize Contract Award BOD Memo
February 1, 2019
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The new agreement as proposed will include an initial three-year term, with the option

for the District to extend the term for up to two (2) subsequent one-year periods.

Financial lmpact

Except for unplanned emergency situations, most of the projects will be for small ClPs

(with approved budgets) that District crews are not able to complete due to other workload

demands. Current FY19 approved projects that may be utilized for construction and repair

services in the Novato Water System include, but are not limiied to:

1. Montego Keys Pipe Replacement - $140,000

2. Country Lane 2" Plastic - $150,000

3. Automate Zone Valve (Slowdown Court) - $100,000

4. Other Main Replacements - $160,000

5. DCA Repair/Replacement - $60,000

6. Relocations to Sync w/ City & County CIP - $70,000

RECOMMENDATION

Board authorize General Manager to execute agreements with Team Ghilotti and Ghilotti

Construction for on-call construction and repair services with a not to exceed limit of $200,000

each.





Item #11

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Pablo Ramudo, Water Quality Supervisor

February 1,2019

Approve: Consulting Services Agreement with SRT Consultants
(Stafford Lake Watershed Sanitary Survey)
P:\LAB\WQ Supv\201g\l\¡emo to BOD- Authorize SR -

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the General Manager to execute a Consulting Services
Agreement with SRT Consultants

Not to exceed $36,300
(Funded from FY19 Special Studies Budget)

To:

From:

Subject:

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

f(

California regulations for potable water systems which use surface water as a source require

that the system conduct periodic updates to their Watershed Sanitary Surveys. The last update to

NMWD's Stafford Lake Watershed Sanitary Surveywas completed in 2002. SRT Consultants (SRT)

proposed scope of work is attached. The not-to exceed fee of $36,300 would be paid from unspent

funds in the FY19 Special Studies Budget of $335,000.

The sanitary survey contains several elements including:

1 . A description of the geology and geography, land use, hydrology, and present

facilities.

2. A survey for potential contaminants that takes into account all activities on

each parcel within the watershed which includes conducting site visits and

interviews with landowners.

3. A review of the monitoring programs and resulting data from the watershed

and water source.

4. A review of the 2003 watershed management plan'

SRT Consultants are well qualified at conducting sanitary surveys and formulating

management plans. Additionally, SRT is already familiar with Stafford Lake and some of the

watershed activities which contribute to water quality issues in the raw water. SRT previously

produced the district's Taste and Odor Control Strategy reporl and did some preliminary work towards

the Watershed Sanitary Survey in2016. This contract would authorize SRT Consultants to conduct

an update to the district's 2002 Sanitary Survey with a goal of completion by June 2019.

RECOMM DATION

That the Board authorize the General Managerto execute a Consulting Services Agreement with

SRT Consultants, for an amount not to exceed $36,300.
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January 30,2OI9

Pablo Ramudo

Water Quality Supervisor

North Marin Water District

999 Rush Creek Place

Novato, CA 94945

SUBJECT:Stafford Lake Watershed Sanitary Survey - SRT Consultants Proposal

Dear Mr. Ramudo,

SRT Consultants (SRT) is pleased to present for your consideration this proposal for the development of

an updated Stafford Lake Watershed Sanitary Survey. This proposal follows on a previous agreement

between the North Marin Water District (NMWD or District)and SRI, as proposed in the March 18,2016

letter from SRT to the District: North Marin Water District 201-6 Watershed Sanitary Survey - SRT

Consultants Proposal, Unforeseen circumstances resulted in a delay of the original project. SRT

understands that NMWD wishes to proceed with an update to the 2002 Stafford Watershed Survey,

which is a slightly different scope of work than what was originally planned in 2016.

We are interested, qualífied, and available to perform the forthcoming tasks and guarantee the

availability of our key and support staff for the entire duration of this contract.

L. Project Background and Understanding

The District requested SRT to provide a scope of work for the development of a watershed sanitary

survey (WSS) for the Novato Creek and the Stafford Lake Water Treatment Plant (SLWTP) Watershed, The

California Surface Water Treatment Rule (SWTR), fiile 22, Article 7, 564665 of the California Code of

Regulations, requires every public water system (PWS) using surface water to complete a watershed

sanitary survey at least every five years. The Code states:

56a665(c) The survey and report shall include physicøl ond hydrogeological description of
the wotershed, a summory of source water quality monitoring doto, a description of
activities and sources of contamindt¡on, d description of ony significant chonges thot have
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S R T
Stafford Lake Watershed Sanitary Survey

January 30, 201.9

consultonls

occurred since the lost survey which could offect the quality of the source woter, d

description of watershed control and monogement practices, an evoluotion of the system's

obility to meet requirements of this chapter, ond recommendotions for corrective octions.

This proposal outlines the services that SRT offers the District for the purpose of developing a WSS as per

the above referenced regulation, and specifically to update the existing 2002 Stafford Watershed Survey.

2. Technical Approach

This technical approach outlines the project tasks necessary as a minimum to accomplish the scope of

work. ln general, a review of background data, meetings w¡th key District staff to collect information

required for the WSS, development of draft and final WSS documents, and response to regulatory

comments or requested actions are the key tasks proposed by SRT.

Task l- - Kickoff Meeting

An initial project kick off meeting is essentíal to confirm the project understanding, identify the project

stakeholders, and establish the normal course of communications and submittal review. Since some

relevant information collection has already been conducted for this project, SRT and the District will also

review work completed to date at the kickoff meeting. SRT and the District will agree on the schedule of

completion for subsequent tasks during the kick-off meeting. SRT will coordinate to implement a kick-off

meeting at a location suitable to meet with key project participants.

SRT Deliverables

SRT will provide an agenda and meeting minutes by e-mail for the kick-off meeting to the District staff for

review and approval within one (L) week of the meeting.

District Deliverables

District will review and approve the minutes of the kick-off meeting within one (1-) week

Task 2 - lnformation Review and Data Gathering

SRT will review the 2002 Stafford Watershed Survey, its appendices, and other information provided by

the District. SRT will develop a list of additional information required for the WSS update, and will collect

this information from the District or in Task 3 during site inspections. This information is expected to

include GIS data, water quality sampling results, parcel ownership data, and watershed management

information.

SRT Deliverables

lnformation gathered by SRT will be collected in an electronic file for this project and will be available to

the District and its stakeholders.

Page 2 of 6



S R T
Stafford Lake Watershed Sanitary Survey

January 30, 20L9
consultonts

District Deliverables

The District will provide access to the requested, available materials and will acknowledge the accuracy

and completeness of the initial project information.

Task 3 - Site Visits and lnterviews

Updating the 2002 Stafford Watershed Survey will involve gathering information directly from

landowners and land managers in the watershed. SRT will develop a questionnaire for these parties and

will visit properties to observe land management and runoff management practices. SRT is sensitive to

the District's relationship with these parties and will work closely with the District to develop the

questionnaires and conduct the site visits.

SRT Deliverables

lnformation gathered by SRT will be collected in an electronic file for this project and will be available to

the District and its stakeholders.

District Deliverables

The District will participate in the development of the landowner and and land manager questionnaires,

provide a list of landowners in the watershed, including assessor parcel numbers (APNs) and available

contact information, and participate in site visits, if necessary.

Task 4 - Update Watershed Sanitary Survey

SRT will update the content of the 2002 Stafford Watershed Survey to meet the current California Code

of Regulations Surface Water Treatment Rule, Title 22, Article 7, 564665. These requirements include:

o physical and hydrogeological description of the watershed

o summary of source water quality monitoring data

o description of activities and sources of contamination

o description of any significant changes that have occurred since the last surveywhich could

affect the quality of the source water

o description of watershed control and management practices

o evaluation of the system's ability to meet requirements of the Surface Water Treatment

Rule

o recommendations for corrective actions

The draft WSS will be submitted to the District and required regulatory agencies for review

Page 3 of 6
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SRT Deliverables

SRT will provide a draft WSS report by e-mail to the District staff for review and approval. SRT will

address the District's comments and will provide a revised draft WSS for regulatory submittal within two

(2) weeks of receiving District comments.

District Deliverables

The District will review and approve the draft and revised WSS within two (2) weeks of receipt

Task 5 - Address Review Comments and Finalize Watershed Sanítary Survey

After the draft WSS is submitted to regulatory agencies, the District will receive a letter listing

deficiencies and/or recommendations that must be addressed within a specified time frame. SRT will

address these response letters and requests, will identify corrective actions, timelines, and alternatives,

and will accordingly prepare the final WSS. SRT assumes that the District's and other land owners'

management practices are largely in compliance with state requirements and has allocated budget to

address regulators' comments on the content of the report. Should the comments focus more heavily

on issues with watershed management practices, SRT will work with the District to develop a more

detailed scope of work and budget to respond accordingly and develop a plan to improve deficiencies.

SRT Deliverables

SRT will provide draft responses to regulatory agencies and a final WSS report by e-mail to the District

staff for review and approval within four (4) weeks of receipt of regulatory response letters. SRT will

address the District's comments and will provide a revised final WSS for regulatory submittal within two

(2) weeks of receiving District comments.

District Deliverables

The District will review and approve the final WSS within two (2) weeks of receipt

3. Project Assumptions

The following assumptions were made regarding project responsibilities, staff engagement, and project

deliverables:
o District staff will be available to provide feedback and direction to SRT regarding water system

details, water quality sampling practices, watershed sanitary sources, and managerial

documentation.
o The District will provide historical water quality data and past Watershed Sanitary Surveys

completed for the District.

o The District will provide information about property owners within the watershed, and assist in

gaining SRT access to properties for onsite inspection'

o The District will provide one set of consolidated comments to each deliverable.

Page 4 of 6
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The District's watershed management practices are largely in compliance with state

requirements and therefore, comments from regulators on the draft WSS will be primarily

related to the information presented in the draft report.

4. Schedule

The schedule of these tasks is variable and dependent upon the District's needs. SRT is available to start

the work immediately upon receiving Notice to Proceed. SRT and the District will agree on a project

schedule at the kick-off meeting,

5. Fee Estimate

SRT will complete the work described above for an estimated not-to-exceed budget of 536,300. A task

by task breakdown of effort and SRT's proposed hourly rates are provided below

Task 1: Kickoff Meeting $1,600

Task 2: lnformation Review and Data Gathering $8,200

Task 3: Site Visits and lnterviews $5,500

Task 4: Update WSS $15,000

Task 5:Address Review Comments and Finalize WSS $5,000

Other Direct Costs (mileage, printing, etc) $1,000

Total Fee $36,300

Role Rate

Principal S22o

Project Manager/Senior Engineer $i.80

Project Engineer $i.30

SRT Consultants feels strongly qualified to complete this important work for the District and is looking

forward to being of service on this assignment. Please contact usat415-776-5800, extension 301-, with

any questions.

Sincerely,

q"-"*

Tanya Yurovsky, PE

Page 5 of 6
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Principal Project Manager
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Item #12

To:

From:

Re:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General

February 1,2019

Amend Consulting Engineering Services Agreement - Michael Baker lnternational
z:\folders by job no\7000 jobsv140 stafford eap\bod memos\mbi amend contract bod mômo 2-1 -19.doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $17,800 plus $3,200 contingency (No FY19 Ops Budget
Augmentation is required)

The purpose of this memo is to request an amendment to the Consulting Engineering

Services Agreement with Michael Baker lnternational (MBl) to prepare an additional inundation

map for the Stafford (aka Novato Creek) Dam Weir Spillway failure scenario. This additional

failure analysis is being requested by the Division of Safety of Dams (DSOD) in their

correspondence dated January 3,2019 (Attachment 1). MBI is a nationwide civil engineering

consulting firm specializing in dam safety with California offices in Oakland and Santa Ana. On

March 3,2015, the Board approved an Agreement with MBI and established an initial budget of

$90,000, plus a $9,000 contingency.

Primary work performed by MBI under the Agreement included development of a Stafford

Dam Emergency Action Plan with the following elements:

. Notificationflowchart

o Emergency detection, evaluation and classification

. Responsibilities

. Preparedness

o lnundation maps, and

' APPendices

The Board accepted the Final EAP in October2015 and itwas subsequently submitted

to both DSOD and the California Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) on October 22,2015

(Attachment 2). No comments have been received on the 2015 report prior to the recent DSOD

January 3,2019 letter.

Authorize General Manager to Amend
Engineering Services Agreement with
lnternational

the Consulting
Michael Baker



Amend Consulting Agreement with KJ BOD Memo
February 1,2019
Page2 of 2

The original 2015 MBI contract was for $99,000 (including contingency) and final MBI

costs totaled $90,000. An additional $21,000 (-$17,800 scope of work plus a contingency of

$3,200) is being requested to provide MBI with the funds necessary to address the FY19 work

requested by DSOD. MBI's proposal is provided in Attachment 3 and costs will be based on

actual expenditures with a not{o-exceed limit of $17,800. lt is estimated that total FY19 costs

for this work (MBl billings plus internal staff time) will not exceed $25,000.

The table below provides the breakdown

Original MBI

Contract

Budget in

FY16

Amount

MBI

Expended

in FY16

Total

Project

Costs in

FY16 (MBl

plus staff)

Additional

Budget to

complete

DSOD

requested

work in FY19.

(MBr)

Additional

Staff Budget

for FY19

(NMWD)

Total

Additional

FY19 Budget

Required

$99,000 $90,000 $ 97,000 $21,000 $4,000 $25,000
* included $3,200 contingency

FINANCIAL IMPACÏ

The cost for this work will be funded by the FY1 9 Novato Operations Budget. No budget

augmentation is required since the FY19 Budgeted Stafford Lake Water Rights Update project

($50,000) is not ready to proceed at this time.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board authorize the General Manager to amend the Consulting Engineering

Services Agreement between NMWD and Michael Baker lnternational and increase the budget

by $17,800 with a contingency of $3,200
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North Marin County Water District
Post Office Box 146
Novato, California 94948

North Marin Water District

Attention: Mr. Drew Maclntyre, Chief Engineer

Novato Creek Dam, No. 88
Marin Countv

Dear Mr. Maclntyre:

This is in reply to your electronic email sent to us on June 28,2018, enclosing the
inundation map for Novato Creek Dam. This submittal was made in response to the
requirements of Division 3, Part 1 , Chapter 4, section 6161(a) of 

'the 
California Water

Code.

The Division of Safety of Dams is reviewing inundation maps based on the priorities
specified in section 6161(d) of the CA Water Code. We will notify you as to our
progress in reviewing your submitted information or if additional information is required.

ln addition, section 6161(a) of the CA Water Code requires the preparation of
inundation maps for a dam's critical appurtenant structures as defined in section 6002.5
of the CA Water Code. We have identified Novato Creek Dam has the following critical
appurtenant structu res:

1. Ogee Spillway

California Governor's Emergency Services (Cal OES) requires all inundation maps for a
dam system to be approved and incorporated into the EAP to be considered complete.
By February 1,2018, please submit the additional map for the spillway or provide a plan
and schedule for our review and approval.

Your upcoming submittal must include separate inundation maps associated with each
critical appurtenant structure identified. All new maps must be prepared in accordance
with Title 23, Division 2, Chapter 1, Article 6 of the California Code of Regulations.

ln addition, upon our approval, your inundation map(s) will be made publicly available
as required by section 6161(c) of the CA Water Code.

ATTACHMENT 1



Mr. Drew Maclntvre
JAN ü 3 201$

Page 2

lf you have any questions or need additional information, you may contact Design
Engineer Blake Dolve at (916) 227- 6540 or me at (916) 227-6742.
Sincerely,

Ariya Balakrishnan, Chief
Re-evaiuation Engineering Branch
Division of Safety of Dams

cc: Mr. Jose Lara, Chief
Dam Safety Planning Division
California Governor's Office of Emergency Services
3650 Schriever Avenue
Mather, California 95655



NORTH frIARIN
WATER DISTRICT

999 Rush Creek Ploce

PO, Box 14ó

Novolo, CA 94948

PHONE

4l 5.897.4 ì 33

FAX

4 1 5.892,804 3

EMAI T

info@nmwd.com

WEB

Www,nmwd.com

October 22,2015

Jose Lara
Program Manager
Californía Office of Emergency Services
3650 Schriever Ave.
Mather, CA 95655

DATE DESCRIPTION STATUS

FY2013-14 Develop Requests for Proposal Completed

FY2014-15 Prepare EAp Completed

lf you have any questions or need additional information please contact me atyour convenience at 1-415-761-Bg1Z.

Sincerely,

RE: !19rgency Action prans for High Hazard potentiar Dams - Final Reporl
NMWD Fite: DSOD
NMWD Job Fite 17140.00

Dear Mr, Lara:

The Norih Marin Water District (NMWD) is pleased to submit the FinalEmergency Action Pl.an that was approved ny our'Boaid oi-oirectors on ociober 20,2015' An updated mirestone schedure is proúided as foilows:

ntyre
Chief Engineer

Enclosure

MichaelWaggoner, Chief, Field Eng. Branch
David Gutierrez, Chief
Division of Safety of Dams
2200 X Street, Suite 200
Sacramento, CA 95818

Þl\4:edm
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INTERNATIONAL

.January 23,2019

Mr. Drew Mclntyre

GeneratManager

North Marin Water District

999 Rush Creek Pl,

Novato, CAg4g45

Subject: Novato Creek Dam - Dam lnundation Mapping Anatysis

Dear Mr. Mclntyre:

MichaeI Baker lnternational has prepared this contract proposatto address the review comments from

CA DWR Division of Safety of Dams. This proposal includes updating the technicaI analysis and maps to

satisfy the review comments.

Attached are Exhibits 'A",'Bu and "C" that def ine our proposed work efforts, fees and schedute

associated with these tasks. Additlonat services, beyond those that are specified, can be compteted as

an amendment to this agreement.

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and [ook forward on continuing to provide

professionaI services on this interesting and chaltenging project. Should you have any questions, ptease

do not hesitate to contact me at (g+g)855-7006.

Sincerely

John Moynier, CEP, CFM

Vice President

916-660-6683 (cett)

CC: Mujahid Chandoo, MichaeI Baker International

5 Hutton Center Drive, Suite 5oO I Santa Ana,CAgzlol

Of f ice: 9 49. 41 2.3505 | F axt 9 49.41 2.837 3

MBAKERINTL.COM

ATÏACHMËNT 3
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'Exhiblt A"

Scope of Services
Novato Creek Dam - Dam lnundation Mapping Analysis

lanuary 23,2019

Michaet Baker lnternational (Michael Baker) shall update the Novato Creek Dam lnundation study to address

DSOD review comments. This proposat includes updating the technical analysis and maps to satisfy the review

comments. The proposal includes an optional task for EAP updating (if necessary).

Task I - lnundation Mapping

Task l.l - Dam Break and lnundation Mapping. Michael Bakerwill prepare an additionaldam break

inundation for the Dam based on the failure scenario of the critical appurtenant structure i.e. spillway system. The

BREACH software wilI be used to obtain the outflow hydrograph based on the critical appurtenant structure. The

inundation study will evatuate the movement of the f lood wave through the downstream channels and urban

overflow areas taking into account various routing features including road/bridge crossings, overpass. blockages,

etc. Flood routing shall be performed in accordance with the California Code of Regulations, Title 19, Division 2,

Chapter 2, Subchapter 4, "Dam lnundation Mapping Procedures." The analysis witl be updated using the existing

Fto-2d model prepared and submitted previously. This task will include addressing the DS0D comments

submitted on December 21,2018 and.lanuary 3,2019.

Deliverables: lnundation Maps, GIS Shapef iles f or the lnundation Boundary, Max Depth, ArrivalTime, Velocity

Task l.Z - Dam lnundation Map Processing and Coordination. MichaeI Baker willprovide engineering

services for the processing and approval of the Dam lnundation Map. Processing will include correspondences

with DSOD and NMWD staff. Additional lnformation Requests from DS0D wilt be addressed duringthe review

process that may require additionaltechnical analysis to be subrritted to satisfy the reviewer questions during

this process. This work item is a budget amount since it is diff icult to estimate the type or nature of additional

information requests that DSOD may initiate, since each project is generally unique in this respect. An amount of

B hours has been allocated for this work iten for addressing review comments and approval of the studies.

Task 2: Emergency Action Ptan (EAP) (OPTIONAL)

Michael Baker wilI update the previously prepared EAP by adhering to FEN4A 64, Federal Guidelines for Dam

Saf ety: EAP for Dam Owners (ZOl:). As a starting point for consistent format, Michael Baker will use the latest

California DSOD Sampte EAP as a template for the dam. ln addition, Michael Baker willexamine FEMA's

Comprehensive Preparedness Guide (CPG) tot, Guide to Developing Emergency 0perations Plans for appticability

in the planning process and design of the EAP CPG-l0l provides guidelines on developing emergency plans and

promotes a mutuaI understanding of tlre fundamentals of risk-informed planning and decision making to help

planners examine a hazard or threat (dam failure) and produce an integrated, coordinated, and synchronized plan.

The EAP willatso be consistent with the NationaI lncident Management System (NIMS), the California

2
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Standardized Emergency Management System (SEN/S), and the California Emergency Services Act where

applicable.

Assum ptions/Constraints
This scope and fee is based on the foltowingassumptions

Stage-storage and volume calcutations for the existing facilities is to be based on the the Flo-2d model

and/or record drawings

Nofield surveying services to be provided Hydraulic modeling for the existing features is to be based

on record drawings and County provided processed LiDAR/DEN4.

Application and processing fees are to be paid by the Nlt/WD

EAP document will only require the addition of the new maps. No additional effort to update the EAP

document.

a

a

o

o

a
J
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"Exhibit B"

Com pensation
Novato Creek Dam - Dam lnundation Mapping Analysis

.lanuary 23,2019

Consultant agrees to perform the Scope of Services as described in Exhibit "A". Client agrees to compensate

Consultant for such services as follows:

TASK DESCRIPTION Hour Avg Hr. Rate FEE

7.r Dam Break and lnundation Mapping 54 $189.0c $ro,zr2
1..2 Dam inundation Map Processing and Coordination B $194.0c Si".ss2

2.0 EmergencV Action Plan (Optional) 40 Sr¿a.sc Ss,g+c

Total Professional Fee Su,zrc
Estimated Reimbursable Printing ssoc

Total Fee s77,81Ê

Progress billings will be sent to Client on a Monthty Basis for the time and materials spent performing the work, in

accordance with the attached Hourly Rate Schedule, plus reimbursable for the direct cost of printing, deliveries,

fees, etc. advanced by Consultant. At such tirne that consultant reaches 75o/o of the initial budget, we will meet

with you to identify if an additional budget will be required for future work efforts.

4
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"Exhibit C"

Schedule

Task Start - Date Completion
NTP FebruarV 0],20]9
Dam Break and lnundation Mapping February 04,2019 - February 22,2019

Dam inundation Map Processing and Coordination February 22,2019 - April ll,2Ol9 (or DSOD Approvat)

5





To:

From:

Subject:

Item #13

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

February 1,2019

Marin Country rSe ce Agreement
t:\gm\ag16Êments\rocyclod 9.doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: 1. Board Approve Amendment No. 2 to the MCC Recycled
Water Service Agreement

2. Board Authorize General Manager to Execute Assurant
(AMLI C) Subordination Agreement

3. Board Authorize General Manager to Execute of the
NMWD-MCC Subordinated Deed of Trust

FINANCIAL IMPAGT: None at this time

At the June 2, 2015 meeting, the Board approved a Recycled Water Service agreement

between NMWD and Marin Country Club (MCC) for joint participation in the Recycled Water

Central Service Area expansion project with the intent to construct an lgnacio Service Area

Extension. This extension, identified as Alternative C in the 2014 Feasibility Update to provide

recycled water to MCC, is shown on Attachment 1. At the April 18, 2017 meeting, the Board

approved Amendment No. 1 to reflect various changes including an update in agreement costs

and new financing terms (Attachment 2). The agreement requires execution of a subordinated

Deed of Trust in the amount of $1,695,758 naming the District as a beneficiary to serve as the

performance guarantee (similar to what was done for the StoneTree Recycled Water

Agreement). Execution of the Deed of Trust did not occur in 2018 due to concerns related to

MCC's request for NMWD to sign a Subordination Agreement with the American Memorial Life

lnsurance Co. (AMLIC) who is MCC's first position lender.

Closed Sessions were held with the Board, General Manager and District legal counsel,

Mr, Ari Lauer, during the June 5,2018 and June 19,2018 Board meetings to develop a

response to MCC's May 23, 2018 letter regarding unresolved subordination issues (Attachment

3). As a result of these meeting, the District issued a counter proposal to MCC dated June 25,

2018 (Attachment 4) and MCC responded on July 17,2018 (Attachment 5). Said MCC

response was reviewed with the Board, General Manager and Mr. Lauer during closed session

at the July 17, 2018 Board meeting wherein the Board agreed to issue MCC a temporary

recycled water use permit for 2018 with the understanding that MCC would complete the

commitments stated in their July 17 ,2018 letter.



MCC has now completed the following (refer to NMWD's June 25, 2018 Counter

Proposal in Attachment 4):

o ltem A - MCC paid off the 1O-year loan to NMWD on December 26,2018 in the

amount of $392,623.54

. ltem D - MCC has executed Amendment No. 2 to the Recycled Water Service

Agreement that stipulates the District can discontinue either or both recycled

water or potable water should MCC default on bi-monthly recycled water bill

payments.

With the above actions complete, staff and legal counsel are now recommending moving

forward with the other District acknowledged actions outlined in the District's June 25,2018

counter proposal letter as noted below.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the Board aþÍrrove Resolution N ,l 9- lAttachment 5) aoorovino and

authorizino the actions described below:

a. Approve - Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the Marin County Country Club

Recycled Water Service Agreement (Exhibit A).

b. Approve - Board authorize General Manager to execute Assurant (AMLIC)

Suþordination Agreement (Exhibit B)

c. Approve Board authorize General Manager to execute NMWD-MCC

Subordinated Deed of Trust (Exhibit C)



RESOLUTION NO. 19-
AUTHORIZATING EXECUTION OF

AMENDMENT NO.2 TO
RECYCLED WATER SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH

MARIN COUNTRY CLUB, INC.; AUTHORIZING GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE
SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT; AND, AUTHORIZING GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE

A SUBORDINATED DEED OF TRUST

WHEREAS, At the June 2, 2015 meeting, the Board approved a Recycled Water Service

agreement between NMWD and Marin Country Club lnc. (MCC) for joint participation in the

Recycled Water Central Service Area expansion project with the intent to construct an lgnacio

Service Area Extension; and

WHEREAS, At the April 1 8,2017 meeting, the Board approved Amendment No. 1 to reflect

various changes including an update in agreement costs and new financing terms; and

WHEREAS, The Agreement requires execution of a subordinated Deed of Trust naming the

District as a beneficiary to serve as the pefformance guarantee. Execution of the Deed of Trust did

not occur in2018; and

WHEREAS, MCC paid off the 1O-year loan to NMWD on December 26,2018; and

WHEREAS, MCC has executed Amendment No. 2 to the Recycled Water Service

Agreement that stipulates the District can discontinue either or both recycled water or potable water

should MCC default on bi-monthly recycled water bill payments; and

WHEREAS, in recognition of the above actions, staff and legal counsel are now

recommending moving forward with additional District actions as noted below.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of NORTH MARIN

WATER DISTRICT that:

1. The President and Secretary of this District are hereby authorized and directed for

and on behalf of this District to execute Amendment No 2 to the Recycled Water Service

Agreement between this District and MARIN COUNTRY CLUB, lNC., a California

Corporation, providing for the installation of recycled water storage and distribution

facilities to provide recycled water service for landscape irrigation to that certain real

property known as MARIN COUNTRY CLUB, lNC., Marin County Assessor's Parcel

Number 160-040-24 NOVATO, CALIFORNIA, which is attached hereto as ExhibitA and

incorporated herein as if fully set forlh; and

2. The General Manager is authorized to execute the American Memorial Life

lnsurance Co. (AMLIC) Assurant Subordination Agreement, which is attached hereto as



3

Exhibit B and incorporated herein as if fully set forth; and

The General Manager is authorized to execute the North Marin Water District-Marin

Country Club lnc. Subordinated Deed of Trust, which is attached hereto as Exhibit C and

incorporated herein as if fully set forth.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution duly and

regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT at a regular

meeting of said Board held on the Sth day of February 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAINED

(sEAL) Theresa Kehoe, Secretary
North Marin Water District

r:\folders by job no\2700 jobs\2775 resolu(ion.doc



.:;:\!\: l 7

' :':)""/..'...1 "
.. "t..:

c-2

HIGH

'.s-3

LÉGEND:

---.-..-- smEEAffi
MUNOR

c-3 ;'Äìåîfiîffi
E UilIToFPRESSUREZONE1

EL 50+

' rnR¡oatroN wAten
USER DESIGNATION

'\

P NT ..: .::; /

O o-sAF/YR

Q s-romn
O ro-zs/iFÀR

Qzs-sorøn
Qso-toorrn

Q rmor,vn

RECYC¡.ED WATER
DISTRIBUÎION SYSTEM

t-r PHÆE2(EÍSlre)

r- PHÆEI

ALRNAIIVEÁ

ALTERI'IÀINE B

- 

ATEFNAÍVEC

ALTruNVE D

1500' 3000'
#

FIGURE 3

NORTH MARIN WATER D¡STRICT

RECYCLED WATER SERVICE
ALTERNATIVES TO SERVICE
THE MARIN COUNTRY CLUB

-/2/

s-{

HILLTANK

9
L

I
Ë

3

'
;
1
?
!

*¡
;3
+E
Fn
a9
kË
EA
¡i
Ê1

Þ

Þo

=mz



F

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors ^ April 14,2Q17

From: Drew Mclntyre, Assistant General Manager 0ú\
Subject: Marin Country Club Recycled Water Service Agreement Amendment No. 1

t:\gm\agreements\recycled waler\nmwd mcc s agmt amend no 1.doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board authorize Amendment No. 1 to the MCC Recycled Water
Service Agreement

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None at this time

At the June 2, 2015 meeting, the Board approved a Recycled Water Service agreement

between NMWD and Marin Country Club (MCC) for joint participation in the Recycled Water

Central Service Area expansion project with the intent to construct an lgnacio Service Area

Extension. This extension, identified as Alternative C in the 2014 Feasibility Update i3 provide

recycled water to MCC, is shown on Attachment 1. The original agreement was approved

based solely on estimated amounts for both construction costs and state/federal grants and

loans. Now that bids have been opened and more definitive construction costs are known and

agreements with state/federal agencies for grants and loans have been executed. Thus it is

appropriate to amend the agreement. Amendment No. 1, provided as Attachment 2,

encompasses revised agreement pages 1-44, 1-54, 1-64 and 1-74, A compare/contrast

version of those same pages is provided in Attachment 3 for ease of reference. The major

changes are summarized as follows:

This agreement amendment is the result of several discussions with MCC

representatives and includes input from NMWD legal counsel

RECOMM NDATION

Board authorize this Amendment No. 1 to the Marin County Country Club Recycled

Water Service Ag reement.

PAGE SUMMARY OF CHANGE
1-4p' Updated construction costs, federal grants (Bureau of Reclamation

grants/loans (Clean Water State Revolving Fund).
) and state

1-5A Updated MCC participation costs, added language regarding payment

terms/conditions and added language regarding NMWD financing of

$430,463 a1.2.8% over a ten year term. This new ten year NMWD financing
is required since the 1% state loan is capped and cannot be increased;

1-64 Updated payment terms/conditions, revised language regarding the Deed of

Trust.

1-7p' Revised language regarding agreement assignment, recovery of attorney
fees in the event of legal costs and agreement precedent

ATTACHMENT 2
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Drew Mclntyre
General Manager
North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place

Novato, CA- 94945

Mr. Mclntyre,

After our meeting at Marin Country Club on ily'ray 7't'- - to cliscuss the outstanding subordination

matler with our recycled water agreement - - we've revisited your concerns about the financial

commitment the water district has investecl in the facility tliat will serve our property at 500

Cou'try Club Drive, We beiieve the country club has operated in good faith on this point of
diffbreÁce fur quite sot11e time, and although your attorney has shared his legal opinion, we

clisagree with liis assessment. I{owever, in ordel to expedite the delivery of water to the club and

ensu"re the needs of both par-ties are being rnet, we'd like to offer the following proposal, which

we feel addresses the water district's concelns and continues to show our good faith effoús

towards an amicable and sustained long-term paltnership-

(a) MCC witl obtain a5216,000 letler of credit from Mechanics Ban]< for the benefit of
NMWD ("NMWD Letter of Creclit"), which NMWD Letter of Credit will secure

MCC"s obligation to repay the $430,463 loan from NMWD. The NMWD Letter of
Credit will "burn off' on a quarterly basis in an amount equal to the principal

payrnents made by MCC on the $430,463loan cluring such quafters.

(b) Additionally, MCC will secure the entireNMWD Loan by the NMWD Deed of
Trust and NMWD will enter into the AMLIC Subordination.Agreement as originally

contemplated.

(c) At the end of 5 years the AMLIC Loan will have been repaid, the NMV/D Letler of
Credit will have bumed" off entirely, and theNMWD Deed of Trust will no longer be

subordinate to the AMLIC Deed of Trust, but witl stili secure the outstanding

principal balance of the NMWD Loan. Additionally, upon repayment of the AMLIC
Loan, NMWD will agree to suborclinate the NMWD Deed of Trust to any new

refinancing of the MCC Property so long as MCC provides a new letter of credit

securing an amount equal to 50%o of the then remaining principal balance of the

1;430,463 ioan, which lefter of credit will also "burn off ' on a quarterly basis in an

500 Coir¡rlr-v Cìirb Drivtu Novaio, C^ 94949 413 ll'8?- 6100
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amount equal to the principal payments made by MCC on the 5430'463loan during

such quarter-

l.r\ _^ drì anv adrlitional lats¡-lage rnto the water agreement that gives the district assurarce

"' il;;J;"ld ü;;ð""ítrv club default on its payments to NMWD for the bi-

monthly recycled wateÍ bill, tl-tat after normal recourse and collection matlers are

exhausted yáu will be able to turn off the delivery of recyclecl water to MCC as

specified currently in our recycled water agreernent'

We are optimistic that you and the water district board of directors fînd this proposal agreeable

and we car move to execute the final agreements in a timely Ûìanner"

Sincerely,

lson
General.Manager
Marin Country Club



NORTH MARIN
WAIER DISTRICT

999 Rush Creek Place

P.O. Box 146
Novato, CA 94948-OL46

PHONE

4t5-897-4L33

EMAIL

info@nmwd.com

WEB
www.nmwd.com

June 25, 2018

Marin Country Club, lnc.
Ryan Wilson, General Manager
500 Marin Country Club Drive
Novato, CA 94949

Subject: Marin Country Club - Recycled Water Service Agreement- Deed of Trust

Subordination
NMWD File No. 12775.00

Dear Mr. Wilson:

At the Norlh Marin Water District's Board of Director's meeting on June 19th,

2018, the Board reviewed Marin Country Club's (MCC) letter dated May 23, 2018

(enclosed) wherein a proposal was offered to address North Marin Water District's

òon"urnr that the District was being asked to sign an onerous Subordination

Agreement prior to the District recording its Deed of Trust. The Subordination

Alreement contains several provisions that were never discussed between the

District and MCC when the Deed of Trust and Recycled Water Service Agreement

were being negotiated. Consequently, it is the District's position that Deed of Trust

payment guarántee objective outlined in the executed Recycled Water Service

Agreement has been comPromised.

We too want to expedite the delivery of recycled water to MCC and have

given MCC's proposal considerable attention over the last couple of weeks. The

iollowing counter proposal is offered in an effort to move beyond this impasse. For

ease oireadability, the following format provides MCC's initial proposal followed by

NMWD's counter proPosal:

Item (a) - MCG Proposal - MCC will obtain a $216,000 letter of credit from

Mechanics Bank for the benefit of NMWD ('NMWD Letter of Credit"), which NMWD

Letter of Credit will secure MCC's obligation to repay the $430,463 loan from

NMWD. The NMWD Letter of Credit will "burn off" on a quarterly basis in an amount

equal to the principal payments made by MCC on the $430,463 loan during such

quarters.

Item (a) - NMWD Counter Proposat - MCC to provide a $430,463 letter of

credit from Mechanics Bank for the benefit of NMWD ("NMWD Letter of Credit"),

which NMWD Letter of Credit will secure MCC's obligation to repay the $430,463
loan from NMWD. The NMWD Letter of Credit will "burn off" on a quarterly basis in

an amount equal to the principal payments made by MCC on the $430,463 loan

during such quarters.

ATTACHMENT 4
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Marin country club - Recycled water service Agreement - Deed of Trust

June 25,2018
Page 2

Item (b) - MCC Proposat - MCC will secure the entire NMWD Loan by the

NMWD Deed of Trust and NMWD will enter into the AMLIC Subordination

Agreement as originally contemplated

Item (b) - NMWD Gounter Proposal - District will agree to enter into the

subordination agreement.

ttem (c) - MCC Proposal - At the end of 5 years the AMLIC Loan will have

been repaid, the NMWD Letter of Credit will have burned off entirely, and the NMWD

Deed of Trust will no longer be subordinate to the AMLIC Deed of Trust, but will still

secure the outstanding principal balance of the NMWD Loan. Additionally, upon

repayment of the AMLI-C Loan, NMWD will agree to subordinate the NMWD Deed of

Trusi to any new refinancing of the MCC Property so long as MCC provides a new

letter of credit securing an amount equal to 50% of the then remaining principal

balance of the 9430,463 loan, which letter of credit will also "burn off" on a quarterly

basis in an amount equal to the principal payments made by MCC on the $430,463

loan during such quarter.

Item (c) - NMWD Counter Proposal - At the end of 5 years, the AMLIC

Loan will have been repa¡d, 5Oo/o of the NMWD Letter of Credit will have burned off,

and the NMWD Deed of Trust will not be subordinate to the AMLIC Deed of Trust,

but will secure the outstanding balance of the NMWD Loan. The District will not

agree to any further subordination at this time and will consider the issue if, and

w-hen, it arises after the S-year period has passed. No promise of further

subordination is made.

Item (d) - MCC Proposat - Add any additional language into the water

agreement that gives the district assurance that should Marín Country Club default

oñ ¡ts payments to NMWD for the bi-monthly recycled water bill, that after normal

recourse and collection matters are exhausted you will be able to turn off the

delivery of recycled water to MCC as specified currently in our recycled water

agreement.

Item (d) - NMWD Counter Proposat - MCC will agree to additional

language in the recycled water agreement that clearly stipulates that the District can

disðontinue either or both recycled water or potable water service should MCC

default on bi-monthly recycled water bill payments. The District's right to discontinue

service will result from nonpayment and not be governed by the District's

regulations. The District may discontinue service without first pursuing collection or

other legal action.



Marin country club - Recycled water service Agreement - Deed of Trust
June 25,2018
Page 3

lf you have any questions regarding this counter proposal, please contact me

at (415) 761-8912.

Since yo

Drew ntyre
General Manager

Enclosures: MCC letter dated May 23,2018

DM: tk

z:\folders by job n0\2700 jobs\277s\ffi agreement\mcc fecycled water seru¡ce agreement ltf 6.201 B.doc
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July 17,2018

North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place
Novato, C1.94945
Attn: Drew Mclntyre
General lVlanager

Rc: Recycled Water Scrvice Agrecment and Subordinated Dced of Trust

Dear Mr. Mclntyre:

As discussed on Wednesday, Marin Country Club ("MCC") is hereby responding to the
terms of the counter proposal from North Marin Water District ("NMWD") contained in the
letter dated June 25, 2018, a copy of which is enclosed here (the o'Counter Proposal") MCC
agrees to NMWD's counter proposal items A * D except as follows: MCC agrecs to reimburse
NMWD for the $430,463 loan, subject to a full member vote to receive authorization from
MCC's members to make this financial commitment. We expect that process to be completed on
or around October l, 2018. Though clearly we cannot guarantee the outcome of the vote, we
believe that the MCC members will agree to proceed with the terms of the Counter Proposal, as a
majority of our membership were in favor of the Recycled Water Service Agreement the first
time it was voted on.

As you know, MCC cannot enter into the Subordinated Deed of Trust in favor of NMWD
without consent from our senior lender, American Memorial Life Insurance Company (the
"Senior Lender"). l.he Senior Lender provided NMWD's counsel with a revised version of the
Subordinated Deed of Trust that is acoeptable to the Senior Lender (the "subordinated Deed of
Trust"). A copy of the redlined Subordinated Deed of Trust from the Senior Lender is enclosed
here. The Senior Lender also provided NMWD's counsel with a Subordination Agreement and
Assignment of Claims and Rights (the "Subordination Agreement") that is acccptable to the
Senior Lender, and is to be entered into by NMWD, MCC, and the Senior Lender concurently
with the Subordinated Deed of Trust. A copy of the redlined Subordination Agreement from the
Senior Lender is also enclosed here. We understand that if MCC reimburses the $430,463 loan
as contemplated here, then NMWD shall (a) accept this revised Subordinated Deed of 'frust

proposed by the Senior Lender, and (b) enter into this revised Subordination Agreement
proposed by the Senior Lender.

While we await the membership vote and subsequent payment of $430,463 loan we
request that NNIWD issue a one-time, revocable temporary recycled water use permit (the "Use
Permit") and begin providing recyeled water to MCC through October 31,2018. Once NMWD is

-1- 
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reimbursed for the 9430,463 loan and counter proposal item (D) is incorporared into the
Recycled Water Agreement, NMWD shall issue a standard use permit as contemplated under the
Recycled Water Services Agreement. We understand that under Part 1 15 of the Recycled Water
Services Agreement, such issuing of the Use Perrnit and commencement of recycled water
service does not waivc any of the parties' other obligations.

We appreciate your continued cooperation and look forward to receiving recycled water
under the Recycled Water Services Agreement.

Sincerely,

eith Hartstein
President

Brian Chadbourne
Secretary

anager
son

a-L-



AMENDMENT NO.2
TO

LOW PRESSURE
RECYCLED WATER SERVICE AGREEMENT

FOR
MARIN COUNTRY CLUB-SUPPLEMENTAL IRR]GATION WATER

THAT CERTAIN "Low Pressure Water Service Agreement for MARIN COUNTRY CLUB -
SUPPLEMENTAL IRRIGATION WATER," dated June 10, 2015, by and between NORTH MARIN

WATER DISTRICT, herein called "District," and MARIN COUNTRY CLUB, lNC., a California

Corporation, herein called "Applicant," is hereby amended as follows:

Section 5 as set forth on Page f -64 shall be revised and shall read as set forth on

replacement Pages l-6AA and l-7AA attached hereto and made a part hereof.

s have
2019

IN WITNES
on the l5T7

the parties hereto executed this amendment to their agreement
day of

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
"District"

NOTARIZE: Jack Baker, President

Theresa Kehoe, Secretary

(sEAL) MARIN C GLUB, lNC.
a Cal rnta

tca

surer

NOTES: This amendment must be executed by the Applicant and delivered to the District within thitty
(30) days after it is authorized by the District's Board of DÌrectors.

ALL SIGNATURES MUST BE ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE A NOTARY PUBLIC.

rlfoldors by iob no\2700 lobsvnco rocyòled wãler amondmenl2 1.2019doa
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Applicant may payoff the 1O-year loan it received from the District without any prepayment

penalty. The final payoff amount is $392,623.54 if payment is received by the District on or before

December 31,2018. lf payment is received after December 31 , 2018, the District shall provide

Applicant an updated payoff amount.

Recycled water service to the Appticant will be disconnected if bi-monthly payments

pursuant to this Section and payment of charges for recycled water pursuant to Section 6 are not

received wíthín 30 days of the due date printed on the District's bill, which is typically 25 days following

the date the bill is mailed to the Applicant. lnterest at the maximum amount permitted by law may be

added to payments not received by the District as of the due date, provided that the District's bill was

received by Applicant a minimum of 14 days prior to its due date,

lf Applicant fails to timely make any payment required under the Agreement, the District,

in its sole and absolute discretion, may elect to discontinue recycled water service under the

Agreement and/or discontinue the provision of potable water service provided to Applicant. The

Applicant acknowledges and agrees the District's right to discontínue recycled and/or potable water

service for nonpayment is contractuaf in nature pursuant to thís Amendment No. 2 and not governed

by, nor subject to, the District's regulations. The District may discontinue water service in accordance

with this section without first pursuing collection of delinquent amounts of pursuíng any other action.

Prior to January 2018 when the first payment is due pursuant to the payment schedule

attached hereto as Exhibit B, the Applicant will record a subordinated deed of trust, the form of which is

attached hereto as Exhibit C, in the amount of $1,695,758 naming the District as beneficiary (the Deed

of trust") to serve as the pedormance guarantee. lf a bill remains unpaid for sixty (60) days after

being mailed to the Applicant, all amounts owing under this Agreement, including accrued interest and

unpaid principal, shall become immediately due and payable and the District may serve upon the

Applicant and the Trustee named in the Deed of Trust, a demand for payment of the full amount of

initial charges and estimated District costs less Applicant credits within ten (10) days. lf the Applicant

fails to pay such amount in full within the 10-day period the District may enforce all rights and remedies

at law and under the Deed of Trust, including a sale of the subject property through foreclosure. The

District acknowledges and agrees that the Deed of Trust shall be subordinated to all existing deeds of

trust that currently encumber the Applicant's real property.

6, lf recycled water supplies to the Applicant are interrupted or curtailed for any reason,

District shall supply temporary potable water to the golf course. Such supply of Zone 1 potable water

will not exceed 336,000 gallons per day at a rate at or below 800 gallons per minute and will be

charged at the District's Recycled Water rate pursuant to NMWD Regulation 54 then in effect.

7. lf recycled water supplies to Applicant are interrupted or curtailed and temporary

potable water is not available for any reason, the Applicant's curtailment shall be equal in proportion to

the recycled water system-wide curtailment applied to all District recycled water customers.

R:\Folders by Job No\270o Joþs\MCc Recycled Water Amendmenl 2 1.201g.doc 
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B. Recycled water furnished by the District through the expanded facilities pursuant to this

Agreement will not be used by the Applicant for any purpose other than golf course and adjacent

landscape irrigation.

g. The District covenants to own, operate and maintain the Project until the termination of

thís Agreement. This Agreement shalf bind and benefit the successors and assigns of the parties

hereto; however, this Agreement shall not be assigned by the Applicant without the prior written

consent of the District. Assignment shall be made only by a separate document prepared by the

District at the Applicant's written request. The Applicant's rights to recycled water deliveries hereunder

are not transferable or assignable. The Applicant shall not sell, give, transfer, or distribute any of the

recycled water purchased by it to any other party for any use, and Applicant shall be the sole party

using the recycled water.

10. Any notice or other communication to be given to the District under this Agreement

may be given by delivering the same in writing to the North Marin Water District, at 999 Rush Creek

Place, Novato, California 94945, Attention: General Manager; and any notice or other communication

to be given to the Applicant under this Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing to

Marin Country Club, lnc., 500 Country Club Dr., Novato, CA 94949 Attention: General Manager.

11. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the District and the Applicant

(including successors or assigns) and no other person shall acquire or have any right hereunder or by

virtue hereof. The obligations of the Appficant under this Agreement may not be assigned, in whole or

in part, without the prior written consent of the District, which consent may be given or denied in the

Dístrict's sole and absolute discretion; provided, however, that Applicant may without the prior written

consent of the District: (i) directly or indirectly assign this Agreement to an affíliate of Applicant and (ii)

assign the Agreement to any person or entity in connection with a reorganization, merger, acquisition,

change of control, or sale of all substantially all the assets or business of Applicant; however, any such

assígnment, without pr¡or written consent shall not release Applicant from any of its obligations

hereunder.

12. The validity, interpretation and performance of this Agreement shall be governed by

the laws of the State of California. Any action or proceeding to enforce or interpret this Agreement

shall be brought, commenced or prosecuted in the County of Marin, California. ln the even that either

party is required to ínitiate legal proceedings to enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement, the

prevailing party may recover its attorney's fees incurred in such action, in addition to costs and other

amounts recoverable at law.

13. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the District and the

Applicant with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous

agreements, representations, and understandings of the District and the Applicant.

1-7AA
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF MARIN

ON AGIIE OF CLÄIMS

THIS SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT AND ASSIGNMENT OF CI,Ä.IMS ANI)
RIGI{TS, macle and entered into as of April _,2018, by and arxong MARIN COUNTRY CLUB,
INC., a California corporation (liereinafter called "llorrower"), NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
thereine-.flel cnllerì "srhnrdin¡fe I.ender'"1 ".d AMt¡l¡11CAN MIIMCIRIAL LIFFr INSU[T-ANC!tii¡w¡ç¡i¡üiiúr wú¡¡vÙ

COMPA.NY, a South Dakota corporation (hereinafter called "First Pliority I-euder").

WI'TNBSSTiTH:

WHII,Iì-EAS, F'ir"st Priority l*.enclel ma-de lo¿ins to Bon'ower evidenced by the following notes:

(i) Promissory Note dated as of Septernbcr 11.2003 (the "2003 Note") in the original principal arnount of
Four Million Nine Hundred Severrt¡r Nine 'fhousand Six l-Iurrrired rwent¡r c)ne and 50/100 l)ollars
($4,919,621.50), (ii) Promissory Note dated as of March \,2006 (he "2006 Note") in the original
principal amount of One Million Two l-lundred Twenty-F-ive Thousand and No/100 Dollars
($ì1,225,000.00), and (iii) Prornissor-y Notc clate,l as of Junc 28,20A7 in the amount of One Million Six
I-Iundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($ I ,600.000.00) (the "2007 Note"; the 2003 Note, 2006 Note. and

2007 Note, together with any and all renewals, modifications, consolidations, replacetnents and

extensions thereof, hel'ein referred to collectively as the "First Priority Note"; the loans evidenced thereby

ale herein referred to as the "First Priority [,oan"); and

WI{EREAS, the Filst Priority Loan is fur-ther evidenced and secured by certain other documents,

including, but not lirnited to, the following doculnents:

(a) a Deed of Trust and Security Agleeurent (as amended, as set fbÍh below, the "First
Pl'iority Mortgage") conveyiug to Filst Priority L,ender the property (the "Property")
described on Exhibit A hereto, dated as of septernber 11 ,2003 from Borrower in favor of
or for the be¡refit of Leucier, recorcjccj as Instruurenl No.200J il56JJ, in the reai estate

records of Marin County, Clalifornia, as amended by that certain Modification of Deed of
Trust and Security Agrcernent and of Assignrneut of Reveuues, Rents, Leases and

Agreernents dated as of Malclr 1,2006 and recorded as Instrument No. 2006-0014039,
aforesaid records, and as arnended by that certain Second Modification of Deed of Trust

and Security Agreement and of Assignment of Revenues, Reuts, Leases and Agreements

dated as of June 28,2001and recoldecl as lnstlutnent No. 2007-00403'26, aforesaid

records (Lhe "2007 Modifi cation");

(b) an Assignment of Revenues, Iìents, l,eases and Agreements dated Septernber 17,2003
froln Borrower to Lender, lecorded as Instrulnent No. 2003 115634, aforesaid records, as

arnended by the 2006 Modifìcation aud as aurended by the 2007 Modification; and

(c) U.C.C. Financing Slatements between lìorrower, as Debtor, and First Priority Lender, as

Secured Party (the "Fitst Priol ity U.C.C. Fittancitrg Statetletrt").

(collectively with any and all other docullents eviclct.lcing or seculing the First Priolity Loan, the "First
Pliolity l,oan l)ocuments").

a
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WHEREAS, pursuaul to the [iirst Priority Loan Docurnents, Borrower is prohibited from
incurring indebtedness fot'borrowecl Inoney except as permitted thereby; and

WHEREAS , in 2017 , Borrower desired to olrtairì financing from Mechanics Bank, a California
banking corporation (hereinafter called "MB") as follows: (i) a Facilities Improvetnent Non-Revolving
Draw to Term Loan in the amount of up to $8,750,000.00, and (ii) a Revolving Line of Credit in the

amount of up to $500,000.00 (together with any and all renewals, modifications, consolidations,

replacernerrts and extensions theleof or firrther advances or loans to Borrower from Subordinate Lender,

herein referred to as tlre "Subordinate MB I-'inarrcing"); and

WHEREAS, witir respect to the Subordinate MB lrinancing, pursuaut to the First Priority l,oan
Docurnents, Borrower was not peruritteci to obtain the Subordinate MB Financing uuless appt'oved by
First Priority Lender, but First Priority Lendel apploved the Subordinate MB Financing pursLlant to that

ceftain Subordination Agreernent and Assignment of Claims and Rights dated as of March 17,2017 by

and among Borrower, First Priority Lender and MB, recorded as Instrurnent No. 2017 0012067, inthe
real estate records of Marin County, Calilòrnia (the "MIì lntet'creditor Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, Borrower desiles to obtain linancirrg frorn Suboldinate Lender as follows: a loan in
the amount of $1,695,758.00 (together with any and aìl renewals, rnodifications, cotrsolidations,

replacements and extensions thereof or further aclvances or loans to Borrower frorn Subordinate Lender,

herein referred to as the "Suborclinate Fiuaucìng"); and

WHEIìEAS, all or portions of the Sr,rbordinate Financing are evideuced by one or more notes and

shall be fudher evidenced and secured by certain other docurnents, including, but not limited to, the

lollowing documents:

(a) Low Pressure Water Se rvice Agreernent for Marin Country Club - Supplemental

Irrigation Water, dated June 10, 20 I 5 between Borrower and Subordinate Lender, as

amencled by Amendment No. I to Low Pressut'e Water Service Agreement for Marin
Country Club - Supplernental Ilrigatiorr Water dated June 27 ,201 7 (collectively, the

"Subordinate Loan Agreement"), and

(b) a Subordinated Deed of 'I'rr:st (the "Sr-rbordinate Mortgage") conveying to Subordinate

Lendel' the property (the "Plo¡rerty") desclibed on Exhibit A hereto, to be recorded in the

real estate or mortgage records of Marin County, California, securing the payn,ent

obligations in the Subordinate Loan Agreeruent; ancl

If any, U.C.C. Financing Stateuients t-retween Borrower, as Debtor, and Subordinate

Lender, as Secured Party (the "Sr-rbordinate U.C.C. Financing Statement").
(c)

(collectively with any and all other docurne nts evidencing or securing the Subordinate Financing, the

"Subordinate Financing Documents").

WI-IEREAS, Borrowel is not perrnittecl 1o obtain the Subordinate Financing unless approved by

First Priority Lender; arrd

WHEREÄS, First Priority Lender is willing to permit the Subordinate Financing evidenced by

thc Subordinate Financing Documents provicled that the Sr-rbordinate Lender evidences its subordination
to the First Loan and the First Loan Docr-unents as lrereinalier set fortlt, in a tnanner parallel to the tenns

of the MB Intercreditor Agreement; and

Subordination Agreerncnt (Subord inalc Debt)
Marin Country ClLrb, Novato, CA, l..oan No. 4040360-03
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WHEREAS, accoldillgly, the Sr-rboldiuate Mortgage excludes collveyallce fi'om Bot't'ower to

Subordinate l,encler of the AMLIC Exclr¡cied Clairns, Voting Rights, Monies Default Distributions and

Bankluptcy Rights (as defined in the Suborclirrate Mortgage), for so long only as any portion of the First

Priority Loan remains unpaitl; antl

WHFllLllAS, consistent with the ibregoing, Filst Pliority Lencler is willirrg to pelmit the

Subordinate Financing evidenced by the Suborclinate Financing Documeuts only provided that the

Subordinate Lender agrees with Filst Priority l.ender and Borrowel that Subordinate Lendel'has not

received any conveyance of, and the First PLiority Lender retaius, the AMLIC Excluded Claitns, Voting
R.ights, Irlcnies DefäLrlt Distributicns and lJankruptcy Rights, fot so !ong oniy as arr)/ portion of the First

Priority Loan relnains unpaid, and to confìrrn such agreement and elirninate any doubt as to the intention

of exclusion from tlie Subordinate F-inancing Docunre nts of the AMLIC Excluded Claims, Voting Rights,

Monies Default Distributions and Bankruptcy Rights, Subordinate l-ender agrees to the terms of this

Agreement and agrees that Sulroldinate I-,ender assigns to lrirst Priority Lender, for so long only as any

no$ion of the First Prioritv l-,oa-n l'ernains unpaicl, (i) all clairns of Srrbordinate L,ender against Borrower
r"........J.-.".''.-'.'--..--'-''iiI

arising out of such subordinate Financìng, ancl all rights and powers respecting such claims, in any
j¡clie ial or non-.!udicial (including anv receiverslrip, assignrnent for the benefit of creditors, bankruptcy.

insolvency, reolganization, liqLridation, or similar) case or proceecling, or vohtntary or involuntary clebt

restructure, or similar ploceeding, juclicial or otherwise, whethel'under state or federal law (collectively,
"Proceedings"), clirectly or inclilectly arising fì'o¡r, involving ot' r'eletting lo Borrower, First Priority Lender

and/or the Subordinate Financing. including. witllout lilnitation, any such claims arising fiom or relating

to the Subordinate Financing Docnments (suclr clairns, rights and powers being referred to collectively
herein as the "Claims"), (ii) all voting rights arising frorn, involving or relating to any such Claims (the

"Voting Rights"), and (iii) all rights of Subc''rclinate Lencler Ícì the payment ol clistlibutions of stlms,

diviclends or other assets to Subordinate l-encler by Borrower-duririg and after either (a) any such

Proceeding, or (b) any default (or any event which but for the giving of notice or the passage of titne, or

both, would constitute a defar,rlt) under the First Pliority Loan Docutnents (collectively, the "Monies"), all

on the tel'urs and coltditiotts set folth ltcrcittbelow; and

WI{EREAS, Subordinate Lender is willirrg to e xecute and deliver this Agreement to induce First

Priority Lender to pennit the Subordinate Financing, which subordinate Financing will benefìt

Subordinate Lender by pennitting Suborciinate Lender to receive ti-re returns sct forth in the Subordinate

Financing.

l{OW, TIIEI{EFORE, incolporating llie for-egoing Lecital ol'facts, in considelation of TEN
DOLLARS ($10.00) in hand paid by each ol'the parlies to the othet'and in further consideration of the
pl'emises and other good and valuable consiclelation, the receipt and sufficiency of which are heleby
acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

L subordination. SubordinateL,endel'sr-rbordinates, upon the terms and conditions

contained herein, all its right, title and interest under the Subordinate Financing Documents in and to the

Property as against the First Priority Loan to be made by Iìirst Priority Lender to Ilorrower, so that the

First Priority Mortgage and the other lrilst Priorìty [,oau Docltrnents shall convey security title to the

Property superior to the security tif ie, inier-esi ancj iien oi'iire SLrborcjirrale Fillancing Docurnettts, anci are

and shall continue to be subject and subordinate to the liens and secut'ity interests created by the First

Pr^iority Loan Docurnents and to any and all anrendmeuts, Itiodifications, exteÍìsions, replacements or

renewais of the Filst Plioliiy Loan Docr-rments rnacie in accordance with iheierms of ihis Agreemeni, and

to any ancl all advances heretofore rnade or hereafter to be made under the First Priority l-oan Documents

pltrsuant to the terms theleof. Accorclingly, the proceecìs ol'atry repossession, foreclosure or other

exercise of'remedies with lespectto the Pro¡rerty shall be applied f rrst to all alnounts owingto First
Priority Lendel with respect to the First Priority l-oan and second to all alnounts owing to Subordinate
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Lender with respect to the Subordinate Financing Documents, except only that in the event of an exercise

of remedies under the Subordinate F'inarrcing Documents if and to the extent pennitted hereuncler ancl in
the event that at the time of such default under the Subordinate Financing Documeuts aud upon such

repossession, foreclosure or other exercise of l'emedies under the Subordinate Financing Docutnents, there

is then no default (or an event that but for the giving of uotice or the passage of time, or both, would
constitute a default) under any of the First Priority Loarr Docurnents (other than by application of
Paragraph 3(r) hereof), in such event such proceecls rnay be applied to first all amounts owing to
Subordinate Lender with respect to the Subordinate Financing Docutnents, and second to all amounts

owing to First Priority Lender with respect to the Irirst Priority Loan. Without lirniting the foregoing and

without amending or waiving any terms ol'the lìilst Priority Loan Docunents, Subordinate Lender
acknowledges alrd agl'ees that any foreclosure uncler the Suboldinate Mortgage sl-rall not tenninate the

First Priority MoÉgage.

In addition, as set forth in tl-re Subordinate Mofigage, the Subordinate Mortgage and the

indebtedness secured by the Suboldinate Mortgage shall also at all times be sLrbject to the tenns and

conditions of the Subordination Agreement by and arnong Borrower, Subordinate Lender and Mechanics

Bank referenced in the Suboldinate Mortgage .

2. Warranty. Subordinate Lender warrants that (a) Subordinate Lender is the owner and

holder of the Subol'dinate Financing Docnrnents, true, correct and complete copies of which have been

provided to First Priority Lender by Subordinate Lender ancl Borrower as listed on Exhibit B attached

hereto and tnade a part hereof; (b) there is uo assignnjent to any party ofany ofSubordinate Lender's
rights under any of the Subordinate Financing l)ocuments; (c) the Suboldinate Financing Documents
constitute the complete agreernent between llorrower and Subordinate Lender with respect to the

Subordinate Financing; (d) there is no defäult, event of default or other event oi' occllrrence that would
entitled Subordinate Lender, now or with tlie giving of notice and/or the passage to titne, entitle
Subordinate Lender to accelerate the Subordinate Financing and/or take any remedial actions thereunder.
First Priority Lender warrants that (a) First Priority l.ender is the owner and holder of the First Priority
Loan Doculnents, (tr) tl'rere is no assignrne rlt to any party of any of First Priority Lender's rights under any

of tlie First Priority Loan Doculneuts, and (c) First Priority Lender has providecl to Subordinate Lender
true, correct and complete copies of the First Priority Loan Doculnents.

3. Subordination ancl Assignment Covenants.

(a) Subordination of Payment Riehts. Prior to the occurrence of either (l) any

Proceeding or (2) any monetary default (either fäilr-rre to pay amounts due First Priority Lender ot make

other payments required under the First Priority Loan Documents) or any acceleration of the First Priority
Loan by First Priority Lencler after any other default (herein referred to as a "First Priority Default"),
Borrower mây pay and SLrbordinate Lender may receive and retain any and all scheduled payments due

and payable under the Suborclinate Financing Docurnents, and provided further tlrat such regular monthly
payments do not exceed the amount remaining after deducting from all income of the Propefty for such

month the monthly payments due under the First Priority l-oan, any escrows payable thereunder,

reasonable reserves fortaxes, insurance and other expenditures, and all expellses ofthe Propefty then due.

Without the prior wrilten consent of First Priority l-ender in First Priority l,ender's sole and absolute

discretion, during any Proceeding or wlrile any [rirst Priority Default exists, Subordinate Lender hereby

agrees that Subordinate Lender shall not accept or leceive any payment or distribution on account ofthe
Subordinate Fiuancing prior to the payment in firll of the Irirst Priority Loan (such payments or
distributions during any Proceeding or wlrile any Irir-st Priority Default exists are herein referred to as

"Default Distributions"), ancl that any such payr.nent or distribution received by Subordinate Lender shall

be held in trust fol and imrnediately remitted to Irirst Priority Lender as set forlh below. Except as

aforesaid, Subordinate Lender shall, during any Proceedirrg or while any First Priority Default exists, ancl

ADMIN/2165(r939v.ì/sl 
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witl'ìout notice or demand frorn First Priority Lencler, prorrptly assign, transfel' and pay over to Irit'st

Priority Lender, to be applied on the First Pliority Loau, zrny Monies t'eceived by Subordinate Leudet'

from Borrower on account of the Suboldinate Financing, and any such Monies so received shall be held

in trust by Subordinate l,endel'until suclt lirne as it is so delivered.

(b) Confirmation oí Excir¡sion of Ciairns. Voting Rif¡hÉs and Monies from
Subordinate Lender. 'I'o confirm that Suboldinate Leuder has uot received any conveyance of, and the

Irirst Priority Lender retains, the AMLIC Excluded Clairns, Voting Rights, Monies Default Distributions
and tsankruptcy l{ights, forso longonly as any porlion of the l''ìrst l'riority Loanremains unpaid, ancl

eliminate any cioubt as to the inteniion of exclusion fi'orn the Subordinate lrinancing Documents of the

AMLIC Excluded Claims, Voting Rights, Monies Default Distributions and Bankluptcy Rights, for so

long only as ally portion of the First Priority Loan rernairrs utrpaid, Subordinate Lender hereby sells,

transfers, assigns, delivers and conveys to Filst Pr-iority Lendcr, alrd its successors atrd assigns, all right,
title and interest of Subordinate Lender in, to and under the Claiurs, the Voting Rights, and the Monies,
provided, however, that First Priority Lender may only exelcise rights with respect to the Claims, the

Voting Rights, and the Monies during any Proceeding or while any First Priority Default exists.

Notwitl-rstanding the rights set fortli herein, in tlre event tliat SLrbordinate Lender does not agree with the

action of F'ilst Pliority Lender plusuant to the provisions of this sul¡section, Subordinate Lender shall

have the right (but Sutrordinate Lender is not obligated) to pay lìirst Priority Lender the unpaid principal
balance, plus all accrued interest, outstanding latc charges. costs ofcollection and prepayinent prenriutns"

owing on the note secured by the First Priority l.oan Docurnents, in which case the First Priority Loan
Documents together with the note secul'ed thereby and all other instrurreuts evidencing and securlng sâld
indebtedness will be transferred, assignecl and delivered (withor-rt recourse) by First Priority Lender to
Sr¡bordinate Lender.

(c) llanhrurrtcy Riqhts. Subordinate Lender does hereby acknowledge and confirtn
that, as a result of this Agreernent, First Priority i,ender shall have thc sole and exclusive right in any

Proceeding to be heard and to speah on behalf ol'Subordinate Lender with respect to the Subordinate

Fiirancing and the Subordinate Financing Docuntents, the Claims, tlre Voting Rights, andlot'the Monies
(collectively, the "Bankt'uptcy Rights"). Subordinate l.ender rnay asselt ol fìle any claim or ploof of
claim as a securecl or unsecured creditor in any suclr Proceeding, but any such claim shall be filed with a

copy of this Agreerneni aiiached iiiereio. If requiled by FiLsi Pliority Lendel'(bui without linriting any of
the rights and privileges grantecl hereby), in the event of any Proceeding, Subordinate Lender will, at the

request of First Priority Lender, 1ìle any clairn, ¡rroof of claitn, or other instrutnent of similar character

neccssary to enforce the obligations of Borrower in respect of the Subordinate Financing Documents.

Without limiting the foregoing, Suborclinate Lender fufther grar.ìts to First Priority Lender an irrevocable
proxy to exercise any Voting Rights or to take any other action which Subordinate l-encler may take or
havc with respcct to the approval or tlisappr-oval ol a plart o[ rcorganiz-atit-ltl ol Borrower propr-rsctl tly any
person or class of persons in any Proceeding or otherwise with respect to any Claim , and in furtheratrce

theleof, Subordinate Lender hereby irlevocably appoint Irirst Pliority [-ender the agent and

attorney-in-fact of Subordinate Lencler so 1o do. Notwithstanding the rights set forth herein, in the event

that Subordinate Lender does not agree with the action of Irirst Priority Lender pursuant to the provisions
of this subsection, Subordinate Lender shall have the right (but SLrbordinate Lender is not obligated) to
pay First Frioiity Londcriiic Lrnpaicì principai baiancc, plus ali acci'uctl inícrcst, oLrtstanding iaic chargcs,

costs of collection and prepayllent ¡lrerniums, owing on the note seculed by the Fìrst Priority Loan

Documents, in which case the First Priority Loan Documents togethel with the note secured thereby and

all other instrulnents evidencirig ar.icl secuiing said indebtedness wi ll bc transfen'ed, assigncil etnd

delivered (without recoulse) by Irilst Pliority l.ender to Srrbordinate [.errder.

(d) Pernritted Actions: No nrnfion of Liahilitv. Subordinate [,ender

acknowledges and agrees that with respect to the rights, title and interests assigned lrereby to First Priolity
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Lender, First Priority Lender may exercise any and all rights ancl take any and all actions with respect
thereto that First Priority Lender may deem necessary, appro¡rliate or desirable in First Priority Lender's
sole and absolute discretion inclucling, without limitation, waiving, relinquishing, or not receiving
payment of any of the Monies, and First Priority Lender shall have no duty, liability or fiduciary
obligation of any kind to Subordinate Lender or to erny other parties with respect to the rights, title and

interests hereby assigned to First Priority Lender. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to
obligate First Priority Lender to perfonn or discharge any obligatiou, duty or Iiability under or by reason
of the Subordinate Financing Documents, the Property, the Claims, the Voting Rights, the Monies or any
of the other rights or powers assigned herelry, and Subordinate Lender hereby acknowledges and agrees

that First Priority Lender shall have no such obligation, dr"rty or liability. In the exercise of the rights and

powers herein granted First Priority [.ender, no liability shall be asseÍed or enforceclagainst First Priority
Lender, all such liability being expressly waived and released by Subordinate Lender. Subordinate
L,ender hereby acknowledges that in the rnaking of the First Priority Loan under the First Priority Loan
Docurnents, First Priority Lender has the right to require payrnent in full of the Irirst Priority Loan in the
event of the Subordinate F'ir-rancing and the delivery of the Subordinate Financing Documents, and
Subordinate Lender hereby acknowledges that First Priority I-ender, in agleeing to issue the consent to the
Subordinate Fir-rancing and the delivery of the Sr-rbordinate Þ-inancing Documents under the First Priority
Loan Doculnents, is lelying upon the terms of this Agreernent.

(e) Continuing Dffectivencss. Subordinate Lender does hereby agree not to
cliallenge the effectiveness of this Agreeurent, it being the intention of the parties to fully effectuate the
full and complete subordination of the Sutrordinate Financing and the Subordinate Financing Documents
to the First Priolity Loan and the First Priority Loan Documents, and Subordinate Lender does hereby
expressly waive any light to object to the elfectiveness of this A,greement which may arise under the laws
of tlìe State of California, the laws of the United States o1'America or otherwise

; (Ð Casualty/Condemnation. Subordinate Lencler agrees that in the event of a
casualty to the buildings ol improvements constructed on the Property or a condemnation or taking under
a powel' of eminent domain of all or any portion of the Property, the buildings or improvernents thereon,
or a threat of such a condemnation or taking, all adjustments of insurance claims, condemnation claims
and settlements in anticipation of such a condeurnation taking shall be prosecuted, at First Priority
Lender's election, by First Priority Lender, and all paymeuts and settlements of insurance claims or
condemnation awarcls or payments in arrticipation of condernnation or a taking shall be paid to First
Priority Lender or at lrirst Priority Lender's direction for use and application pursuant to the terms and

provisions of the Filst Priority [,oan Documents. Subordinate Lender irrevocably assigns to First Priority
Lender all of its interest in any suclr claims, settlernents or awards and irlevocably grants to First Priority
Lender a power of attorney, couplecl with an intelest, to execute arry and all documents on Subordinate
Lender's behalf necessary in connection with the prosecution or settlement of such claims, awards and
payments. First Priority Lender shall prornptly notify Subordinate Lender of any documents executed
under the aforesaid power of atlorney. In addition, without lirniting tlre foregoing, the Subordinate
Lender agrees thaf all rights of the Subordinate Lender under the Subordinate Mortgage or under the
Subordinate Financing Documents in and to lhe Property and the proceeds thereol'(including assignments
ofleases and rents, issues and profits) expressly sub.ject and subordinate to the rights ofthe First Priority
Lender in and to the Property and the proceeds thereof(including assignmcnts ofleases and rents, issues

and profits) on the terms set forth in the [ìirst Priorìty Morlgage and the First Priority Loan Documents.

(g) Subrogation lìights. Subordinate l,ender waives and releases any and all rights
of srrbrogation which it rnay lrave against tlre Property which subrogation would result in Suborclinate
l,ender obtaining a priority ec¡ual or supe rior to the pliority of the First Priority Loan Documents for any
funds which Subordinate l,ender rnay aclvance either to cure defaults under the l]irst Priority Loan
Docurnents or pay liens encun-rbering the Property or otherwise protect the lien of the Subordinate
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Irinancing Docurnents. Il'the Suboldinate Lenclet'slrall acquile by indetrnificatiott, subrogation or'

otherwise, any lien, estate, right or other interest in the Ploperty, tlrat lien, estate, right or other interest

shall be sLrborclinate to the First Pliority Mor-tgage as provicìecl hel'cin, ancl the Strborclinate l-,encler hereby

wai.¡es any and all rights it may acquire by sLrblogation or otlrerrvise to the lien o1'the Irirst Priority
Morlgage or any portion thereof.

(h) Tenants and Lcases. As to all leases now or hereafter in el'fect with respect to

the propelty, the Subordinate Lender agrees to appt'ove all leases which are approved or deemed approved

by the First Priority Lender, or which the First Priority Lender pennits Borrower to make without consent

nr nnnrnrrâ1. The Sul-.ordilalC I cnder sha!! also entcl'inlrJ rccOgnitiOn and noll-diSlLlrl-ra.nCC âoreetnenfst-'l gijiJr !' r *:.

with any tenants to whom the lrirst Priority Lendet'has granted t'ecognitioti and non-disturbance, on the

same terms and conditions given by the First Priority Lender. No tenant under any lease of any portion of
the Property will be lnade a palty ciefendani in atry foleclosure of the SL¡bol'dinate Mortgage nor will any

enforcement action under the Suborclinate Financing Documents ol' any other action be taken that would

terminate any lease or other rights held by or granted to or by third parties witl"r respect to the Propert¡r.

(i) Escrows. Subordinate Lender shall not collect payments for the purpose of
escrowing taxes, assessrnents or other charges irrr¡rosed on the Property or insurance premiutns due on the

insurance policies required uncler the lrirst Pliority Moltgage or the Subordinate Mortgage if the First

Priority Lendel is collecting payrrents for such purposes, ltowevet', the Subordinate Lencler may collect

payments for such pllrposes if the First Priority Lender is not collecfing the salne, provided such

payments shall be held in trust by the Subordinate Lendet'to be applied only for such purposes.

0) No Assisnment of Suborclinate Financing. Subordinaie Lender will not,

without First Priority Lender''s prior written consent in Filst Priority [.endet''s sole and absolute

discretion, execute, grarìt or deliver any assignrnent, transfer, pledge, hypothecation or other conveyance

ol'all or any part of oi'interest in tlie Sulroi'dinate Financing, the Subordinate Financing Docutnents,-{he

collateral securing the Subordinate Financing, the Clairns, the Voting Rights, the Monies or any of the

other rights and powers assigned hereby, except to First Priority [,ender.

(k) First Priority Lender Debt. First Prio rity Lender rnay, at any time and fì'orn

time to time, witirout tire consent of or uotice to Sutrorciinate LencÌer and without incurring any

responsibility or liability to Subordinate l-ender, and without irnpairing or releasìng the obligatiorrs of
Subordinate Lender hereunder, enter into any arnendtnent, deferral, extensiotr, modification, incl'ease,

Leuewal, replacement, consolidatior.r, supplernert ol waiver (collectively, a "First Priority I-oan

Moclification") of the First Priority Loan or the Ijirst Priority Loan Documents provided that, without the

prior wrillen consent of Subordinatc Lender', which consent may be given or denied in Subordinate

Lender's sole and absolute discretion, no such First Priolity Loan Modificâtion shall (i) increase the

interest rate other than to effect a change provided for in the First Priority Loan Documents, including

provisions in the First Priority Loan Documents for changes in the interest rate, interest charged at the

default rate, and late charges, (ii) inclease the principal atnount of the First Priority Loan except for
Protective Advances, (iii) shorten tire scheduleci matr,rlity date of the lrirst Priority Loan, (iv) convelt or

exchangethe First Priolity Loan inio or iol any otlrer indebteduess or subordinate any of the First Frior-ity

Loa¡ to any inciebteci¡ress of Bcili'ower, (v) airrenci or rrrociify tiie provisions iirniting Iransfers of inte¡-esis

in the Borrower or tlre Proper-ty to aflèct adversely the rights of Subordinate Lender, or (vi) cross default

the First Priority Loan with any othel indebtedness unrelated to tlre Plopelty, provided, however, in no

eveni shall Irirsi Pliority Lenclei'be obiigaieci to otriain SLii-rot'dirrate Lender's cottseltt to a F-ilst Prioi-ity

Loan Moclification in the case of a work-oLrt or othet'surrettdet', corlprotlise, release, renewal, or

indulgerrce relating to the Irirst Pliority L,oan if there is a defàult under the First Priority Loan Docttntents,

except tþat under no conclitions shall clause (ii) (with respect to inclease prinoipal alrount only) be

nlodified without the written consenl of Subordinate l.ender. In addition and notwithstanding the
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foregoing provisions of this subparagraplr, any arnounts funcled by any First Priority Lender under the

First Priolity Loan Docurnents as a result of (A) the rnaking of any Protective Advances by tlre First
Priority l,ender or any Irirst Priolity Lender, or (ll) interest accruals or accretiol.ls and any compounding
thereof (including default interest), shall not be deemed to contravelle this subparagraph. First Priority
Lender acknowledges and agrees that pr-rrsuant to the tenns of the Filst Priority Loan Doculnents, the First
Priority Loan is not revolving. "Protective Advances" shall rnean all sums advallced for the purpose clf
payment of real estate taxes (including special payrnents in lieu of real estate taxes), personal property
taxes, rnaintenance and operating costs, rel'r-rrbishrlents or otlrer itnproveurents to improve or enhance the

Propefiy, insurance plemiums or other iterns (including capital itenis) reasonably necessary to protect the

Properly (including, but not linlited to, all reasonable atlonreys' fees actually incurred, costs relatingto
the ently upon the Property to urake such repairs and replacetnents, and the paytnent, purchase, colltest or

compromise of any encumbrance, charge or lien which is trot permitted under the terms of the First
Priority Loan Docullents) or to otherwise protect the Property fi'om forfeiture, casualty, loss or waste.

First Priority Lender may, at any time and lÌom time to time, without the consent of or notice to
Subordinate Lender and without irrculring any responsibility or tiability to Suboldinate Lender, ancl

without impailing or releasing the obligations of Subordinate l.,ender hereunder, release anyone liable in
any lnanner for the payrnent or collection of tl-re First Priority Loan or any portion thereof, exet'cise or
refrain t'om exercising any rights against the llorrower and others, and apply any sulns by whomsoever
paid or however realized to the F'irst Priority Loan or any portion thereof.

(l) No Moclification of Subordinate Financine. Subordinate Lender will not,

without First Priority Lendel''s prior written conserrt in Filst Priority l-euder's sole and absolute

discretion, enter into any arnendment, deferral, extension, rnodification, increase, renewal, replacement,

consolidation, supplement or waiver'(collectively, a "Subordinate Financing Modification") of the

Subordinate Financing or the Subordinate Financing Dbcunrents. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the

prior written consent of First Priority Lender shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, if the

Subordinate Financing Modification shall not (i) increase the interest rate or principal amount of the

Subordinate Financing, (ii) increase in any rnaterial res¡rect any rnonetal'y obligations of Borrower under

the Suboldinate Financing Documents, (iii) extend or shorten tl-le scheduled maturity date of the

Subordinate Financing (except that Subordinate Lender rnay permit Bon'ower to exercise any extension

options in accorclance with the tenns and provisions of the Subordinate Irinancing Documents) or change

(to any earlier date) any other dates upon which paymerìts of principal or interest are clue thereon,
(iv) convert or exchange the Subordinate Iìinancing into ol for any other indebtedness or subordinate any

of the Suboldinate F inancir-rg to any indetrtedness of Ilolrower", (v) provide for any additional contingent
interest, adclitional interest or so-called "kicker" rneasured on the basis of the cash flow or appreciation of
the Properly, (vi) cross default the SLrbordinate Financing with any other indebtedness other than the First
Priority Loan, or change any event of'cJefault hereunder or under the Subordinate Financing Documents,

(vii) otherwise materially increase the obligations of Borrower, or (viii) contravene any plovision of this
Agreement. Subordinate Lender shall clelivel to First Priority Lender copies of any and all Subordinate

Financing Modificatiolrs (including, without linritation, any side letters, waivers or consents entered into,
executed or delivered by Subordinate Lender) within a reasonable tirne after any of such applicable
instruments have been executed by SLrborclinate Lencler.

(m) Refìnance of Subordinate F-inancinq. So long the First Priority Loan or any

portion thereof remains outstanding, auy refìnance of the Sr-lbordinate Irinancing shall be subject to Iìirst
Priority Lender's prior written approval of the tcrrns thereof and the refinance lender, which approval may

be granted or withheld by First Priority Lendel in its sole and absolute discletion; except that with plior
wriffen notice to First Priority Lender, a refìnance by Subordinatc Lender that extends the maturity date of
the Sr-lbordirrate Irinancingto the extencled date o1'the Irirst Priority Loan if the First Priority Loan is
extended, and capitalizes ¿ìny accruecj interest and closing costs without furlhei additional principal

Subordination A grecmenl (Subord inatc Debt)
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advances, lray be entered into so long as tlrere is no defar-¡lt undcr thc Fir-st Priority Loalr Docrtments and

does not effect any urodifìcation uot pelr.nitted by subparagt'z-Lph (l) above'

(n) Surnlus F'uncls Unon Foreclosure. Borrower het'eby assigns and transfers unto

tlie Suborclinate Lender all sr.rlplr-rs l'-lnds which may come into the hands of tlre holder of the Filst Pliority

Mortgage upon lbreclosure of sarne and after payment of all arnounts secured by the Filst Priority Loan

Docuurents, ancl hereby directs that said surplus funds be paid over fonhwith to Subordinate Lencler in

payment ottlie debt secured by the Sutrordinate Financing Docutrrents.

(o) Payment Rlght. Notwithsta-nding any cortl'ar')/ provision, in the cvenl of a

default under the First Priolity Loan Docutlents, Subordinate Lendet'shall have the right (but Subordinate

Lencler is not obligated) to pay First Priority l,encler the uupaid principal balance, plus all accrued interest,

outstandiug late charges, costs of collection and prepayment prentiutns, owing on the note secured by the

Fi¡st Priority Loan Documents, ir.r which case the First Priority Loan Doculnents togethet' with the note

secured thereby and all other instluments evidencing and secltring said indebteclness will be transfeued,

assigned and delivered (without recoutse) by First Priority Lencler to Subordinate Lender.

(p) Cross l)efault. At the option of the Suborclinate Lender, the occurrettce of an

event of default under the First Priolity Loan Documents shall constitute an event of default under the

Subo¡cli¡ate Financing Documents. In lhe event of any clefault in the pelfollnance of any obligations

uncler the First Priority [,oan l)ocuments, the Subordinate l.,ender tnay make arìy payments or perfonn any

acts necessary to relieve saicl clefault, and the cost thereofshall be added to the indebtedness secured by

the Subordinate Financing Docunents. In additiou, at the option of First Priority Lender, the occut'relrce

of an event of clefault under the Subordinate Financing Docurnetrts shall constitttte an eveut of clefatllt

under the First Priority Loan I)ocutnents.

, (q) Notice of Ðelault anci C)¡rr¡ortunitv to Cure; Non-Curairle Ðefaults. in the

event of a default unde r the lìirst Priority l.oan Documents and prior to cxcrcising any right or retnedy to

whìch First Ilriority Lencler nay be e ntitled orì account of such default, pursuant to applicable law, the

First Priority Loan Docurnents ol to tlre tenns of the note secured by the First Priority Moftgage
(including the right to accelerate the indebtedness securecl by the Irirst I'riority Loan Documents) First

Priority Lencicr siraii (i) notify Suirorciinate Lencier in writing of such cìefauìt at the address sei forih
below, (ii) pe¡nit Subordinate [,ender (but Subordinate Lender is not obligated) to cure any sucli default

within thirty (30) days flont the clelivery of suclr notice by rnaking payment or doing such other act or

thi¡g as may be necessary or proper, or, iu the case of a default wltich cannot with due diligence be cured

within a period of tirirfy (30) days, permit Subordinate Lender (but Subordinate l-ender is not obligated)

to begin to cure such de fault plomptly after the mailing of such notice so long as Subordinate Lender

prosecutes the curing with all due diligence and cures Such default within sixty (60) days, and (iii) accept

all payments made and all acts and things done by Suborclinate l,ender as thouglr the same had been

timely done or perfonnecl by Borrower so that they shall be as effective to prevent a default as the satne

would have been if timely done or performed by Borlowet'. ln the event of the occurrence of a

non-curable default undel the First Priority Loau Docuuents prior to any succession to title by the

Suborciinate [,endel undel any of the Suborclinate i:inancing Doculnents or otherwise, First Pliority
Lencier agrees that it wiii iroi exei'cisr: any of iTs rerneciies avaiiairle to it uncierthe ìrilst Priority Loan

Documents or ally collateral doct¡rnents so long as all payments under the First Priority Loan are kept

current and all curable defaults ale cured pursuant to the provisions hereof. Subsequent to any succession

to tiile by fhe Suboldiiraie Lencìcl uirclei'any of the Sr-ri-'or-dilate Financing Doci¡ments oi otherwise, I?irsi

Priority Lender may exercise any of its remedies available to it under the Irirst Priority Loan l)oct-ttnents

or any collateral docur.nents in the event of any defaLrlt under the [iirst Priority l-oan, without regard to

whether such delaults are cul'able or not by Borrower or Subordinate Lender.

- 10 -
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(r) First Priority Loan Amount. First Priority l-ender lieleby acknowledges tliat
there are uo other obligations or indebtedness of Bolrower secured by the First Priority Loan Docutnents

other than the Filst Priority Loan, and, without the prior writte¡r consent of Subordinate Lender, First
Priority Lender shall make no othel advances or loans, except for the First Pliority Loan, to Borrower
which will be secured by the Iìirst Priolity Loan Documents other than advances to pay taxes,

assessments, insurance plerniums, attorneys' fees and funds to repair, maintain or preserve the Property

and improvements therein or thereotr.

(s) No Othcr Amcnclment. l3xcept for the subordination herein contained in favor
of First Priority Lender, nothing contained herein shall in anywise impair, alter or diminish the effect,
security title, security interest, lien ol encurnlrrance of the Suboldinate Financing Documents ft'om

Bolrower to Subordinate Lender on the Property or any of the rights and remedies of Subordinate Lender
granted tl'rerein.

(Ð Termination of This Asreement. At such tilne as the First Priori ty Loan is paid

and satisfìed in full, this Agreernent shall telminate and First Pliority Lender and Subordinate Lender
shall each thereupon execute suclr terrnination docutnents as the other may reasonably request.

Notwithstanding the irnmediately preceding ser-ìtel'ìce, if this Agreement tennirlates at such time as the

F'irst Priority Loan is paid and satisfied in full, all actions taken by First Priority Lender in connection

with this Agreement ol'with respect to the rights, title and interests hereby assigned shall continr"¡e to be

valid and binding r-rpon Subordinate Lendel'notwithstanding any sucll termination, except that any future
actior-ts (including paynlents ol distributions) shall no longer be controlled by any actions taken by First
Priority Lender prior to termination of this Agreement.

4. Notices. Any and all not'ices, elections, dernands, requests ancl responses thereto

perrnitted or required to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing, signed by or on behalf of the

parly giving the same, and shall be deemed to have been properly given and shall be effective upon being
eitlier (i) personally delivered or delivered by courier or Inessenger, (ii) delivered by recognized air
courier (such as Overrright Delivery, UPS or Airborne), or (iii) depositecl in the United States mail,
certified with return receipt requested, in each case with all postage or delivery charges prepaid,

addressed to the other party at the address ofsuch othel party set forth below or at such other address

witllin the contìnental Unitecl States as such other paÍy may designate by notice specifically designated as

a notice of change of address and given in accordance herewith; provided, however, that the tirne period

in which a response to any such notice, electiou, demand or t'equest must be given slrall comlnence on the

date ofreceiptthereof; and provided firrlherthat no notice ofchange ofaddress shall be effective until the

date ofreceipt thereof. Rejection or other refusal to accept or inability to deliver because ofchanged
address of which no notice has beerr received shall also constitt-lte receipt.

Any such notice, election, demand, request or l'esponse, if given to First Priority Lendet',

shall be addressed as follows:

Anerican Memorial Life Insr-¡rance Company
c/o Assurant Asset Management
28 I-iberry Street
Ncw York, NY ì0005
Attn: General Counsel; Loan No. 4040360-03
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With a copy to

Assulant Asset ManagerÌìent
28 l,iberty Street

Ner¡ York, New York 10005

Attn: Scniol Vice Plesicient - Mor-tgagcs; Loan No. 4040360-U3

and, if givcn to Suborclinatc l-ctrdcr, shall bc addrcsscd as follows

North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creeh Place
ì.Jovato, CA 94948
Attn:

and, if given to Borrower, shall be addressed as follows

Marin Country Club. Inc
500 Country Club Drive
Novato, CA, 94949
Attn: Genelal Manager

Any notice, delnand or request which shall lre served upon either of the parties in the manner aforesaid

shall be deemed sufficiently giveu fol all purposes hereunder (a) at the time such notices, demands or
requests al'e hancl-clelivered in person or (tr) lìr,e (5) days after the ciate of the rnailing of such notices,

demands or requests in accordance witl-r the preceding porlion of this paragraph.

5. Ilurther ¡ictio¡ls. 'l'hisAgleellent is absolute and is effèctive itlmediately and

Subordinate Lender slrall, upon request by First Pliolity Lendct', n-ìake, execute and deliver, or cause to

made, executed and deliveled to First Pliority Lender and, where appropriate, cause to be recorcled and/or

filed and fi'om time to time thereafter to be le-recorded and/or refiled at such time and in such offices and

places as shall be deerned desirable by Irirst Priority Lender', any and all such other and fttrther
erssignments, instrurlenis of firltircr assLrral-ìce, cenificates auci otirer ciocutnents as lnay be reasonabiy

required in older to effectuate, corRplete, ol perfect, or to continue and preserve the obligations of
Subordinate Lender and/ol tlre riglrts of First I'riority l,ender under this Agreement. Upon any failure by

Subordinate Lender so to do, Filst Priority Lender rnay make, execute, record, file, re-record and/ol refile
any and all sucli assignments, instruments, certificates, ancl documents for and in the name of Subordinate

Lender, and Subordinate Lender hereby irrevocably appoint First Priority Lender the agent and

attorney-in-fact of Subordinate Lender so to do. After request by the First Priority Lender, the

Subordinate Lencler shall within ten ( I 0) clays furnish the Filst Priolity Lender with a true and complete
copy of all Subordinate Financing Doouurents (if not theletofore provided), together with a statet-ìle nt,

duly acknowledged and cerlified setting lbrth the original principal atnount owed under The Subordinate

Financing Docurnents, the r.rnpaicl principal balance, all accrued interest but unpaid interest ancl any other

sums <Jue ancÌ owing thereun<.ler, the rate of interesi, the rnoniìrly payments and that there exisis uo

defar¡its r¡ncier tire Sr¡'ooi'ciinate Iiinanc.iirg or the Suborciinate Finaucing i)oc,r.nlenls.

6.
^,t41- -,-:,-(,alltutltta.

Governing Law. "['his Agreernent shall be governed by the laws of the State of

7. Counterparts. 'l'his Agleelrent may be executed in several coLlrlterparts, each of which
shall be considered an ot'iginal lòr'all pr-rr¡roses.
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8. No Waivcr. No waiver by any party of the courpliance of auy other party with any tel'tl,
condition, provision, obligation, or requirement under this Agleernent shall constifute a waiver of such

parly's right to require full cornpliance therewith. No failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in
exercising any right, power or remedy hereunder sl-rall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or
partial exercise of any sr,rch right, powel-or retledy preclude any other or furtlrer exercise thereof or the

exercise of any otl-rer right, power or retnedy hereunder.

9. Exrrenses. Borrower will pay all costs ancl expenses required to satisfy the conditions of
this Agreement, including but not limited to, all taxes and recording expenses and all legal fees and

expenses of First Priority Lender's and Subordinate Lender's coLtnsel.

10. Equitable Rclief. Each party hereto acknowledges that to the extent that no adequate

re medy at law exists for breach of its obligations under this Agreement, in the eveltt either party fails to
comply with its obligations hereunder, the otl-rer party shall have the right to seek specific performance of
the obligations of such defaulting ¡rar1y, injunctive relief ol'such other equitable relief as may be

available. In case any provision contained in this Agreement shall be unenforceable, the enforceability of
the remaining provisions shall not be irrpaired thereby.

11. Amenclments in Writing. No amendment, suppletrent, modification, walvel'or
terrnination of this Agreernent shall bc ef.fective against a party against whom the enforcenrent of such

amendrnent, supplement, rnoclification, waiver or tennination would be asserted, unless such atnendtnent,

supplement, modifìcatiou, waiver or termination was urade in a writing signed by such party.

12. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon Borrower, Subordinate

l,ender, First Priority Lender ând their lespective heirs, successors, personal representatives and assigns

and shall inure to the benefit of Subordinate Lender and First Priority L,ender and its successors and

assigns.

IN WITNESS WHIùREOF, the parlies hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals the day

and year first above written.

SUIìORDINATE LENDER:

NORTI{ MAIÌIN WATER DISTIIICT

By:
Nalne:
Title:

(AI'I-ACI r ACKNOW LEDGMENT)
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ACKNOWLRDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this cefiificate verifies only the identity of the individual who
signed the docr¡rnent to v,rhich lhis certificate is allached, and not the truthfi-rlness, accuracy, or validity of
that document.

STATI] OF CALIFOIìNIA

COUNTY OF

on 

-,201'/ 

beforerne, 

--, 

a Notar¡r PLrblic,
pelsonally appeared , who proved to lne ou the basis of
satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subsclibed to tlre within instrument and

acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies). and that
l-., L:./l"^-/rt oi*.i^"^r".^ro\ nn rlra ino{r,¡rnan+ th^ ^^"o^-r'.\ ^'. rh^ a.f il, rr¡rnn hÂholf ^f r',hi¡h lh-u) tttst rrw¡/rrrwr¡ J¡Ètrr(¡tr¡rw\rr, u¡¡ ¡¡rv r¡r! Pv¡rvr¡\J,t, v¡ t¡¡L

person(s) acted, executed the instrurrent.

I certify under PIìNALI'Y OF PERJURY uncler the laws of the State of California tl-rat the foregoiug
palagraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my lrand and official seal

(Seal)

(Signature of person taking aclcnowledgment)
(f itle or rank)

(Serial nurrber, if any)

SS
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BORROWER:

MARIN COUNTRY CLUB,INC., a Califolnia
corporatiou

By
Name:
Title:

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or otl'ìer offìcer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who
signed the docurnellt to which tliis certificate is attached, aÍìd not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of
that document.

STATI] OF CALIFOIìNIA

COUNTY OF

On

SS

personally appeared , wlro pt'oved to me on the basis of
iatisfactory"uid"n."toscribedtothewithininstrumentarrcl
acknowledged to me that helshe/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that
by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument tlre person(-s), or the entity upon behalf of which the
person(s) acted, executed the instrurneut.

I cerlify Lrnder PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of tlre State of Cal;fornia'that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

(Seal)

(Signature of person taking acknowledgment)
('fitle or rank)

(Serial nurnber, if any)

2017 beforerne,_ , aNotary Public,
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FIIìST PIìIOTìITY LENDER:

,{MEIìICAN MBMORIAL LIFE INSURANCE
COMPA.NY, a Sor"rth Dakota corporation

Ily
Narne
T'itle:

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A uotaly public ol other offìcer cornpleting this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who
signe'J the docurleut to rvhich this certificate is attached, and not the tluthfulness, accurac¡r, ol validity of
that document.

S'fA'fE OF NEW YORK

CO',.JNTY OF Ì{EW YOIìK

On
pelsonally appealed , who proved to me on tlre basis of'
iatisfactory 

"ui,l.n"" 
tu b" tl* po=-49 *Ìr.,r*- t*ur"19 irlr= ,rbsclibcd Lo tlle within instl'unlent ancl

acknorrledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that
by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the

¡lclson(s) aclecl, executcd thc instrurnent.

I certify undel PENALTY OF PEIìJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

WI'|NBSS my hand and officialseal

(Seal)

(Signature of person taking acknowledgrnent)
l'l-it le or r:rnk)

(Serial nurnber, if any)

2017 before rna, _ , a Notary I'ublic,
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EXHIIìIT A

(Legal Description of Real Property)

'lax Map Relerence Numbers : 160-422-08; | 60-040-24; I 60-0 I 0-1 5 ; 160-3 82- 1 3
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EXHIBIT B

(l,ist All Suboldinate FinancingDocuments; to be Delivered to Firsl Priority l-cnder)

l) Suboldinate Loan A-greement;

2) the Subordinate Mortgage.
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IDRAFTJ

Recording requested by:

North Marin Water District

When recorded mail to:

Bold, Polisner, Maddow, Nelson & Judson

500 Ygnacio Valley Road, Suite 325

Walnut Creek, CA 94596
Attn: Ari Lauer

Space above this line for Recorder's use

SUBORDINATED DEED OF' TRUST

THIS SUBORDINATED DEED OF TRUST (the "Deed of Trust"), made and entered into
effective this day of 

-,2016, 

between
MARIN COUNTRY CLUB, INC., a California corporation (the "Trustor"), whose address is 500

Country Club Drive, Novato, CA 94949; NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT (the "Beneficiary"),
whose address is 999 Rush Creek Place, Novato, CA 94948; and BOLD, POLISNER, MADDOW,
NELSON & JUDSON, a California Professional Corporation (the "Trustee"), whose address is 500

Ygnacio Valley Road, Suite 325, Walnut Creek, CA 94596;

TRUSTOR I-IEREBY irrevocably grants, transfers, and assigns to Trustee, in trust, with power of
sale, all of Trustor's right, title and interest in that certain real property in the Cify of Novato, County of
Marin, State of California, commonly known as Assessor's Parcel Numbers 160-422-08, 160-040-24,
160-010-75 and 160-382-13, as more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and

incorporated herein (the "Properfy").

ARTICLE I. THIS CONVEYANCE IS FOR THE PURPOSE OF SECURING:

1. Payment of the indebtedness fevidenced by that certain Promissory Note of even date

herewithl in the stated principal amount of One Million Six Hundred Ninety-Five Thousand Seven

Hundred Fifty-Eight Dollars ($1,695,758), which is executed by Trustor and payable to Beneficiary (the

"Note"), together with interest thereon and late charges as provided by the Note, which are made a paft
hereby reference.

2. The payment of additional sums and interest thereon which may hereafter be incurred by or
loaned to Trustor, or its successors or permitted assigns, when evidenced by another note or notes,

reciting it is so secured by this Deed of Trust, and made by Trustor or any successor in ownership, and all
renewals, extensions, modifications or amendments of such note or notes; and

3. The performance of each obligation of Trustor contained in this Deed of Trust.

ARTICLE II. TO PROTECT THE SECUzuTY OF THIS DEED OF TRUST, TRUSTOIì AGREES:

1. To keep the Property in good condition and repair and to not to commit or permit waste of
the Properly.

2. To provide, rnaintain, and deliver to Beneficiary a policy of fire insurance satisfactory to and

with loss payable to Beneficiary. If Trustor is not in default hereunder, Trustor shall have the right,
within Trustor's sole discretion, to apply the insurance proceeds under any fire insurance policy to

restore or rcbuild any portion of tl-re Property that has been damaged or destroyed to the same condition,
character and value as existed prior to such darnage or destruction, so long as the value of the property is

1 EXHIBIT C
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not less than the value of the outstanding balance of the Note. If the value of the property is less than the

value of the total outstanding indebtedness secured against the Property, and Trustor does not apply tlie
insurance proceeds as set forth in the preceding sentence, then Trustor shall apply such insurance
proceeds to reduce the amount of the indebtedness under the Note by the amount of such insurance
proceeds to the extent of the outstanding balance of the Note. In the event that Trustor is in default
hereunder, Beneficiary shall have the option, to apply the insurance proceeds to cure the default under

the Deed of Trust, and release the remaining proceeds to Trustor to restore or rebuild tlie Property that
has been damaged or destroyed.

3. To appear in and defend, and to pay all costs and expenses of, including costs ofevidence of
title and attorneys' fees in a reasonable suln, in any action or proceeding purporting to affect the security
of this Deed of Trust or purpofting to affect the rights and powers of Beneficiary or Trustee.

4. To pay, at least l0 days before delinquency, all taxes and assessments affecting the Property,
and all costs, fees, and expenses described in this Deed of Trust. If Trustor fails to make any payment or
to do any act as provided in this Deed of Trust, then Beneficiary or Trustee rnay (but is not obligated to),
without any notice to Trustor, make the payment or do the act in the required manner and to the extent
deemed necessary by Beneficiary or Trustee to protect the security of this Deed of TrLrst.

ARTICLE III. TI{E PARTIES AGREE THAT:

1. This Deed of Trust and the indebtedness secured by this Deed of Trust shall at all tirnes

be subject to the terms and conditions of a Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement, dated January 7,

2015, by and among Beneficiary, Trustor and American Memorial Life Insurance Cornpany ("Senior
Lender") (as arnended or otherwise modified from time to time, the "Subordination Agreernent").
Pursuant to the Subordination Agreement, Benef,tciary agreed to subordinate this Deed of Trust to that
certain Deed of Trust dated as of January 7, 2015 for the benef,rt of "Senior Lender," as beneficiary
("Senior Deed of Trust") which senior Deed of Trust encumbers the Property. The rights of the
Beneficiary to receive payrnent and to exercise rights hereunder shall at all times be subject and

subordinate to the payrnent of all senior loan obligations pursuant to the terms of the Subordination
Agreement.

2. Upon default by Trustor in the payment of any indebtedness secured by this Deed of
Trust or in the performance of any obligation under this Deed of Trust, Beneficiary may declare all sums

secured by this Deed of Trust immediately due and payable by delivering to Trustee (a) a written
declaration of default and dernand for sale, and (b) a written notice of default and election to sell the

Property. Trustee shall duly record the notice of default and election to sell. Beneficiary also shall

deposit with Trustee this Deed of Trust, and all documents evidencing any additional expenditures

secured by this Deed of Trust.

After the required time period has lapsed following the recordation of the notice of default, and

after notice of sale has been given as required by law, Trustee, without demand on Trustor, shall sell the

Property at the time and place specified in the notice of sale, either as a whole or in separate parcels, and

in any order determined by Trustee, at public auction to the highest bidder for cash in lawful money of
the United States, payable at the tirne of sale. Trustee may postpone sale of all or any portion of the

Property by public announeement at the time and place of sale, and from time to time thereafter may
postpone the sale by public announcement at the tirne fixed by the preceding postponement. Trustee

shall deliver to the purchaser at the auction its deed conveying the Property sold, but without any

covenant or warranty, express or implied. The recital in the deed of any matter or fact shall be conclusive
proof of the truthfulness thereof. Any person, including Trustor, Trustee, or Beneficiary, may purchase at

the sale.

2
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After dedr,rcting all costs, fees, and expenses of Trustee and Beneficiary under this Paragraph I ol'
Article III, including costs of procuring evidence of title incurred in connection with sale, Trustee shall
apply the proceeds of sale to payment of: all sums expended under the terms of this Deed of Trust, not
then repaid, with accrued interest at the rate then in effect as of the date hereof (but not in excess of the
maximum rate of interest then permifted by law); all other sums then secured by this Deed of Trust; and
the remainder, if any, to the person or persons legally entitled thereto.

3. If all or any part of the Property, or any interest therein, is sold, conveyed, transferred,
disposed of, or alienated by Trustor, or by the operation of law or otherwise, all sums secured by this
Deed of Trust sliall, at the option of Beneficiary, become immediately due and payable. Trustor shall not
assign this Deed of Trust without the prior written consent of Beneficiary, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, provided that (a) Beneficiary shall have no right to approve the sale of the
Properly, and (b) Beneficiary's right to approve the sale of assets of the Trustor is limited to situations
where those assets remaining after such sale are less than the total outstanding indebtedness secured
against the Property, as valued by an appraisal obtained at the time of such sale. An assignment of this
Deed of Trust by Trustor in violation of this Section 3 shall be deemed a sale of the Propefy and all
sums secured by this Deed of Trust shall, at the option of Beneficiary, become immediately due and
payable.

4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Deed of Trust, Trustor shall have the right,
without the consent of Beneficiary, but upon written notice to the Beneficiary, and upon provision of an
appraisal (which at the option of Trustor may be obtained at the time of the proposed encumbrance or
may preexist such proposed encumbrance), to further encumber the Propery by recording additional
security instruments in positions senior to this Deed of Trust after the date hereof and this Deed of Trust
shall be made subordinate to any additional indebtedness that is secured by the Property after the date of
this Deed of Trust, provided, however. that the total outstanding indebtedness secured against the
Property does not exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the appraised value of the Property at the tirne
of securing a new loan against the Property. If Trustor elects to further encumber the Property by
additional indebtedness, Trustor shall obtain an appraisal to determine the appraised value of the
Property at the time of securing a new loan against the Property, which such appraiser shall be selected
by Trustor, subject to the consent of Benehciary, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

5. By accepting payment of any suln secured by this Deed of Trust after its due date,
Beneficiary does not waive its right either to require payment when due of all other sums so secured or to
declare default for failure to pay any indebtedness secured by this Deed of Trust.

6. That upon written request of Beneficiary stating that all sums secured hereby have been paid,
and upon surrender of this Deed of Trust [and the Note] to Trustee for cancellation and retention and
upon payment of its fees, Trustee shall reconvey, without warranfy, the Property then held hereunder.
The recitals in such reconveyance of any matters or facts shall be conclusive proof of the truthfulness
thereof. The grantee in such reconveyance may be described as "the person or persons legally entitled
thereto. "

7 . Upon written request of Beneficiary and presentation of this Deed of Trust [and the Note] for
endorsement, and without notice to Trustor, Trustee may reconvey all or any paft of the Property. The
exercise by Trustee of any of the foregoing powers shall not affect the personal liability of any person for
payment of the indebtedness secured by this Deed of Trust, or the lien of this Deed of Trust as security
for the repayment of the full amount secured by this Deed of T"rust,

8. Any award of damages in connection witl-r any taking or condemnation, or for injury to the
Property by reason of public use, or for darnages for injury to the Propefty, up the outstanding balance of

J
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the Note at such tirne, shall be paid by Trustor to Beneficiary as further security for all obligations
secured by this Deed of Trust. Upon receipt of such proceeds, Trustor shall have the right to apply tliern
to the Property in the same manner and with the same effect as provided herein for the disposition of
proceeds of fire insurance. In the event that Trustor is in default hereunder, Beneficiary shall have the
option to apply proceeds to cure the default under the Deed of Trust, and release the remaining proceeds
to Trustor to restore or rebuild the Property that has been injured or damaged. Nothing herein shall
prevent the accrual of interest on any portion ofthe proceeds to be applied to the principal balance due
under the Note until the proceeds are received by Beneficiary.

9. All notices hereunder shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or
mailed by United States registered or certified mail, with return receipt requested, postage prepaid to the
parties at the following addresses (or at such other addresses as shall be given in writing upon any party
to the others) and shall be deemed complete upon any such rnailing:

To Trustor: Marin Country Club, Inc.
500 Country Club Drive
Novato, C1^.94949
Attention: Board of Directors and General Manager
Telephone: (415) 382-67 00

To Beneficiarv North Marin Water District

Attention:
Telephone:
Facsimile:

Trustor requests that a copy of any notice of default and of any notice of sale hereunder be
mailed to Trustor at the address set forth above.

10. This Deed of Trust applies to, inures to the benefit of, and binds all parlies to this Deed of
Trust and their heirs, legatees, devisees, administrators, executors, successors, and assigns. The term
"Beneficiary" shall mean the NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT, and its successors, and assigns. In
this Deed of Trust, whenever the context so requires, the masculine gender includes the feminine and/or
neuter, and the singular number includes the plural. This Deed of Trust may only be modified or
amended by a fonnal written instrument executed by the party against whom enforcement of tlìe
amendment or modification is sought.

1 l. Trustee accepts the rights and obligations hereunder when this Deed of Trust, duly executed
and acknowledged, is made a public record as provided by law. Trustee is not obligated to notify any
parfy to this Deed of Trust of pending sale under any other deed of trust or of any action or proceeding in
which Trustor, Beneficiary, or Trustee shall be a paúy unless brought by Trustee.

12. Benehciary, or any successor in ownership of any indebtedness secured by this Deed of
Trust, may from time to time, by written instrument and notice to Trustor, substitute a successor or
suÇcessors to any Trustee named in or acting under this Deed of Trust. When executed by Beneficiary
and duly acknowledged and recorded in the office of the recorder of the county where the Properfy is

situated, the substitution instrument shall be conclusive proof of proper substitution of the successor
Trustee or Trustees, whereupon the successor Trustee or Trustees shail, without any other instrument of
conveyance, succeed to allof the title, estate, rights, powers, and duties formerly held by the predecessor

4
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Trustee or Trustees. Said instrument must contain the name of the original Trustor, Trustee and
Beneficiary hereunder, the book and page where this Deed of Trust is recorded and the narne and address
of the ncw Trustee.

13. The rights, powers, and remedies conferred in this Deed of Trust are concurrent and
cumulative to all other rights, powers, and remedies provided in this Deed of Trust or given by law.
These rights, powers, and rernedies may be exercised singly, successively, or together, and as often as

deemed necessary, and, except to the extent required by law, the exercise of one right, power, or rernedy
shall not affect any other right, power, or remedy or cure or waive any default or notice of default under
this Deed of Trust.

14. The recitals contained in any reconveyance, trustee's deed, or any other instrument executed
by the Trustee from time to time under the authority of this Deed of Trust or in the exercise of its powers
or the performance of its duties under this Deed of Trust, shall be conclusive evidence thereof, and tlie
recitals shall be binding and conclusive upon the Trustor, its paftners, successors, and perrnitted assigns,
and all other persons.

15. Beneficiary or Trustee shall also have the right and power to enter upon the Properly for the
foregoing purposes, to appear in and defend any action or proceeding purporting to affect the security of
this Deed of Trust or the rights or"powers of Beneficiary or Trustee, to employ counsel; and to pay
necessary expenses and costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees.

16. Without affecting the liability or obligations of any person, including Trustor, for the
performance of any obligations secured hereby (excepting only any person or propeffy otherwise
expressly released in writing by Beneficiary), Beneficiary may from tirne to time and without notice
release any person liable for payment of any of said indebtedness or the performance of said obligations,
extend the tirne of payment or otherwise alter the terms of any of said obligations, accept additional
security therefor of any kind, including trusí deeds or mortgages, or alter, substitute or release any
property securing said obligations.

MARIN COI-INTRY CLUB, a California corporation

President
By:
Its :
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[Notary Acknowled gment]
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IIXHIBIT A

(Legal Description)

TO BE TNSERTED
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Item #14

To.

From:

Subject

(L
MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Pablo Ramudo, Water Quality Supervisor

February 1,2019

Point Reyes System -Disinfection Byproduct Operational Evaluation
P:\LAB\WQ Supv\2o19\DBP Eval in PR.doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

lnformation

None at this time

One of the samples recently collected for compliance with the Disinfection Byproduct Rule

had a concentration for total trihalomethanes (THM) above the level of the Maximum Contaminant

Limit (MCL). This sample was collected at the location representing the maximum water age of the

system as required by the regulations. The sample at this same location in the previous quarterwas

also above the level of the maximum contaminant limit. Although these test results were both above

the MCL, the running annual average remained below the MCL so the exceedances did not put the

district into a violation of the rule. The two exceedances did cause the Operational Evaluation Level

to exceed the MCL. (See attached January 11,2019 letter to the General Manager) The district is

required by the California Division of Drinking Water (DDW)to evaluate any and all conditions that

contributed to the high disinfection byproducts and submit a report of the evaluation by February 28,

2019. This evaluation is currently being finalized.

A temporary operating plan was formulated along with Brad Stompe, Treatment and

Distribution Supervisor, in order to minimize THM formation potential while continuing to provide

adequate disinfection for simultaneous compliance with the Total Coliform and Groundwater Rules.

SYSTEM EVALUATION

An analysis of the water sources, treatment practices, and distribution system operation has

clearly identified salinity intrusion at the Coast Guard Wells as the most significant factor contributing

to the increase in disinfection byproducts in the Point Reyes system. A decade of measurements of

chemical and physical qualities of the water as well as operational variables was evaluated, with the

marked increase in bromide being identified as the responsible chemical constituent.

HISTORY of SALINITY INTRUSION

The wells adjacent to the former Coast Guard Housing in Point Reyes Station have always been

susceptible to seawater intrusion into the aquifer during very high tides. For many years an

inflatable dam was used downstream of the wells in order to impound fresh water in the recharge

area. This effectively stopped any seawater from entering the aqueduct from which the Coast

Guard wells draw water. The use of the inflatable dam ceased in the 1980's as part of a settlement

with environmental groups concerned with the ability of migrating salmon to move upstream and

downstream.



BOD Memo Disinfection Byproduct Operational Evaluation
Page 2

HISTORY OF SALINITY INTRUSION (continued)

ln response to the removal of the inflatable dam, the district developed a practice of off{ide

pumping to avoid drawing salty water into the aquifer. The practice was frequently successful

although some years seawater did enter the aquifer, temporarily increasing measurable salts just

after the king tides in mid-summer. ln the last 10 or 12 years however, salinity intrusion has been

more severe and long-lasting. Salinity constituents have not returned to their baseline levels since

2013.

ln 2014 and 2015, NMWD completed a pipeline and facilities to pump source water from a

well on the Gallagher ranch to the Point Reyes Treatment Plant as a new source that would be out

of the reach of tidal influence and would not be susceptible to salinity intrusion. This well has been

instrumental in the District's ability to remain in compliance with the Disinfection Byproduct Rule as

well as the Lead and Copper Rule (salty water is more corrosive of metal plumbing components in

customers' homes). But despite being able to supply approximately 50% of demand from Gallagher

well, salinity has risen by so much at the Coast Guard Wells that their influence is now putting that

compliance at risk. Aparl from the increase in all constituents associated with seawater (sodium,

chloride, hardness) the dramatic increase in bromide of 3,000% is by far the most serious.

TEMPORARY OPERAT!NG CHANGES

ln response to the risk of a violation of the Disinfection Byproduct Rule we have developed a

set of criteria to minimize the formation of THMs. The target concentration for chlorination at the

Point Reyes treatment plant will be decreased from 0.90 mg/L to 0.80 mg/L. Additionally, the target

concentration for the chlorine booster at the PRE 1 pump station will be halved to 0.4 mg/L. To

mitigate for the decreased protection from microbial regrowth and risk from contamination, we will be

increasing the bacterial monitoring in the Paradise Ranch Estates Zones. Any increase in the

heterotrophic plate counts and/or any counts above 500 CFU/ml will prompt a corrective action

appropriate for the result (flushing, re-chlorination, increasing tank turnover).
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State Water Resources tontrol Board

January 11,2019 Water System No. 21 10006

Drew Mclntyre
North Marin Water District - Pt. Reyes
P.O. Box 146
Novato, CA 94948

DISINFECTION BYPRODUCT OPERATIONAL EVALUATION LEVEL EXCEEDANCE FOR

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT _ PT. REYES

Based on the most recent Total Trihalomethanes (TTHM) results for the North Marin Water

District - Pt. Reyes (System), sampled November 13,2018, the Operational Evaluation Level

(OEL) has exceädeO O.OAO milligrams per liter (mg/L). Section 64400.90 Chapter 15,Tille22 af

ih" California Code of Regulations defines the OEL for TTHM as "... the sum of the two

previous quarters' TTHM results plus twice the current quarter's TTHM result, divided by 4 to

determine an average." Each quarter, the System must calculate the locational running annual

average (LRAA) anð OELs to demonstrate that the LRAA is below the maximum contaminant

levels (MCLs) and the OELs are below report trigger levels'

The most recent TTHM OEL is 0.088 mg/L for the DIST - PRE #4 SAMPLE STATION

(2110006-008) location. The System must complete the Operational Evaluation Reporting
form, found at:
http://www.waterboa rds.ca.qov/drink inq water/proqrams/d istricts/son oma district.shtml#oel.

The eva uation report is desig ned to aid the water system in identifying problematic areas that

are contributing to the formation of disinfection byproducts. ldeally the System should take

action to remediate the Problem atic areas prior to the next quarterly DBP sample in order to

avoid an MCL exceedance. The evaluation must include Source Water, Treatment Process,

and Distribution System and the SYstem should use the associated evaluation checklists found

on the website. The SYstem is requ ired to submit a written report of the evaluation to the

Department no later than 90 days afte
result that caused the OEL exceedance
by February 28, 2019.

r being notified by the laboratory of the analytical
The evaluation reporl must be submitted to our office

lf you have any questions regarding this letter, please contact Waldon Wong al (707) 576-2764

Sincerely,
i;¿ å::: {..: Li f \i Lì L,}

(

lrq*o(
J M. Oakley, P.E., Son istrict Engineer

of Drinking Water
WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

Brad Stompe, P,O. Box 146, Novato, CA 94948
Pablo Ramudo, P,O. Box 146, Novato, CA 94948

Fplcta ft4lncus, cHntn I Etreeu Soaecr, EXEcurtvE DlREcroR

,!/i'\t I ii r,ili|J

!\J*rlli ltl r't i"i n \¡\/ei*r i"]isirir:i
CC:

50 D Street, Suite 200, Santa Rosa, CA 95404 I www.waterboards.ca.gov
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Item #15

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors February 1,2019

From: Pablo Ramudo, Water Quality Supervisor pR

Subject: Revised Report - Taste and Odor Control Strategy for Stafford Lake Treatment Plant
p:\lab\wq supv\2019\memo to board re t and o study revision doc

RECOMMENDEDAGTION: lnformationonly.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None at this time

North Marin Water District contracted SRT Consultants ln 2015 to help develop a

control strategy for taste and odor which occurs periodically in water sourced from

Stafford Lake Reservoir. The study was completed in December 2015 and presented to

the Board at the March 1 , 2016 meeting. The report includes a summary of the pertinent

monitoring data, identifies sources of the nutrients fueling algae blooms in Stafford Lake

and offers practical steps which the District can employ to control taste and odor events

in drinking water produced at Stafford Lake Treatment Plant'

After the repod was accepted, Dominic Grossi, one of the landowners on the

Stafford Lake Watershed and operator of the Grossi and Sons Dairy raised concerns

about some of the language in the report that he felt inaccurately described the potential

contribution that his operation had on the problem. NMWD asked SRT Consultants to

review Mr. Grossi's comments and make any revisions necessary to address his

concerns that any inaccuracy could mischaracterize Mr. Grossi's responsible land

management or minimize other potential external sources of nutrients. SRT has revised

the reporl which is attached for board review.
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SECTION I INTRODUCTION&PURPOSE

The North Marin Water District (NMWD or District) retained SRT Consultants (SRT) to

evaluate the causation and potentìal mitigation of taste and odor (T&O) issues observed in

the water of Stafford Lake. NMWD experiences seasonal T&O issues at Stafford Lake and

within the distribution system indicative of Geosmin-producing algal blooms.

Stafford Lake, as shown in Figure 1 , is a 1,21O acre-foot surface water detention lake within

Marin County and the Novãto Creek Watershed. Stafford Lake was created with the

construction ót Stafford Dam on Novato Creek in 1951 in order to provide a drinking water

supply source for the growing community of the City of Novato, which lies four miles east of

the lake.

Figure I Stafford Lake

Stafford Lake has a surface area of approximately 183 acres and drainage basin for a
watershed of approximately 8.3 square miles. Primary land uses in the Stafford Lake

watershed include: the lndiän Valley Golf Club, Stafford Lake Park, the George Grossi &

Sons Dairy, small wineries, low-density residential housing with septic systems, and a horse

ranch with associated grazing. Additional Stafford Lake and its watershed uses include

incidentalflood control and cattle grazing'

NMWD Comprehensive Taste and Odor Control Strategy
November 6,2015
Page 1 of 36
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NMWD is committed to the protection of the source of drinking water for Novato. NMWD

serves a suburban population of approximately 61,000 people over a 75 square mile service

area, as shown in Figure 2.

Figure 2 North Marin Water District Seruice Area

Water from Stafford Lake is treated at the Stafford Lake Water Treatment Plant (STP) located

direcfly below the Stafford Dam. Stafford Lake provides, on average, 2O-percent of the water

served by NMWD, when the STP is in operation'

1.1 Purpose
Due to a continuous occurrence of customer T&o complaints resulting from water quality

issues at Stafford Lake, NMWD has initiated the Stafford Lake Taste and Odor Control
project (project). This Comprehensive T&O Control Strategy Technical Memorandum (TM) is

the project's final deliverable.

per the NMWD objectives, a successful T&O Control Strategy would optimize the current

water treatment syétem to the best of its ability, while minimizing capital improvement costs,

to effectively contiol T&O. NMWD used copper sulfate previously as the primary approach for

managing átgae and T&O issues, however it was found ineffective and was discontinued'

NMWó ðoes not intend to use copper sulfate in the future and instead will continue to

NMWD Comprehensive Taste and Odor Control Strategy
November 6,2015
Page 2 of 36



implement other measures to control T&O. A graphical depiction of the NMWD T&O Control

Strategy objective is presented in Figure 3.

Figure 3 Comprehensive T&O Control Study Obiectives

The primary task for the T&O Control Project was the completion of the Water Quality
Evaluation TM, which included a comprehensive water quality evaluation and characterization
of T&O causation at Stafford Lake. The findings and recommendations of this TM form the

basis of this T&O Control Strategy TM.

The T&O Control Strategy includes the following:

(1) Characterization of the T&O issues at Stafford Lake;

(2) Descriptions of preferred T&O mitigation measures for NMWD and associated

costs, as applicable;

(3) A phased strategy for T&O control at Stafford Lake, including cost estimates for
capital improvements and cost-savings for optimized operations;

' (4)A longterm implementation schedule of the T&O control strategy; and

(5)An annual T&O mitigation schedule for operational optimization.

NMWD Comprehensive Taste and Odor Control Strategy
November 6, 2015
Page 3 of 36
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SECTION 2 CHARACTERIZATION OF T&O CAUSATION

The Stafford Lake water quality evaluation demonstrated that nutrient loading encourages

Geosmin-producing algae growih in the late spring/summer, and subsequent algae die-off in

the summer/fall, cãusing T&O issues and mid- and end-of-season STP shutdowns. This

phenomenon occurs Ouõ to thermal stratification, anoxic conditions in the hypolimnion, and

external and internal nutrient loading to Stafford Lake. Although significant efforts have been

attempted by NMWD in the past to mitigate the T&O issues, the existing source control and

treatment methods do not appear to adequately control the STP finished water quality' A

summary of the observations that led to this conclusion follows:

1. Nutrient Loading: Nutrient concentrations - specifically phosphorus, as the lake is
phosphorus-limitet - are sufficiently high to cause significant algal blooms.

o External Nutrient Loading: The watershed sampling points at the Fishing

Bridge and Grossi Culvert, both of which drain Grossi & Sons Dairy property,

and Þark Residence, which drains the Stafford Lake Park area, release higher

concentrations of nutrients, specifically phosphorus. External nutrient loading

from sources in the watershed over time has led to the accumulation of nutrients

in the sediments of the lake, and is responsible for the high concentration of

nutrients available for release into the water column (internal nutrient loading).

o lnternal Nutrient Loading: lncreased levels of Manganese (Mn) at the intake

during anoxic conditions and recurrent algal bloom patterns indicate that

significant internal nutrient loading is occurring in the lake. lnternal nutrient

toãOing perpetuates the algae growth cycle by feeding nutrients into the water

columñ duríng anoxic conditions, and subsequently becoming available to algae

in the epilimÑon after a winter turnover event. lnternal nutrient loading is likely

the dominant form of nutrient loading in the lake'

2. Algae Growth: Based on algae data recorded by NMWD, high concentrations of
algãe occur annually in the late spring learly summer after a turnover event.

o Cell counts for the Geosmin-producing algae (Anabaena, Aphanizomenon,
planktothrix) are much greater than for the M|B-producing bacteria, and algal

peaks occur with a slight lag to the phosphorus concentration peaks.

3. Taste and Odor: T&O events occur in the summer/fall, typically following periods of

Geosmin-producing algae growth and subsequent die-off. Algae decomposition also

decreases DO conceñtrations in the hypoliminion to anoxic levels and releases

nutrients from the lake sediments into the water column'

o Limited Geosmin concentration data indicates that Stafford Lake's Geosmin

concentrations before treatment are extremely high (450-500 ppt), and even

though removal is approximately 97 percent, effluent Geosmin concentrations

are well above the average human detection limit (9-14 ppt)'

4. Existing Treatment: Source control and treatment methods have been implemented

to mitigãte the T&O causing compounds in the lake and in the STP finished water'
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o The reservoir is actively aerated using a 1Z-acre aeration bed; however, the
hypolimnion remains anoxic during certain times of the year resulting in the
release of nutrients from the reservoir sediments.

o Epilimnetic SolarBees@ are utilized to mix the epilimnion a¡d disrupt the algae
giowth cycle, lt is inconclusive as to whether the SolarBees@ are effective.

o Efforts to improve primary coagulation have proved inefficient in removing
suspended/dissolved solids without substantial chemical additions. lnefficient
coagulation impedes the filtration efficiency^

o The removal of Mn with oxidation in the influent chamber followed by filtration
has proved difficult during peaks of Mn in source water. High levels of Mn that
remain in the water at STP ultimately use up capacity in the GAC units that
should be reserved for Geosmin treatment.
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SECTION 3 RECOMMENDED T&O CONTROL MITIGATION MEASURES

T&O mitigation strategies have been developed for Stafford Lake and the STP based on the

findings [resented iñtne Water euality Evaluation TM and are summarized in Section 6

there'lñ. éRt ano NMWD staff reviewed the recommended mitigation strategies to determine

feasibility and to prioritize the recommendations based on anticipated effectiveness, ease of

implementation, and cost.

The mitigation strategies considered to be effective and feasible for implementation are

detailed in the sectioñs below. cost of implementation and/or anticipated cost savings are

included for each mitigation strategy, as applicable. Mitigation strategies are categorized as

follows:

1) Source Control at Stafford Lake;

2) Optimized Removal of Geosmin; and
3) Treatment Process lmprovements at STP'

The selected alternatives were evaluated to create an initial phased approach for the T&O

Control Strategy, as presented in Section 4'

3.1 Source Control

ln congruence with the actions that NMWD has already taken to improve the source water

quality-conditions, mitigating the source of the algae blooms is recommended as the primary

means of facilitat¡né iao -control at stafford lãre. Although NMWD staff has previously

ãmploveo several different methods to prevent alg_al.blooms, the growth of algae continues to

recur in Stafford Lake on an annual basis. The following section details the recommended

mitigation alternatives that would control internal and external nutrient loading and

subsequent algae growth in the lake'

3.1.1 Additional Water Quality Monitoring

Additional monitoring of key water quality parameters should be implemented to better

understand the abáä growth cycles and tó optimize treatment techniques. Specifically, the

following parametels need to be monitored on a more frequent schedule:

. Geosmin in raw water and in the STP finished water to better understand the levels of

Geosmin that are occurring in the lake and the efficiency of Geosmin removal provided

at STp. nOì¡tionalty, it ÑUWD decides to convert to GAC-Capped Actifloc units,

Geosmin should be sampled after the Actifloc units and prior to the GAC units to

quantify the effectiveness. Geosmin should be sampled at least weekly during the time

of yeai when T&O episodes most commonly occur (May through October, depending

on the annualweather Patterns).

. Oxygen Reduction potential (ORP), Mn, lron (Fe), and DO at the lake bottom to track

the internal nutrient loading tÀat is'occurring in Stafford Lake on a daily basis. NMWD

staff has indicated that it was feasible to install a monitoring probe near the intake,

close to the bottom of the lake'

The water quality monitoring already conducted by NMWD with the addition of the above
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parameters forms the basis of a T&O control water quality action plan that includes identified

iriggers to assist NMWD staff in addressing T&O-causing conditions before a significant T&O

euent occurs. Section 4.2 includes an initial template for the water quality action plan, which

can be adjusted at the discretion of NMWD operations staff based on water quality data

trends.

Schedule and Estimated Cost
It is recommended that additional water quality monitoring be initiated immediately to further

inform NMWD as to the algal growth cycles within Stafford Lake. The cost of additional water

quality monitoring will vary baõed on the resources currently available (i.e., monitoring probe,

installation equipment). Additional monitoring of Geosmin will cost about $10,000 per year,

based on a monitoring schedule of 24 weeks per year and the collection of 3 samples per

week (raw water, afteùhe GAC-cap, and finished water).1'2

3.1.2 Strategic Planning for Watershed

Strategic planning for any watershed that feeds a drinking water reservoir is necessary. For

Staffold iake, sóecificaúy, a comprehensive Sanitary Survey is recommended to better

quantify the exteinal nutriônt loading sources coming from the watershed. A Sanitary Survey

would inform a general strategic plañ for watershed management, would specifically aid in the

development oi a nutrient management approach and sampling plan, and would provide

further insight into Phosphate sources within the watershed.

Schedule and Estimated Cost
It is recommended that NMWD conduct a Sanitary Survey of the Stafford Lake Watershed in

the first or second quarter of 2016. lt is anticipated that a qualified consultant can complete a

Sanitary Survey for approximately $30,000.

3.1.3 Nutrient Management at Grossi Dairy

Although there are other external sources of phosphates entering Stafford Lake, watershed

sampliñg conducted has indicated that the most substantial, quantifiable external source of
pfrospnãtes is the Grossi Dairy Farm (Dairy) in close proximity to Stafford Lake, as indicated

by tfre relative phosphorus ôoncentrations entering Stafford Lake from eight (B) points

throughout the watershed between 2010 and 2Oß.3 Although the Dairy has developed a set

of nut-rient management BMPs, run-off from the Dairy continues to feed nutrients into Stafford

Lake. Additionally, there is no required nutrient or water quality monitoring plan in place as a

means of tracking the nutrient loading from the Dairy'

1 This estimate based on $12glsample from EMSL Analytics in San Leandro, and 3 samples a week for 24-

weeks. lf this is determined to be cost-prohibitive for the District, the number of samples and/or number of weeks

can be reduced, however the results will not be as comprehensive.
, tr¡àrin Municipal Water District (MMWD) was contacted to obtain an estimate for a Geosmin sample, as the

only data received by SRT for Gèosmin iesting was completed at MMWD. MMWD was not able to provide a

sampte cost, howevér, it is recommended thaaNMWD explore this option based on the existing relationship

between the water districts.5f*i"*ur phosphorus loading has been monitored by NMWD through watershed sampling. The highest levels of

phosphorus in ihe watershedare from sample points at the Grossi. culvert and the Fishing Bridge, both of which

ärain'the Grossi property (NMWD Water Quality Evaluation Technical Memorandum, September, 2015)' other

sources of phosphoius álso enter the lake around its perimeter, however these sources cannot be quantified.
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It is critical that the Dairy institutes a more effective nutrient management program that
includes a water quality monitoring component to ensure that nutrient loading is not occurring
from agricultural run-off. lt is anticipated that monitoring requirements will be included in the
new waste discharge permit (or waiver) from the Regional Water Quality Control Board
(RWOCB) and an annual report should be generated from the monitoring program for review
by the RWQCB and NMWD. Attachment A includes guidelines for dairy waste management,

Controlling the nutrient inputs to Stafford Lake is essential to resolving the algal blooms and
T&O issues at STP, and would not be effective without managing nutrient concentrations from
the Dairy run-off. lf the implementation of additional BMPs and specific monitoring
requirements are not possible at the Dairy, it is recommended that NMWD consider
negotiations with the landowner to relocate the waste produced by the Dairy operation,
including manure application, to land further removed from the drinking water source, or
outside of the drinking water source watershed. Additionally, NMWD could consider
purchasing the land on which the Dairy currently operates to increase control and oversight
on the watershed should external nutrient loading into Stafford Lake from the Dairy continue,

Schedule and Estimated Cost
It is recommended that NMWD continue discussions with Grossi Dairy Farm and Marin
County regarding the external nutrient inputs that have been feeding Stafford Lake and the
alternatives for nutrient management, as listed above. Based on the issues identified above,
the following recommended implementation milestones are proposeda:

. January 2016 Development of a joint-party annual monitoring program (NMWD and
Grossi Dairy) to track the nutrient inputs to Stafford Lake.

. March 2016 (prior to STP startup): Based on the historical nutrient data, implement
any necessary BMPs to ensure that external nutrient inputs are not entering Stafford
Lake. See BMP guidelines included in Attachment A.

. January 2017: Development of first annual monitoring report, to be delivered to the
County and NMWD for review and evaluation for compliance. The annual report will
include the monitoring results and summary of BMPs currently in use.

. March 2017 (prior to STP start up): Based on the data reported, evaluate the
effectiveness of the additional BMPs. lf deemed ineffective, initiate discussions to
mitigate external nutrient inputs, including relocation of high waste facilities and
grazing lands where nutrients are applied.

It is anticipated that external nutrient management will not be an additional expense for the
District. As the responsible party, Grossi Dairy has been directed to protect the Lake from
externa I nutrient inout from the Dai ry operation, and, therefore, should bear the cost of
implementing additional water quality monitoring, implementation of BMPs, and additional
mitigation actions, as necessary. The foreseen District expenses will be the staff and legal
counsel hours committed to meetings and negotiations with the Dairy,

a Any formal schedule of implementation would need to be negotiated with Grossi Dairy Farm
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3"1.4 !nstalåatioffi of in-$ãtu Õxygematlo¡r (ü-$ffi)

Maintaining DO concentrations above 2.5 mg/L at the bottom of the lake is critical for

mitigating internal nutrient loading, which is likely the most significant form of nutrient loading

in tñe lake under the current coñditions. Although data is inconclusive as to the degree of

internal nutrient loading in the lake, the recurrent cycle of algal growth and anoxic conditions

at the intake tower indlcate that Stafford Lake is being fed phosphorus internally, stimulating

the growth of algae after the nutrients are mixed during the winter turnover event. Maintaining

oxyjenated conãitions in the bottom levels of the lake will also prevent Mn from reducing and

Olssätving into the water column, which would ultimately improve treatment efficiency.

Although NMWD curren¡y aerates Stafford Lake utilizing a 1Z-acre aeration bed, it is likely

that usìng pure oxygen tó oxygenate the hypolimnion between the Stafford Lake lsland and

the STp,õ intake *"ourO be a móre effective method of controlling algae growth. Since Stafford

Lake is not sufficienly deep to utilize pure oxygen through diffusors (see Attachment B),

different methods were researched to provide appropriate oxygen rates and pressures for

effective oxygenation.

The installation of one praxair@ ln-Situ Oxygenation (l-SOrM)unit is one option for increased

oxygenation near the intake. The eleven-foot diameter, transportable, floating l-SOrM system

opâîates by feeding oxygen into a water body at a depth of six feet through a draft tube facing

the lake bottom, aJsfrówn in Figure 4. Oxygen is pumped as a jet stream to the bottom of the

lake and is recirculated to the lake's surface after reaching the lake floor. The power of the jet

stream breaks through the thermocline and efficiently oxygenates the hypolimnion.

l-SOrM units offer improved oxygen utilization efficiency of at least 90%, compared lo 25%

with air-based aeration systems- l-SOrM units are typically used for aeration at wastewater

treatment plants; howevér, they have also been successfully used in the oxygenation of

shallow drinking water reservoirs of up to sixty feet in depth.s

At Stafford Lake, it is anticipated that an l-SOrM unit would aerate an area near the STP

intake, which would help conirol internal nutrient loading at the one of the deepest parts of the

lake, as well as reduce Mn loading, a critical improvement for treatment process efficiency at

STP.

5 Contra Costa Water District, Contra Loma Reservoir since 2000

NMWD Comprehensive Taste and Odor Control Strategy
November 6,2015
Page I of 36



ln-Situ Oxygenation* (l-SO.) Unit
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Figure 4 ln-Situ OxYgenation Unit

Design Parameters

The amount of oxygen delivered by the l-SOrM system is automatically or manually regulated

according to a pre-determined taçet concentration, An l-SOrM system should be sized for

Stafford Lake based on the basic design parameters included in Table 1.

Since the l-SOrM units are typically utilized for wastewater treatment ponds, it is

recommended that a pilot study with one (1) l-SOrM unit be conducted to determine their

effectiveness at Stafford Lake. Equipment rental is available through Praxair and should be

installed at the lake temporarily to establish whether full-scale implementation is feasible and

cost-effective for the District. Additionally, system operation can be optimized during an l-
SOrM system pilot study, as reservoir conditions will impact oxygenation efficiencies' lt is
recommended that tne þitot study be carefully documented, as the results at Stafford Lake

could form the basis of critical industry developments for hyper-eutrophic surface water

sources as well as provide a wealth of information for the District's source water

management.

NMWD Comprehensive Taste and Odor Control Strategy
November 6,2015
Page 10 of36



Table 1 Oxygenation Design Parameters

Parameter Value

Maximum Oxygen Depletion Rate6 0.17 mglLlday

Average Oxygen Depletion RateT 0,11 mg/L/day

Target Oxygen Level 4 mglL

Anoxic Oxygen Level 2.5 mglL

Maximum Period of Anoxic Oxygen Level April- November (8 months)

Average Elevation of Lakes 186.7 ft

Average Volume per Acree 4.53 MG

Maximum Oxygen Requirement per Acre 6.43 lb/acre/day

Average Oxygen Requirement per Acre 4.l6lblacrelday

The requirements for an l-SOrM system at Stafford Lake were established based on the
assumption that a system would be sized to oxygenate the deepest 35 acres near the intake,
as shown in Figure 5, below. Assuming an oxygenation area of 35 acres and an oxygen
utilization efficiency of g0o/o, the l-SOrM unitwould require a supply of 162|b/dayof pure liquid

oxygen, on average, when in use. l-SOrM units are capable of oxygenating at rates of
approximately 150 lb/hr, therefore the capacity of one l-SOrM unit is sufficient for Stafford
Lake's estimated needs. The estimated requirements for an l-SOrM unit at Stafford Lake are

included in Table 2. These design parameters are based on the recorded conditions at

Stafford Lake, however, a pilot test of one (1) l-SOtt unit, as discussed above, is necessary
to understand the sizing and effectiveness of an l-SOrM system.

6 Based on Stafford Lake depletion periods between 20'10 and 2014,a maximum oxygen depletion rate of 0.17

mg/L/day was established.
7 Based on Stafford Lake depletion periods between 20'10 and 2014, an average oxygen depletion rate of 0.11

mg/L/day was established.
u The average elevation of the lake for April through November (1957-2014) was used as an input for the total

volume calculation, as the volume to be oxygenated is considered the entire reservoir.
e The volume per acre was calculated by using the formula developed by NMWD (Lake Elevation vs.

Volume.xls), based on a lake elevation of 186.7' and ratio of: surface water area to be oxygenated to total
surface water area at 186.7'; 1 acre : 173.6 acres = 0.0058.
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Figure 5 Proposed Oxygenation Area in Statrord Lake

Tabte 2 ÞSO lJnit Estimated Requirements

Parameter Value

Surface Area to be OxYgenated
10 4 acres

Volume of Reservoir to be Oxygenated 11 159 MG

Estimated OxYgen Transfer EfficiencY 90%

Daily Average Oxygen Requirement 162lblday

Maximum System CaPacitY 250 lb/day

10 The surface area to be oxygenated could change depending on the effectiveness of the l-so unit. A pilot test

Operational Requ irements

operation of the l-sorM unit requires a pure oxygen source and storage, oxygen tube.¡, and a

40-Volt powercupply, and ideâlly can be connetted at the existing compressor station near

Stafford Dam. powei operation is required semi-continuously; the l-SorM units may be turned

off for a few hours or dãys at a time, however extraction from lake and proper indoor storage

is recommended if the l-SorM units would not be in use for months at a time. Using integrated

energy turndown automation, l-sorM systems may reduce power consumption by at le.a9t

4g%îompared to mechanical aeration'systems. Pure oxygen and power are transmitted to

of
11

the unit will confirm surface area and equipment requirements.

The volume to be oxYgenated bY an l-SO unit was calculated bY using the formula developed by NMWD (Lake

Elevation vs. Volume.xls), based on a lake elevation of 186.7' and ratio of:

to total surface water area at 186.7'; 35 acres :173.6 acres = 0.202
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the l-SOrM unit via the hose assembly shown in Figure 6. Pure oxygen supply may be

contracted directly with Praxair@, or with a supplier of NWMD's preference^

I n stal I ati o n Req u i re m e nts

For installation, two subassemblies, as shown in Figure 7, are bolted together on-site and are

lifted into the lake for immediate floating. The approximate weight of each unit is 4,100
pounds and no support structure would be required. A minimum of five (5) feet should be

maintained between the l-SOrM system and the existing aeration bed to prevent oxygen

stripping.

It is recommended that the l-SOrM system be installed close to the intake tower to maximize

the precipitation of nutrients (Mn, Fe) back into the lake sediment prior to treatment at STP.

The effectiveness of the location can be tested when the technology is piloted at Stafford

Lake.
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Schedule and Cost Estimate

lmplementation schedules and cost estimates have been developed for both a pilot-scale ISO

system and a full-scale system, as well as annual O&M costs for the full-scale system:

Pilot System

praxair@ offers a monthly pilot rental of an l-SOrM unit that could be installed at the Stafford

Lake for the next T&O séason, at the request of the District. lt is recommended that the pilot

unit be installed for a total of one (1) or two (2) months, depending on available budget,

during the T&O season to observe its effectiveness. lt is recommended that the system be

instal-led during the T&O season in 2018, pending budget approval. The schedule for the pilot

unit installatioñ will depend on reservoir conditions and reported water quality, however, the

pilot unit should be installed for one (1)or two (2) months between May and October of 2018,

preferably early in the season.

Rental of the l-SOrM unit would cost approximately $10,695 per month (Praxair@ quote). The

rental package includes one (1)l-SOtt unit ($10,000), including mixing and hose equipment

and assembly parts and the control system, and a 1,50O-gallon temporary liquid oxygen

storage tank ($695).

As-needed oxygen supply would be purchased separately at a rate of $0.08125ilb12' Based

on the preliminãry calculations, NMWD would need a maximum of 250 lb/day ($20.31/day) or

lls0 lblmonth ($-630/month). Based on initial calculations, a 1,S0o-gallon storage tank would

be sufficient to store liquid o*yg"n for approximately 1,5 months13.

For a one (1) month pilot study, the l-SOrM system would cost approximately $12,000' For a

two (2) toÀtñ pilot study, the l-SOrM system would cost approximately $24,000.

Full-scale Sysfem

lnstallation of a full-scale Praxair@ l-SOrM system would depend on the success and

schedule of the pilot study. A full-scale system could be installed prior to the 2019 or 2020

T&O season.

The estimated capital cost of the full-scale installation is about $200,000 for a package

including one (1)'l-Sott unit, mixing and hose equipment and assembly parts, a liquid

oxygen storage tank, and the control system.

o The average annual O&M Costs include the following components:

. Oil change: approximately $300 annually

' Pure oxygen: $0.02174ilb14 at 162|b/day = $3'52lday
$3,52lday, April- November (244 days) = $859'33 annually

' Power: 24kW at $0.12lkwh (est. 2015), 8 hrs/day = $23.041day

$69.121day April - November (244 days) = $5,622 annually

'' Rate provided bv Praxair, includes delivery fees'
13 TTs}lbs of liquiá oxygen is equal to approximately 814 gallons of liquid oxygen. Therefore, a 1,S00-gallon

tank would not need to be rejilled if the District decides to conduct a month-long pilot test'
to Rate provided by Praxair, does not include delivery fees.
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' Liquid Oxygen Telemetry Unit Servicing: $520 annually

. Hazardous material handling, freight, and energy and fuel chargels: $550

' TotalAnnual O&M Costs, Approximately: $7,900/year

o Longterm O&M Costs include the following:

. Gearbox reconstruction: approximately $8,000, every ten years

3.1.5 Upsizing of Existing 12-Acre Aeration Bed

The existing 12-acre aeration diffusion system near the intake tower is likely increasing the
DO at the bottom of the lake, however it is not sufficiently sized for the sharp drop in DO

caused by a mass algae die-off. Based on conversations with Keeton representatives, this
system was designed as a pilot installation to test the level at which aeration in Stafford Lake
can augment Fe and Mn oxidation.

It is possible that expanding the existing system to cover 35 acres near the intake (see Figure
5) could oxygenate Stafford Lake to a level at which anoxic conditions are prevented and
algae growth is controlled. The existing NMWD system, shown in Figure 8, is a Keeton QR
Series aeration system comprised of two %-HP Model QR-16DP-2 compressors in two long
(20'W x 36"L x 27"T) recycled plastic cabinets. Each cabinet contains one 275 cfm cooling
blower, a sound reduction package, and operation controls.

Figure 8 Stafford Lake Existing Keeton Aeration System

15 Based on the installation of a 1,50O-gallon tank, a delivery of liquid oxygen every 1.5 months, and five (5)

liquid oxygen deliveries per season.
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An expanded systenr would include two (2) additional aeration beds located near the inlet and

at the deepest parts of the lake. The deepest parts of Stafford Lake are north and east of the

Stafford Lake lsland and across the inlet, as shown in Figure 9, and have been identified for

expansion of the aeration system. Two (2) additional aeration systems, both of equivalent

caþacity to the existing systém and with dedicated compressor stations, are proposed to be

installed as shown in Figure 9.

This arrangement is proposed as the most cost-effective solution, as the installation of two (2)

new compressors would' cost significantly less than utilizing the existing compressor to supply

the proposed area of Stafford Lake (see Attachment B). lnstallation of these compressors

assumes use of NMWD-owned shoreline land, with no leasing or land use costs, based on

preliminary conversations with operations staff.

Figure g Proposed Stafford Lake Keeton Aeration System Expansion

Each compressor continuously provides 21.2 cfm of air flow (1.1 to 1.3 cfm per emitter) at 5

psi pressure, and requires a 2gO-Volt power source. The proposed aeration bed expansion

*orlo therefore provide 63.3 cfm of air to the area of Stafford Lake shown in Figure 9.

However, aeration may not to able to provide enough oxygen to counteract the average

oxygen depletion rate of 0,11 mg/L/day during the T&O season in Stafford Lake'

The most reliable method to calculate the expected oxygenation level from the proposed

aeration bed expansion is to shut down the existing aeration system for one month and to

monitor DO concentration at various depths, After one month, the existing aeration system

should be restarted, and DO concentrations at various depths should be monitored on a
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weekly basis for two months. The resulting data could then be extrapolated to quantify the

estimated level of aeration with the proposed aeration bed expansion.'"

Schedule and Cost Estimate

It is recommended that the Keeton QR Series aeration bed expansion, as proposed, is not

installed until several other alternatives are piloted and/or implemented. lt is likely that this

alternative would not be installed until the 2018-2019 off-season (December - March), after

several other mitigation measures have been tested and/or deemed infeasible'

It is recommended that the effectiveness of the existing aeration system be tested shortly

after STP start-up in 2016, as described above, prior to expanding the system. Testing the

existing system will also assist in estimating the effectiveness of the proposed expanded

aeration bed.

Keeton lndustries estimates a cost of $39,500 for the expanded system as proposed in Figure
g, including the equipment pad, tubing, emitters, compressors, cabinets, and all ancillary

equipment. There is no known additional cost of using the NMWD-owned land for the two

new compressor stations.

The Keeton aeration system requires the following O&M:

o Annual O&M Costs:

. Air filter replacement: $60.00, every three months, per system
Annual Cost for two (2) additional systems, 3 replacements per year: $360

. Power, excluding consumption by the existing aeration system: 3.22 kW at

$0.12lkwh (est. 2015) for 24 hours per day = $9'27lday
$9.271day, April - November (244 days) = $2,263

' Annual Cost: $2,600

o Long-term O&M Costs:

. Compressor replacement: $2,000, every four years, per system

. Cooling blower replacement: $150, every four years, per system

3.2 Optimized Removal
Optimized removal of Geosmin is dependent upon maximizing the efficiency of all treatment
proce.res at the STP. lt is critical that the GAC units maintain a high capacity for Geosmin

ädsorption throughout the operating season, which is reliant upon removal of solids and Mn

prior io the GAC units. The recommendations below are designed as improvements to the

current treatment processes at STP that would indirectly influence Geosmin removal.

3.2.1 GAC Specification and Bidding Process

Optimization of the STp purchasing procedures is recommended to ensure the technologies

in place function to the best of their capacity. Specifically, it is recommended that NMWD

tu Recommendation provided by Keeton lndustries.
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develop very stringent specifications for the GAC procurement. Currently, the STP purchases
GAC based on the most competitive price and has previously used various types of GAC.

Without having WWTP effluent data, it is difficult to determine if the conversion from coconut-
based GAC to coal-based GAC increased or decreased the capacity for T&O removal.
However, because of the continued T&O complaints after the change, it is assumed that there
was no significant improvement. Example purchasing specifications for GAC are presented in

Attachment C. The adoption of specifications that are specific to the water quality received by
the GAC units would help ensure that the STP utilizes the most effective GAC for Geosmin
removal.

Schedule and Cost Estimate

Developing specifications for the purchase of GAC can be initiated by the District immediately
and be completed by District staff. The foreseen District expenses will be the staff hours
committed to the development of GAC specifications.

3.2.2 GAG Testing and Replacement Strategy

It is recommended that the GAC units undergo substantial performance and capacity testing
throughout the operating season and specifically prior to the T&O season at Stafford Lake.
Evaluating the state of the GAC on a regular basis would better inform NMWD staff as to
whether or not the GAC can handle a potential algal bloom. This information is critical in
establishing trigger points for GAC replacement, and ultimately a replacement strategy that
can be anticipated by the District at regular intervals. The replacement strategy will likely
change when improvements are made to the system that will extend the life of the GAC.
Generally, GAC replacement should be coordinated such that fresh GAC is available at the
onset of the T&O season.

Schedule and Cost Estimate

lmplementing a testing and replacement strategy for GAC can be initiated by the District
immediately and can be completed by District staff. A testing and replacement strategy needs
to include monitoring the removal efficiency of the GAC units, evaluating the condition of the
media, and determining appropriate schedules for replacement. The foreseen District
expenses will be the staff hours committed to the implementation of a testing and
replacement strategy.

3.2.3 Goagulant Optimization

Enhanced removal of suspended and dissolved solids at the influent chamber of the STP is a
critical treatment recommendation for optimizing the effectiveness of the filtration units at
STP. Optimizing coagulant dosing upstream of STP's filtration units can both enhance
removal of suspended and dissolved solids and significantly reduce NMWD's chemical
expenditures. lnstallation of a submersible Evoqua (formerly Siemens) 5FX 5-HP Water
Champ@ FX Chemical lnduction System (Water Champ@) in place of the existing mechanical
flash mixer would provide the conditions necessary for instantaneous mixing of ferric chloride
coagulant, while requiring at least 50% less of the volume of coagulant currently used.
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The submersible Water Champ@ FX Chemical lnduction System, shown in Figure 10,

includes a hermetically-sealed motor constructed of stainless steel and chemically wetted

components made of Grade ll unalloyed Titanium'

Figure 10 Water Champ@ FX Chemical lnduction Unit

The STP currently doses 35 to 50 mg/L Ferric Chloride using a flash mixer in an 18-inch

diameter tee downstream of the chlorine contact basin. One (1) Water Champ@ can be

installed in place of the flash mixer to feed and mix ferric chloride or other coagulant; no

ancillary pumps, strainers, mixers, injectors or diffusers would be required. The Water

Champ-@'system may be equipped with an "Alternate Feeding System," to simultaneously
dose two liquid or gas chemicals, if desired.
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The horizontal counter-flow configuration in a pipeline, shown in Figure 11, is recommended

for the STp and achieves the greatest chemical diffusion zone without requiring major

infrastructure modifications. With this configuration, rapid mixing of the coagulant occurs in

the "zone of influence," which is approximated as a three-dimensional cone with a highly

turbulent axial flow pattern, extending away from the Water Champ@ propeller and against

the flow of water. Facilitated by a 4-blade 2,450 rpm propeller, the coagulant is dispersed

direcly into the process stream without the need for dilution water, and a homogeneous

solution is instanly created. The flexible guiderails and the unit's pivot bracket design are

positioned to optimize the zone of influence for mixing'

ROTATING GLIDE RAIL SYSTEM

WATER CHAMP

Figure 11 Water Champ@ Horizontal Counter-flow Configuration

O pe rati o n a I Req u i rem e nts

Water Champ@ is recommended as an optimization strategy for STP, as the system provides

significant chemical and energy savings over conventional mechanical mixing methods' The

ligÏtweight airfoil design of thé propeller enables the Water Champ@ to achieve maximum

."n"tgy lransfer, and eliminates the need for energy-intensive pumps. Process connections

ar" tiã0" via flexible pVC-hose and couplings to the unit and via a 1-Y"-inch FPT chemical

hose assembly. A continuous power supply of 460-Volt is required; the electrical supply is

connected to the motor control panel and to the power cable from the unit.

I nstal I ation Requ i rements

The Water Champ@ unit is approximately six (6) inches in diameter and 34 inches long, and

weighs g0 pounds with all components. The system is mounted on stainless steel rails and

ruf n" insialled in a pipe or contact basin; the rails allows the system to automatically move

and pivot into positions that optimally release target doses of chemicals in varying flow

conditions. The package includes a control panel with a motor protection device housed in a

corrosion-resistant enclosure.

The unit is shipped pre-assembled and the guiderail system is designed to fit each

application, requiring minimal downtime for installation. Once the rail system is installed, the

pipeline does not need to be drained to initiate operation of the unit or to remove it for

inspection and service. Since the STP shuts down for several months a year, NMWD could
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also install the system off-season, lnstallation of the guiderail requires use of a davit crane or
other lifting device,

Overall, the Water Champ@ offers reduced downtime and less maintenance than mechanical
mixing systems. The system utilizes a close-coupled connection between the vacuum body,
propeller, and submersible motor so that the motor shaft is isolated and may be serviced in

the field. Serviceable components are limited to the motor, stationary bushings, and o-ring
seals.

Schedule and Cost Estimate

The Water Champ@ installation, as proposed, could be implemented as early as the 2015-
2016 off-season (December - March).

G3 Engineering, lnc,, the local Evoqua Water Champ@ representative, estimates a total cost
of $50,000 for a Water Champ@ FX Chemical lnduction System package including one Water
Champ@ unit (approximately $25,000), one control panel (approximately $7,000), one
customized guiderail system (approximately $10,000), and miscellaneous ancillary equipment
(approximately $8,000). This price excludes installation costs.

lf redundancy is desired, two Water Champ@ units of the same capacity can be installed in

parallel on separate guiderails for an estimated additional cost of $38,000, or in series on one
guiderail system for an estimated additional cost of $28,000,

The Water Champ@ system requires the following O&M:

o Annual O&M CostslT:

' Ferric Chloride (1.40% sp. gr.) Coagulant: est. $25,000, annually for
coagulated pH target of 6.318

. Power: 3.7 kW at $0. 1zlkWh (est. 2015) = $0,¿+/hour
$0.44lhour1e, April - November (3,490 hours in 244 days) = $1,550

, Annual Cost: 927,000

o Long{erm Costs:

o O-ring seal replacement: $800, every five to ten years
. Chemical feed hose replacement: $200, every five years

Annual Chemical Cosf Savings

It is estimated by operations staff that NMWD uses approximately 390,000 lbs of ferric
chloride annually to maintain a pH of 6.3, at a cost of approximately $50,000, To maintain the
same pH, it is estimated that the Water Champ unit would use 50% of the coagulant at 50%
of the cost. Therefore, the annual chemical cost savings is anticipated to be $25,000. The
chemical costs savings realized through the installation of the Water Champ would cover the

17 The system will require additional O&M, including annual and monthly service inspections, which are assumed
to be completed by District staff internally.
18 The vendor will need to know specific flow volumes and levels within the pipe in order to confirm the amount
and cost of coagulant.
1e Assuming 16 and 10 hours of operation per day on weekdays and weekends, respectively.
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cost of installation afler 2 years in operation, and would provide an additional $75,000 ot

savings after 5 years in operation'

3.3 TreatmenfProcess ImprovemenÚs
Another method of treating T&o problems would be to improve treatment processes 

"at 
tfe

STp to maximize removal of Geosmin. Several recommendations were presented in the

Water euality Evaluation, however, it has been determined that only one recommended

treatment process improvement is feasible at STP: GAC-Capped AciifloctM filters2o' The

following säction detaiìs the installation, operational, and cost requirements of installing GAC-

Capped filters.

3.3.1 GAC-CaPPed Filters

lmproved T&O control is possible by using GAC -in 
place of anthracite in the existing

ActiflocrM filters. lt is anticipäted that dnc-caÞping of the ActiflocrM filters would improve the

Geosmin removal at STp and extend the lìfet¡me of the downstream post-filtration GAC

adsorption units.

GAC-capped filters have been shown to remove as much as 5O-percent of Geosmin when

utilized early in the treatment train. Given that the sTP currently removes a high percentage

of Geosmin, using GAC-capped filters would likely improve the removal of Geosmin in STP to

below detection limits and increase the life of the GAC units when the Geosmin level in the

reservoir remains below the 500 ppt level'

The 1g-inch depth of anthracite in the existing ActiflocrM filters may be replaced with an !!-
inch depth of GAC, at the top layer of each filter, where "Mixed Media" is labeled in Figure 12'

Based on the exisiing flow iateâ and treatment processes at STP, it is estimated that GAc-

capped filtration *oulã increase EBCT by approximately two (2) to five (5) minutes'

20 ozonation was determined to be too expensive of a capital improvement for the District and powered activated

carbon (pAC) was determined to be operationally infeasible and too expensive of an O&M cost.
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Figure 12 ActiflocrM Unit GAC-cap Location

This GAC will be operated as biologically activated carbon (BAC) whereby an active, aerobic

microbial community on the filter media will be maintained. The significant surface area

prov¡ded by the porous GAC fittration media offers ample opportunity for microbial growth.

ihe objective of gnC is to grow bacterial filaments to assist in the attachment of contaminant
part¡cles in the influent to the GAC media'

GAC as BAC is typically installed at depths of 24 to 36 inches. Greater depths do not improve

fresh GAC removal efficiency, however, depth increases the lifetime of the GAC-cap. With

time, GAC's media depth deþrades with use and through loss of GAC by underlying media

intermixing. Therefore, greatér initial installation depths of GAC media would increase the

overall lifetime of the CÃC-cap. For the STP, it is recommended that the maximum depth of

GAC-cap (18 inches) be installed for lifetime cost savings. According to the ActiflocrM

manufaòtuiers, there are no concerns with using a GAC-cap in the filters, and a maximum

GAC-cap depth of 1B inches may be installed. Carbon for the GAC-cap should be selected

based on comparative testing anó carbon that has been effective in the existing GAC units. lt

is recommended that the effective size of the carbon is approximately 1.5mm so that the

media is not compromised during backwash.

A GAC-cap may be installed on one (1) existing ActiflocrM unit and used to pilot this T&O

mitigation älternãtiue as a means to test the effectiveness prior to full-scale installation in all

threé of STp's ActiflocrM filters. Pilot tests should be run to ensure that a reduction in the

depth of the finer sand does not reduce the quality of the effluent and to optimize operation of

the GAC-cap and chemical dosing throughout the treatment process before full-scale

installation. Additionally, the lifetime extension of the downstream post-filtration GAC

adsorption units may be measured during the GAC-cap pilot installation.
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Operatio nal Req u i rements

The GAC-cap is expected to last approximately five (5) years before replacement is required,
as opposed to the current biannual replacement/refilling of anthracite filter media in the
ActiflocrM units. The GAC in the ActiflocrM filters can be replaced less frequently than with
typical adsorption units in order to allow stalked bacteria to colonize carbon granules.

Lower dosages of chlorine will be critical in maintaining healthy conditions for the biological
activity of the GAC-capped filter. The conversion to GAC-capped filters necessitates that
dosing of free chlorine, currently utilized as an oxidant, upstream of the ActiflocrM filters be

substantially lowered or discontinued in order to malntain an active microbial community on

the GAC-cap. Should manganese removal be optimized in the reservoir, the use of free
chlorine can be discontinued.

Schedule and Cost Estimate

lmplementation schedules and cost estimates have been developed for both pilot-scale and

full-scale installation, as well as annual O&M costs for the full-scale system:

Pilot System

One (1) ActiflocrM filter could be converted to a GAC-capped filter at STP before the next
T&O season, at the request of the District. lt is recommended that one (1)ActiflocrM filter be

converted in the STP ofÊseason this year (December 2015 - March 2016), prior to plant start-
up in 2016.

Conversion of one (1) ActiflocrM filter from anthracite to GAC would cost approximately

$21,000. Calgon Carbon Corp. estimates that 12,000 pounds of either Filtrasorb 300-M or
400-M would be required for an 18-inch GAC-cap over a 260 square foot area of the filter.
Both Filtrasorb GAC media are estimated to cost $1 .7\llb, including installation.

Full-scale Sysfem

Conversion of the additional two (2) ActiflocrM filters would depend on the success and

schedule of the pilot-scale conversion. A full-scale conversion could be completed no earlier
than the STP off-season of 2017, and would more likely be installed during the STP off-
season of 2018 or 2019.

Conversion of the two (2) remaining ActiflocrM filters from anthracite to GAC would cost
approximately $42,000, Calgon Carbon Corp. estimates that 12,000 pounds of either
Filtrasorb 300-M or 400-M would be required for an 18-inch GAC-cap over the 260 square
foot area of each filter. Both Filtrasorb GAC media are estimated to cost $1.75llb, including
installation.

The GAC-capping system requires the following O&M:

o Annual O&M Costs: None; maintain aggressive ActiflocrM backwashing frequency

o Longterm O&M Costs:

. Replace GAC-cap: $21,000 per ActiflocrM filter, every five years

' Total Cost for GAC-cap Replacement: $63,000, every five years
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A&M Cosú lncrease

The installation of GAC-caps in the Actifloc units would eliminate any costs associated with

O&M of the anthracite filters, NMWD currently spends approximately $4,000 every two (2)

years to top-off anthracite in all three filters. Assuming that the full-scale GAC-capped system

is installed, and that the GAC will require replacement every five years, as discussed above,

the following table projects the estimated O&M costs for the District over the next ten (10)

years.

Tabte 3 Estimated O&M Cost lncreases

Year
Anthracite Cost

Savings
GAC-Capping

Costs
2016

Pilot lnstallation
$21,ooo

2017 ($4,ooo¡

2018
ull-Scale lm ementation

$42,ooo

2019 ($4,000)

2020
2021

acement of 1 GAC
($4,ooo¡ $21,000

2022
2023

acement of 2 GAC CaRe
($4,ooo¡ $42,000

2024
2025 ($4,000)

Total O&M Gost Increase $106,000

Average Annual O&M Cost Increase $10,600
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SECTION 4 TASTE & ODOR CONTROL STRATEGY SCHEDULE

That T&O control strategy for NMWD has been developed as a combination of various
measures to maximize effectiveness while minimizing cost-intensive capital improvements.

Based on conversations with District staff, evaluation of feasibility, and cost estimates, SRT
has developed long-term and annual T&O Control Strategies presented in this section.

4.1 Long-Term T&O Control Strategy
The long-term T&O Control Strategy includes two phases:

(1) Phase 1: lnitial lmplementation Strategies and Associated Cost and/or Cost Savings
(2) Phase 2: Secondary lmplementation Strategies: Recommended Capital

lmprovements

The long{erm T&O Control Strategy was developed in phases based on the District's interest

in implementing low-cost capital and operational improvements prior to implementing more

expensive capital improvements. This strategy is an effort to control T&O issues as quickly as

possible and utilize operational optimization strategies to save on O&M costs and ultimately
fund future cost-intensive capital improvements, if required'

Development of cost estimates and discussions with NMWD have informed the longterm
T&O Control Strategy, and the recommended alternatives presented above have been

categorized into Phase 1 or Phase 2 projects. Phase 1 projects are lower cost options that
can be initiated within the next two (2) years, while Phase 2 projects are more cost-intensive
and can be implemented within the next ten (10) years, depending on the results of Phase 1

implementation. Table 4, below, defines each phase based on recommended alternatives,

and Table 5 and Table 6 on the following pages detail each phase and the associated
recommended projects.

Tabte 4 Phased Approach Recommended Altematives
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Category Recommended Alternatives
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Source Control

Additional Water Quality Monitoring

Strategic Planning

Nutrient Management at Grossi Dairy

Operations Optimization

lnstallation of Water Champ@

GAC Specifications

GAC Replacement Strategy

Treatment Process I mprovements
Pilot-Scale Conversion of an ActiflocrM Filter from
Anthracite to GAC-Capped

U)c{F
l'UC)u)u
+õ
ËK

Source Control

Pilot-Scale lnstallation of ln-Situ Oxygenation

Full-Scale lnstallation of ln-Situ Oxygenation

Upsize the Existing 12-acre Aeration Bed

Treatment Process I mprovements
Full-Scale Conversion of an ActiflocrM Filter from
Anthracite to GAC-Capped



Table 5 tnitial tmplementation Strategiæ, Eslinated Costs and AsÐcíated Cost Savíngs

Cost and/or Sav¡ngs at 5 Years

TBD23

TBD

TBD

O&M Cost Savings - lnstallation =
$125,00024 - $5o,ooo =
$75,000 (Savings, 5 Years)

TBD25

TBD26

Pitot: $3,33327 - $21,000 =

-$17,66728 (Cost, 5 Years)

Approx. $57,500

Estimated Cost

Geosmin Sampling2l'2: $1 0,000/year

Sanitary Survey: $30,000

Work completed by NMWD staff

lnstallation: $50,000
O&M: $27,000 annually for coagulant
and power costs.

Work completed by NMWD

Work completed by NMWD

Pilot purchase and installation in one
Actiflocru filter would cost $21,000.

Minimum Anticipated O&M Savings (5 Years)

lmplementation Schedule

lnitiated April 2016,
May - October Annually

1"t or 2nd Quarter, 20í 6

lmmediate, continuous

STP Off-Season,2016

1st Quarter,2016
Prior to next purchase of
media, if possible

1"t Quarter,2016
Prior to next start of T&O
season, if possible

STP Off-Season,2016

Task Description

Additional Water Quality Mon¡toring: Additional
mon¡toring of Geosmin and ORP will allow NMWD to better
understand the conditions in Stafford Lake that lead to T&O

episodes, and the effectiveness of the STP in removing
Geosmin. Additional monitoring includes defining trigger
points and establishing actions in a water quality action
plan (Section 4.2).

Strategic Planning: Conduct a sanitary survey of the
Stafford Lake watershed.

Nutr¡ent Management at Grossi Dairy: Continue
negotiat¡ons with Grossi Dairy and thê County rêgarding the
elimination of nutrient input from Dairy run-off.

lnstallation of Water Champ@: lnstall Water Champ@
hydraulic mixing system to optimize coagulation at STP and

reduce the amount of coagulant necessary.

GAC Specifications: Develop GAC specifications for the
primary GAC units based on water quality and observed
performance.

GAC Replacement Strategy: lmplement a media
replacement strategy that will maximize the GAC
adsorption for the start of T&O season.

Pilot-Scale Conversion of an Act¡flocü Filter from
Anthrac¡te to GACCapped: Convert one (1)Actiflocil
filter from anthracite to GAC to quantifli the effectiveness of
this strategy in reduclng Geosmin loading to GAC units.

Category

Source Control:
Additional Monitoring

Source Control:
External Nutrient
Management

Operatíons Optimization

Treatment Process
lmprovements

2r Cost is not included for a probe to measure ORP and other water qual¡ty parameter, as it ¡s likely that NMWD has th¡s equ¡pment.

Drovide a samÞle cost, however, ¡t is recommended that NMWD explore th¡s opt¡on based on the existing relationship between the water districts.

" iÀ" alu"¡o"pr"nioi Gnc specif¡cationsãnd GAC replacement strategy æuld resutt in additional cost sav¡ngs due to less frequent replacement of the existing GAc unitrs.
,u The ãeuelobment of a GAC replacement strategy côuld result ¡n âdditionâl cost sav¡ngs due to less frèquent replacement of thè existing GAC un¡ts.
27 lnstallation of anthracite t-vpically costs $1,333/filter every 2 years.
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Tabte 6 secondary tmplementation strategies: Re@mmended capital Improvements

Capital Cost: $40,000

Annual O&M Costs: $2,600
1O-Year O&M Costs: $35,00033'34

Capital Cost: $42,000

1O-Year O&M Costs: $105,000
O&M Savings: $20,000

Net additional O&M Cost, 2016-
2025: $126,00036 - $20,000 =

$1 06,00037

Capital Cost: $200,000

Annual O&M Cosls: $6,700
1O-Year O&M Costs: $75,00031'32

Term CostLong-

$11,000
No Additional O&M Requirements

$40,000

$42,000

$130,000

Estimated Capital Cost

$r r,000

STP Off-Season
20173s

STP Off-Season
2019

lmplementation

STP Off-Season
2018

STP Off-Season,
201930

Full-Scafe ûonverslen of an,&ctiflocrt¡ Filter from Anthracite to G'AC-

Capped: Convert the remaining (2) Actìfloctu filters from anthracite to GAC to

reduce Geosmin ìoading to GAC units.

Fuli-scale Instal]ation of ln-situ GxyEenation: lf the pilot-scale installation

is deemed effective, purchase and ¡nstalt one (1)or more l-SO units nearthe

ìntake to increase DO levels in stafford Lake and control internal nutrient

loading, algal growth, and subsequent die-off. The number of units required

will be based on the results of the pilot-scale installation'

[.,]psizinE f Z-acre Âeratior'¡ Bed: Upsìze the existing aeralion bed to three

1i¡ timeitne sìze of the existing design to cover a 3s-acr-e area near the

iniake. Upsizing the aeration bed is only recommended if l-SO ¡s cost-

prohibitive and other methods of T&O Control are deemed ineffective'

Task Descriptíon

Filot-Scale ¡nsta¡lat;on of ln€itu OxyEenation: Rent and install one (1) l-

SO unit near the intake to increase DO levels in Stafford Lake and controì

internal nutrient loading, algal growth, and subsequent die-off Monitor the

results of the l-SO unit to determìne the effectiveness in ¡ncreasing oxygen'

decreasing algal counts, and decreasing Mn loading to STP'

Treatnlefit Process
!mprovernents

Sa¡.¡rce Control: Åeration
tptimizatíon

2e All final vaìues are estìmated and rounded to thè nearest thousand'
to Schedule of installation highly dependent upon performance of I-SO pilot
., Srrr"tion of annual O&lú costs and the cost to replace the gearbox after 1 0 years (58,000)-
,t it 

" 
i.olementation of l-So could result ìn additional cost savìngs due to less frequenl replacement of the existing GAC unìts'

* å'J;';5iil';i;;il;jiù;*; 
""d 

the cost to reptace the 
"otpi""tot. 

($2,ooo) ând cooling blowers ($150) every four,vears for.eaclr svstem ($8'600)'

*i;;;;;ì;;;"t"tion àttná rz-r.r" 
"eration 

bed could result in additional cost silinggMdue to lèss frequent replacement of the existing GAc un¡ts

35 Schedule of installation highly deDendent upon performance of GA,C-Capped Actirloc"'' pilot.
ro ìnctudes I o-year costs for cp.c åãn"ãËion J ,it inree 131 ecttflocrù ¡'lt"ü E""rr¿". costs of the ìnitial Actiflocrt¡ pilot conversion' 

^ -
.t gã."dì" inå 

";sumpiion 
trrat cnc woutd need to be replacêd every 5 years. Anthracite is currently being replaced every 2 years (ât S4,000 total)'
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As noted above, the phased T&O Control Strategy is based on the objective to limit significant

capital expenditures upfront, and instead implement low-cost projects that would allow the

District to save money over time. As shown in Table 5, above, it is recommended that the

District implement seven (7) strategies to mitigate T&O at Stafford Lake and the STP.

lmplementation of hydraulic mixing (Water Champ@ technology) is the most expensive

alternative recommended for initial implementation, however, it is anticipated to offer the long-

term savings for the District over time. After five (5) years, it is projected that the Water

Champ@ wóuld have saved the District about $125,000 in chemical costs, with a net savings

of g75,000 after taking into account the capital cost of installation of about $50,000.

The conversion of one (1) ActiflocrM filter would also require an upfront investment at an

estimated cost of $21,000. Additionally, it is anticipated that the O&M cost on this filter would

be approximately $21,000 every 5 years as the media would need to be replaced' However,

the improvement is highly recommended, as it is likely that the installation of a GAC-cap

would reduce loading 
-of 

Geosmin and other contaminants (Mn, etc.) to the existing GAC

units, improving the overall removal of Geosmin and life of the existing GAC units'

Cost savings associated with the conversion of the ActiflocrM filters have not been calculated,

as it is unknown to what extent the conversion would extend the life of the media in the

existing GAC units. However, it should be noted that it is likely that savings would be realized

from the conversion of the ActiflocrM filters and additional recommended alternatives' Given

that the replacement of GAC currently costs the District over $150,000 every year, extending

the life of this media would result in significant savings for the District. Table 7, below,

presents the savings that would be realized should the life of the GAC media be extended by

either one (1) or two (2) years.

Table 7 Extended Life of GAC Filter Media: Potential Savings

Life of Filter Media Cost per Year Annual Savings

1 Year (Current) $150,000 NA

2 Years $75,000 $75,000

3 Years $50,000 $100,000

Should the life of the filter media be extended by even one (1) year, the District would save

975,000 annually, which would increase the amount of funding available for capital

improvements and advance the implementation schedule of Phase 2 projects substantially.

phase 2, presented in Table 6, is highly dependent on the success of the projects

implemented during Phase 1 and the budget available for capital improvements, lncreasing

aeration to the reservoir is one of the most sustainable solutions to the T&O issues at Stafford

Lake, however these options are also the most expensive to implement. The conversion of

the remaining ActiflocrM filters would be dependent upon the results of the pilot test; as noted

above, the cónversion of the filters could result in substantial savings for the District.

The long-term strategy (Phase 1 and Phase 2) and associated costs for the next ten (10)

years is summarized in the implementation schedule included on the following pages.
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The annual T&O control strategy recommended for NMWD includes a Water Quality Action
Plan and Annual Monitoring and Maintenance Schedule.

The water quality monitoring already conducted by NMWD with the addition of the
recommended parameters forms the basis of a T&O control water quality action plan that
includes identified triggers to assist NMWD staff in resolving T&O-causing conditions before a
significant T&O event occurs, An initial template for the water quality action plan is included
as Table 9 below, and can be adjusted at the discretion of operations staff based on water
quality data trends.

The annual monitoring and maintenance schedule is based on the long-term strategy
recommendations, and is included as Table 10 on the following page.

Table I Water Quality Action Plan

Parameter Action Level Action Taken

Geosmin in Raw
Water

12 ppt
More frequently monitor Geosmin in raw water
and STP finished water. Reduce dependency on
sudace water source, if possible.

Geosmin in STP
Finished Water

3 ppt
More frequently monitor Geosmin in raw water
and STP finished water. Reduce dependency on
surface water source, if possible.

6 ppt Remove source from system

Geosmin Removal
Efficiency

< 85o/o

It is anticipated that the removal efficiency should
be uniform up to breakthrough. lf the removal
efficiency drops below 85 to 90%, GAC should
be replaced.

ORP 0 (Neutral) lncrease aeration efforts, if possible

NMWD Comprehensive Taste and Odor Control Strategy
November 24,2015
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Table 10 Annual T&O Control Strategy

July . aqgult --SéliãmËi* 
,-. Ja¡u?.{y-*,,,.,|çþig"ry

Dairy submits Annual Monitoring
Report from previous year

lvlon¡tor for Geosmin once per week

ìnstall probe to
measure ORP,
DO

Measure ORP, DO continuously

Analyze water qualìty data and make decisìons based on Water Quâìity Act¡on Plan

Dairy conducts monitoring of runoff nutrient concentrations, as appìicable

Measure removal efficiency of GAC units based on Geosm¡n data (before and afterfìltratìon)

Dairy implements BMPs deemed
necessary

Replace GAC, as necessary,
based on GAC specifications

Determine GAC Efficìency at end
of STP Season

NMWD Comprehensive Taste and Odor Control Strategy
Novembêr 24, 201 5
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end of STP
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Item #16

To:

From:

Subject

prl

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Pablo Ramudo, Water Quality Supervisor

Second Quarter FY 18119- Water Quality Report
p:\lab\wq supv\wq reports\2o1 9\1 st qtr fy 1 I wq rpt 2.1 ,1 g.doc

February 1,2019

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

lnformation

None

The water served to the communities of Novato and Point Reyes met federal and state

primary and secondary water quality standards during the second quafier of fiscal year 2018-201 9.

Following is a review of the activities and water quality issues in regards to:

. Source Water

. TreatmentPerformance

. Distribution System Water Quality

. Novato Recycled Water

NOVATO SYSTEM

Source Water: Stafford Lake

Stafford Lake water was used as a source of drinking water during the second quarter until

October 31't. Water quality was monitored on a biweekly basis for chemical and mineral

components as well as microbiological activity.

Algae from the raw water intake were identified and enumerated monthly. Algae numbers

were relatively low as is normal during the time of year. Diversity was low with 6 species of algae

recorded in appreciable numbers. Two genera had significant blooms, the cyânobacteria (blue-

green algae) Microcystis and Coelosphaerium, both of which can cause problems with taste and

odor.

Treatment Performance: Stafford Treatment Plant

Total organic carbon (TOC) removal was excellent, well above the 35% requirement of the

Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule. Operators were able to achieve 74.3% TOC removal

with a finished water TOC concentration of 2.2 mg/L, just above the district's goal of 2.0 mg/L.

Distribution Svstem: Novato

Of 308 samples collected for compliance with the Total Coliform Rule none were positive for

coliform bacteria. Disinfection byproducts were low during the quarler and wellwithin standards of

the Stage 2 Disinfection By-Product Rule at most locations. The location which represents the entry
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point of water from Stafford Lake Treatment Plant had a high concentration as the sample site

becomes a dead end during winter operation and experiences extremely high water age. This

condition does not accurately represent the water served to nearby residents.

There were no complaints of taste and odor attributable to algae compounds during the

quarter.

POINT REYES SYSTEM

Source Water: Coast Guard Wells

Raw water quality, by most measures, was good throughout the quarter, however water

quality parameters affected by salt water increased. This now-constant state of high salinity has

begun to have some serious impacts on how the system is operated in order to continue to comply

with drinking water regulations. The sodium concentration ranged from 76-150 mg/L, chloride

ranged from 1 60 -470 mg/L, and bromide ranged from 0.56-1.61 mg/L.

Source Water: Gallagher Well

Raw water quality was good throughout the quarter. Water quality parameters affected by

saltwater are very low from this source and because the well is not prone to intrusion from seawater,

concentrations of salts are very steady. Sodium was 10 mg/L, chloride was 11-14 mglL, and the

bromide concentration was 0.05-0.06 mg/L.

Treatment Performance: Point Reyes Treatment Plant

Treatment was optimal throughout the quarter and finished water quality was good. lron and

manganese removal was excellent; neither of the metals were detected in the treated water.

Water was primarily sourced from Gallagher Well which was supplemented with water from

the Coast Guard wells during times of higher demand. Water from the two sources is blended prior

to treatment.

Distribution System: Point Reyes

There were 23 samples collected for routine monitoring and compliance with the total

coliform rule, none tested positive for coliform bacteria. Chlorine residual concentrations throughout

our distribution system were good.

2
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Disinfection byproducts were down from the last quarter but still above the Maximum

Contaminant Limit (MCL) at the location representing the maximum water age in the system. The

concentration of total trihalomethanes was 89.3 ug/L, yielding a location running annual average of

74.6 uglL-just below the MCL of 80 ug/L. The high disinfection byproducts are a direct result of

high bromide in water sourced from the two wells located within the former coast Guard housing

property. A separate memorandum addresses this problem and provides additional information'

NOVATO RECYCLED WATER

Deer lsland Recycled Water Facility

The Deer lsland facility was off during the quarler

3
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North Marin Water District- 2nd Quarter FY2018 12019

Bacteriological Quality Monitoring

308 Samples Analyzed. No samples positive for coliform bacteria

23 Samples analyzed. No samples positive for coliform bacteria.

Novato:

Point Reyes

Ghemical Quality Monitoring

ND = Not Detected
NA = Not Analyzed

Constituent Units
Maximum

Contaminant
level

SCWA North Marin
Aqueduct

Stafford Treatment
Plant

Point Reyes
Treatment Plant

Conductivity umhos/cm 900 * 265 412 256

TDS mg/L 500 * 164 256 179

Hardness mg/L 106 120 112

Alkalinity mg/L 121 90.2 1 1 0

Calcium mg/L 20.9 22.6 19.1

Magnesium mg/L 12.5 15.2 16.0

Copper mg/L 1.0* ND ND ND

lron mg/L 0.3* ND ND ND

Manganese mg/L 0.05 * ND ND ND

Zinc mg/L 5.0 * ND ND ND

Sodium mg/L 17.7 39.6 12.6

Chloride mg/L 250 * 6.79 77.8 15.0

Sulfate mg/L 250 * 11.2 9.93 6.51

Fluoride mg/L 2.0 (1.4-2.4) 0.092 0.111 0.0999

Nitrite as N mg/L 1.0 ND ND NA

Nitrate as N mg/L 10 0.1 09 0.0766 NA

pH pH units 8.5 * 8.35 8.01 7.11

Turbidity NTU 5 0.06 0.06 0.06

Color PCU 15 <2.5 <2.5 <2.5

Free Chlorine mg/L 4.0 0.98 1.29 0.91

TotalChlorine mg/L 4.0 1.01 1.55 1.15

Temperature oc 18.4 17.2 13.7

Odor TON 3 <1 <1 <1

*lndicates secondary drinking water standard





Item #17

.DRAFT Minutes of Technical Advisory Committee
35 Stony Point Road, Santa Rosa, California

January 7,2019

Attendees Craig Scott, City of Cotati
Jennifer Burke, City of Santa Rosa
Colin Close, City of Santa Rosa
Easter Ledesma, City of Santa Rosa
Toni Bertolero, Town of Windsor
Mary Grace Pawson, City of Rohnerl Park
Colleen Ferguson, City of Sonoma
Kent Carothers, City of Petaluma
Drew Mclntyre, North Marin Water District
Rocky Vogler, North Marin Water District
Mike Ban, Marin MunicipalWater District
Chris Petlock, Valley of the Moon Water District
Matt Fullner, Valley of The Moon Water District
Pam Jeane, SCWA
Jay Jasperse, SCWA
Mike Thompson, SCWA
Carrie Pollard, SCWA
Lynne Rosselli, SCWA
Kimberly Zunino, City of Santa Rosa
Mike lelmorini, City of Petaluma
Emma Walton, City of Santa Rosa

Public Attendees. David Keller, FOER
Bob Anderson, United Wine Growers
Margaret DiGoneva, California American Water

1, Check-in
Drew Mclntyre, TAC Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m

2. Public Comments
No public comments

3. Recap of December 3, 2018 TAC Meetinq and Approval of Minutes
Moved by Toni Bertolero, Town of Windsor, seconded by Craig Scott, City of Cotati
to approve the minutes of the December 3,2018 TAC meeting; unanimously
approved.

4. Elect TAC Vice Chair
Moved by Colleen Ferguson, City of Sonoma, seconded by Mary Grace Pawson, City of
Rohnert Park; unanimously approved appointing Jennifer Burke, City of Santa Rosa the
TAC Vice Chair.

5. TAC Budqet Su mittee Uodate
Drew Mclntyre, North Marin Water District- The Budget Subcommittee Chair is Ms.

Zunino and the committee includes representation from the cities of Santa Rosa and

Cotati, Town of Windsor and VOM, North Marin and Marin Municipal water agencies
t



The subcommittee with work with Agency to finalize the budget prior to TAC
consideration atthe March 4,2019 meeting, WAC considerationwill be in a Special
meeting in April. Budget presentations by the Agency will be held in March at the request
of individual Water Contractors

6. Sonoma Marin Savino Water Partnershio-

a. Aoorove New Member lifornia American Water
Drew Mclntyre, North Marin Water District - See memo for more information.
Recommendation is to approve California American Water joining SMSWP. Moved by
Toni Bertolero, Town of Windsor, seconded by Jennifer Burke, City of Santa Rosa;
unanimously approved.

b Water Production Relative to 2013 Benchmark
Drew Mclntyre, Partnership water use year-to-date through November 2018 was 15%
below the 2013 State Benchmark, same as this time last year. Please see handout

c. State 's Water Efficiencv Leoislation Uodate- Water Loss Standards Comment Letter
Drew Mclntyre, discussed the Padnerships support of the comment letter. Water Loss
Standards stakeholder meetings are well underway. Refer to letter the Partnership
signed. Additionalfocus areas are: lndoor ResidentialWater Use and Outdoor
Residential lrrigation. Jennifer Burke, City of Santa Rosa, stated that there are
discussions to reinstitute the Urban Advisory group to provide stakeholder
recommendations and input during development of the Water Efficiency Legislation.

7. Water Supplv Conditions-
Pam Jeane, SCWA - Lake Mendocino is currently at 62,500 acre feet (AF) and water
releases are decreasing due to rainfall. Water storage has gained about 2,500 AF in the
reservoir and is at 90% of target pool elevation. Lake Sonoma is at 196,000 AF with
minimum releases from the reservoir. Storage has gained about 6,000 AF and is
currently at B0% of the water supply pool elevation. lt is a Normal Water Supply Year as
of January 1,2019 and will continue to be monitored each month.

Jay Jasperse, SCWA - The ACOE has approved a Major Deviation for Lake Mendocino.
Allows additional water storage of -12,000 AF in flood control pool using Forecast
lnformed Reservoir Operations (FIRO). The plan is to evaluate operation with the
deviation in place this year, apply for something similar next year and move forward with
a formal modification to the ACOE Water Control Manual in the future.

Jay Jasperse, SCWA - DWR has made a final determination on two groundwater basins
in Sonoma County. As a result, Alexander Valley and Dry Creek will remain Low Priority
basins. Still to be determined: Wilson Grove Basin- Won't know until a draft
recommendation comes out tentatively March with final determination in May.

B. Bioloqical Opin ion Uodate
Pam Jeane, SCWA refer to handout

Dry Creek Habitat Enhançemenlfiqleçt- third piece of the project this Summer, expect
to start work in June 2019. ACOE and Agency are moving forward with the next three
miles of project, working on designs and gaining access to right of ways. They expect to

2



have 60% design submittal by May this year and ACOE will fund 65%. Phase Vl is in
2021, Phase V in 2022 and Phase lV in 2023.

Fish Monitorinq-completed fish surveys for 2018 on Dry Creek. Observed Juvenile Coho
in 8 of 9 sections sampled. Seeing success in the surveys and project. Ïhey have
stafied sampling for adults and nests. As of December 13, they had seen 1100 adult
Chinook ascending the fish ladder

Russian River Est uarv Manaoement- Mid December- the river mouth closed on
December 14, reached almost 11ft and then self-breached the next day. The mouth of
the estuary has been open since then.

I Potter Vallev Proiect Relicensin o U nclate

Pam Jeane, Not a whole lot of change for the actual licensing itself, PGE is continuing to
move forward with studies. Draft application will be done by November 2019 and
application is due April 2020. Huffman Ad Hoc process continues to move forward. Two
working groups; (1) Water Supply and (2) Fish Passage continue working on findings
that will be bought to the larger Ad Hoc group in early February.

10. ltems for next aqenda (WAC/TAC Meetino Februarv 4.2019\
New WAC Leadership
Budget Update
WAC Member Orientation materials for new leadership

1 1. Check out
Meeting adjourned at 9:56am
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To:

From:

Subject

Itern #18

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors FebruarY 1,2019

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

Potter Valley Project Relicensing Update - PG&E License Application Withdrawal and

Bankruptcy Filing
t:\gm\scwa\potter valley\bod memo pvp rolicensing update- pge bankruptcy 02-0'1 -1 I final doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

lnformation Only

None at this time

Background

The last written update to the Board regarding PG&E's Potter Valley Hydroelectric Project

was at the June 19,2018 meeting. At that time, the Board was notified that PG&E looked at five

different options (e.g., decommissioning, continued operation, auction, etc.) and decided that

auction was the most viable course of action. PG&E's position was that this project is a regional

project and any solution must address allthe regional issues related to continued PVP operation.

The current Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) license for the Project expires in April

2022, and PG&E representatives noted that the auction process could take 1.5-2 years and that

PG&E would file the re-license application before the April 14,2020 FERC deadline. Furthermore,

PG&E representatives confirmed that all studies would continue with PG&E in the lead until the

owner and license transfer process was fully completed.

PG&E Notice of Withdrawal to File PVP License Application

On Friday, January 25,2019, PG&E submitted a letter to the FERC providing their

"Notice of Withdrawal of Notice of lntent to File License Application and Pre-Application

Document" for the Potter Valley Project (Attachment 1). As a result of this action, PG&E is

halting all activities related to the relicensing of the Project, including stoppage of their efforts to

sell the Project via the Request for Offers (RFO) auction process. PG&E representatives have

stated that this action is being taken to ensure that limited available funds are deployed to the

highest priority activities.

Although the timing is unclear at this point, PG&E anticipates that their action will result in

FËRC initiating its "Orphan Project" process, which is expected to happen in the next few

weeks. ln accordance with the Orphan process, FERC will provide interested parties the

opportunity to submit an application for a new Project license. PG&E believes this path will allow

interested parties more time to prepare for the acquisition of the Project and the ability to submit

a License Application on their own terms rather than assuming PG&E's current application. lf

the Orphan process does not result in the issuance of a new Project License, it is expected
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FERC will order PG&E to prepare and submit a Surrender Application and Decommissioning

Plan.

PG&E states that they will continue to own and operate the Project in accordance with

the terms and conditions of the current Project license and all laws, rules, and regulations

governing the operation of the Project until a new license is issued or the Project is

decommissioned. PG&E also reports that they intend to support the Orphan process through

provision of work products and information developed to date in the relicensing process to those

who apply to FERC for a new Project license.

PG&E Bankruptcv

On Tuesday, January 29th, PG&E filed for bankruptcy, seeking Court protection from its

creditors and permission to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. PG&E

posted a notice on their website stating that "The power and gas will stay on" and there will be

no disruption in service. A previous PG&E bankruptcy proceeding took almost 3 years, but this

one is generally expected to be longer and more complex'

Path Forward

Obviously, the "Notice of Withdrawal" and bankruptcy filing is a new "curve ball" in an

already complex PVP relicensing project. Staff is working with our legal counsel, Robert

Maddow, to assess these recent events. Mr. Maddow is also legal counsel for Valley of the

Moon Water District, one of the other eight Water Agency Contractors.

ln addition, as reported earlier, the WAC has approved the formation of a WAC Ad Hoc

Subcommittee and the development of a Common lnterest Agreement. By taking these two

actions, NMWD and the other seven Water Agency Contractors are better positioned to track

developing PVP in a timely manner. Mr. Maddow has already signed the Common lnterest

Agreement, as have a majority of the other WAC member legal counsel.



ollelì Iltat'ket). l{eglettably, contiuttecl clcclining clicrgy urarkets, potential incl.easecl costs

associatecl r.l,ith anticilratecl uerv license corlditions; ancl challenging fìltancial cil,cuulsta¡lces have

cattsecl PG&D [o cotlclttcle that it catttlot justify firrthel cxpcrrclitures to its rate¡rayer.s associatecl

rl,ìth the Ploiect;

PGctll arltici¡rates the Colltlttission will institute its "orplurr project" pr.ocess coclifiecl ¿rs

18 C.F.R. $ ló.25 to solicit licertse aplllicAtions for.potter Vallel, fi.o¡n other e¡tities. pG&E

sttpllot'ts sttcil acf ion ancl utxlelstancls fltat it r,voulcl be lesponsiblc for. sr¡rrenderi.g t¡e existing

Potf el Vallel' license ìf lro ötlte¡.'elltit¡, s.r¡t a¡rd. olitnins a ltew licellse f.ol tllc Pr.ojcct.

I)Cì&E rccogttizes {fre va[t¡e of Pottet'Vallg¡' to local cornnlrnities lrecar¡se it pr.ovicles for

¡I'otccliott of iltl¡loltarlI ellvjrolllttelttal tesorrrccs, cor]sr-urr¡rtive waler uscs, p¡blic r.ecr.eatio', a'cl

othel'ecorlotìric r¡alrtes. Accordingly, PG&E.is comnlittecl to lvorking- lvith stakeholclers to ersure

tltese valttc.s al'e apptoPliatel¡r considerccl ifPG&E is required to file a surrenclor applicatio¡,

DAI'ED: January 25,zQIg

Itespectfi.tlly su limittecl,

PACIIIIC GAS,A,ND ELECTRIC COMPANY

By:
ANNE GLI,A

.Chief Counsel, H Generatjolr
PaOific Gas ancl Elecfiic Conr¡rany
LawDepar,tlnent
77 Beale Street, Il30A-3005
San Fralrcisco, CA g4I0S
'Ieleplrone: (415) 973-7145
Facsinrile: (415) 973-SSZ0
E-Màil: amette.faraglia@pge.conr

AÏTACHMENT 
1



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BDFORA THE

FtrDERAL trNERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

Pacific Gas and Dlectrric Cont¡l:tny Project No. 77
(Potfer Valley)

NOTICI, OF WITIIDRA\MAL OF NOTICE OF INTIÙNT TO FILE
LTCENSE APPLICATION AND PRII-AP]'LICATION DOCUMENT

OnApril 6,2ß17,12r¡rsuant to 1B C.F.R. $$ 5,5 ancl 5.6, Pacific Gas ¿rncllllectric Compan¡.

("PG&E"), filecl ivith the Fcdcral Enelgv Regulator'1' Cornmission ("Conuríssion") notice ol'its

inter¡t to fìle an application fol a rrew licertse ('NOI") for ihe Potter Vallci, I-Iyclroelectlic Project

No. 77 (l'Project" oL "Potter Valley") ancl a Pre-Application Document ("PAD"). 'l'he Flojecf

Iiccnse expires on April 14, 2022, reqrtiriqg PG&E to submit its Final License Alrplication

("Application") or1 ol before Aplil, 14, 2020. PG&li is helebl'rvithchar.ving its NOI ancl PAD¡ and

cliscontinuing tlte lnteglated Lícensirrg Ptocess ínitiatecl to ple¡rare a license application, PG&E is

also terrninating its efforts'to tr:ansfer and sell the Project,

PG&E rvotrlcl like to thankthe Conmission Slafl'a¡rcl all participatiirg stakeholclers fbr their,

tinle ancl effolts oll thc relicensirtg process'allcl those ivho have ¡talticipatecl in PG&L,'s Rec¡uest

f'or Oflèrs to acquíre the Project. A.fter extensive deliberation, PG&ll has detelurinecl that it rvould

be contlaly lo the irrte;r'estS of its electlic t'atepayer:s to coutirrr.re relicensing the Pottcl Vzrlley

¡rlo.iect. Fletrce, PG&E is cliscorltinuing its effblts to seek a rlew Project license.

Pottcr Valley has long beert lecogrrizecl by PG&E as unccorloniic f'or IìG&ll's latcpaS'crs

(i^e., the cost of ploduction exceecling the cost of altelnatir/e sources of renervable ¡rowel on the

)
)





Item #19

TO:

FROM

SUBJ:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Rocky Vogler, Chief Engineer ß/
Project Update - PRE Tank 4A Replacement
RiFolders by Job N0\6000 jobs\6263.20 PRE Tank 4A\BOD Memos\2-s-19 Project UPdate.doc

February 1,2019

RECOMMENDED AGTION: lnformation Only

NoneFINANCIAL IMPACT:

The window for appeals to be accepted by the California Coastal Commission (CCC) for

the PRE Tank 4A project officially closed on January 29,2018. Later that same day, District

staff was contacted by a CCC staff member indicating that the Young family had submitted an

appeal on January 28,2019.

Typically, the CCC will hold an appeal hearing within 49 business days from the date of

the appeal filing. ln some instances, CCC may request a waiver from the defending party to

grant additional time for necessary research before conducting the hearing. Currently, the 49-

day window will elapse on April 8, 2019. Granting an extension to the CCC would result in a

proposed hearing date eitherApril 10-12or in early May 2019. Regardless of the actual date,

the CCC appeal process will compromise the construction schedule as currently planned,

making it impossible to complete construction by December 2019.

The Chief Engineer and General Manager have discussed potential alternatives in light

of the current appeal, which are:

. Option 1: Follow through with the appeal process and delay construction until

2020,

. Option 2: Submit to the Young's demands and lower the tank height. This

assumes the Young's would be placated and willing to withdraw their appeal with

the CCC. lf accomplished, this could atford the opportunity to construct the

project in 2019.

District staff believes that the tank as currently designed represents the most valuable

option for the majority of customers in Paradise Ranch Estates, and as such, it's important for

the District to see the appeal process through to completion (Option 1). Although the project

was advertised for bid on January 18,2019 and a pre-bid meeting is scheduled for February 5,

2019, staff is issuing an addendum to perspective bidders which will delay the pre-bid meeting

and bid due date (currently scheduled for February 19, 2019) by a month. This will provide

additional time for the District to pull the current bid solicitation and plan to re-bid the project in

October 2019, with anticipated construction commencing in later winter/early spring 2020.





Item #20

Board Meeting Agenda

t¡omHt Y
w^ÎÊntHgD At¡oct^Ttota

North Bay
Watershed
Association
Board Meeting Notice

February 1,2019
9:30 am- 11:30 pm
Petaluma Community
Center, 320 N.
McDowell, Petaluma

and Casa Grande HS,
Petaluma

1. Call to Order
Jack Gibson, Chair

2. Public Comment

3. Approval of Agenda
,4c/ion.' .4pprove
4. Approval of Minutes
Áclion.'A,oprove
5. Treasure's Report

'4clion.' A,oprove

6. The Future ofRegional Funding
Presenter will review the current
IRWMP funding and future expectations
Steven R. Ritchie, Assistant General Manager,
Water Enterprise, San Francisco PUC

7. Announcements, Next Month ltems
We will adjourn and meet at the

Casa Grande Fish Hatchery for
an overview and tour.

9:30 am

I min

I min.

1 min

9:45 am

10:25 am

8. Restoration in action
A tour of the Casa Grande HS Fish Hatchery

10:45 am

Items for next meeting
Getting to know our neighbor and newest member agency; an

overview of the Solano County Water Agency, Roland Sanford,
General Manager, SCWANext Meeting

March 1st,2019
9:30 am - 11:30 pm
Napa Sanitary District
Napa CA 94954





Item #21
DISBURSEMENTS . DATED JANUARY 17, 2019

Date Prepared 1115119

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Pavable To For Amount

P/R*

EFT*

EFT*

EFT*

55688.

1

2

3

4

5

13

14

6 AWWA

Bakalar, Michael

Bearings & Hydraulics

Brelje & Race

10 California Water Service

11 Campways

Charles Custom Welding

Cilia, Joseph

Cole-Parmer I nstrument

12

Net Payroll PPE 12131118

Federal & FICA Taxes PPE 12131118

State Taxes & SDI PPE 12131118

Pension Contribution PPE 12131118

Credit for Bill Adjustment

Lab ïesting (Novato)

Notification Letters for AMI lnstallation (1,439)

December Dental Expense

November Bill Review Fees

Telephone ($Ot¡, Fax ($74), Data ($270) &
Leased Lines ($1+O¡

Water Quality Grade 3 Renewal (Baccei) (6/19-
6122) (Budget $60)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Centrysis Auger Seal

Prog Pymt #1: NMWD Cleanruell Coating
lnspection (Balance Remaining on Contract
$24,014)

Water Service (OCcf) (O.M.) (10/30/18-
12t31t18)

New Camper Shell for 112ton 4X4 Truck

Welding Services (18" Steel Main Damage)

Retiree Exp Reimb (January Health lns)

lC Tubing (24) (Lab)

Employees

US Bank

State of California

CaIPERS

Volpert, Robert

Alpha Analytical Labs

Alphagraphics Marin

Arrow Benefits Group

Athens Administrators

AT&T

$141,771.99

56,040.76

11,217.48

34,042.23

967.15

50.00

1,179.36

821.14

62.99

546.1 6

55.00

547 80

8.68

986.25

51.21

2,156.95

520.00

333.79

117.37

7

B

I

*Prepaid Page 1 of 5 Disbursements - Dated January 17 ,2019



Seo Pavable To For Amo unt

16

17

1B

15 DataTree

Derby, Richard

Diggs, James

Direct Line

Eyler, John

Fedak & Brown

Fritz, James

GHD

Grainger

Hale, Larry

Home Depot

ITRON Service Center

Jackson, David

Johnstone, Daniel

Lacombe, Frank

Latanyszyn, Roman

Lemos, Kerry

Maltby Electric

Marin Landscape Materials

December Subscription to Parcel Data
lnformation

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (January Health lns)

December Telephone Answering Service

Reference Sample (Lab)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Final Billing for Audit Work for NMWD for Year
Ended 6/30/18

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Prog Pymt #14: PRE Tank 4A Project (Balance

Remaining on Contract $35,190)

Cafeteria Plan: Uninsured Medical
Reimbursement

Painter & Pruner Tools, Safety Gloves (50)
(STP) ($zs¡, Headlamp, Couplings (4) ($108),
Kneeling Mats (4) ($1Os¡ & All-Weather
Notebook

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Gauge Adaptors (20)

Software Upgrade to Allow Reading of WM
Radio Read Meters ($909) & Annual Hardware
Maintenance ($1,725)

Retiree Exp Reimb (January Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (January Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (January Health lns)

Materials for STP Clearwell Recoat

Crushed Rock (3 yds) & Concrete (42 sacks)

100.00

1,088.28

31 1 .19

187.92

150.54

1,088.28

392.00

1,088.28

848.00

112.23

327.58

547.80

145.39

2,634.23

986.81

1,088.28

54.24

333.79

986.81

366.45

444.37

19 Environmental Resource Assoc

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

*Prepaid Page 2 of 5 Disbursements - Dated January 17,2019



Seo Pavable To For Amount

3B

39

40

41

42

43

36 Marin County Ford

37 Marin County

Mclntyre, Drew

Moore, Doug

Nelson, John O

New Pig

North Marin Auto Parts

44 North Bay Gas

45 Novato Builders Supply

46 Office Depot

47 O'Reilly Auto Parts

48 pace Supply

49 Pini Hardware

Washer Pump & Seat Belts ('08 F250) ($501) &

Service Parts ('17 Ford Escape,'08F250,'12
F250 & '15 F250)

Renew Annual Encroachment Permit with the
County of Marin

Expense & June-December Mileage
Reimbursement

Retiree Exp Reimb (January Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Large All-Purpose Wipers (3,000) (STP)

Vision & Cafeteria Plan: Uninsured Medical
Reimbursement

Belts for Sand Pumps @ STP ($30+¡, Coolant
(1 gal), Wipers for Multiple Vehicles (10) ($146)
& Service Pads ('07 Chevy Colorado &'08
Chevy Colorado)

Gas for Welding Shop ($175), Wrap-a-Round
Tape Measure (3) ($1t+¡ & December Cylinder
Rental ($1 13)

Hole Saw Set ($71), Parts for Maintenance
Bathroom & Materialfor Cleanruell Coating
Project ($24+¡

Accounting Calculator

Diesel FuelAdditive, Brake Cleaner (24) & WD
40 (24) (8247)

Couplings (10), Air Release Valves (3) ($1 ,310),
Clamps (5) ($372), Tube Nuts (3), Emergency
Repair Clamp for Broken Main @ San Marin
H.S. ($t ,451) & Flanges (2)

Painting Supplies, Tools for B/G Shop, Misc
Maintenance Supplies, Materials for Cleanvell
Project ($4SO¡ & Materials for Maintenance
Bathroom ($216)

698.1 5

490.00

557.48

986.81

1,088.28

448.27

274.00

1,756.82

401.58

382.46

64.93

507.04

3,724.48

1,040.81

*Prepaid Page 3 of 5 Disbursements - Dated January 17,2019



Seo Pavable To For Amount

Poiani, lsabel

Randall Bros. Automotive

Schwaab

Smalley, Gayle

Soiland

Sonosky, Norma

Sonoma Boot

South Bay Foundry

Stafford, Vernon

Staples Business Credit

Starrett, John & Paula

Streakwave Wireless

TPx Communications

Van Bebber Bros

Vasconcellos, Joan

Velloza, May

Verizon Wireless

Verizon Wireless

VWR lnternational

White Cap Construction

White, Sonia

Wilson, Roena

Wyndover LP

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Smog lnspection ('03 Dodge Dakota)

Date Stamps (6)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Asphalt Recycling (26 tons)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Safety Boots (Durbin)

6" Valve Caps (60)

Retiree Exp Reimb (January Health lns)

Office Supplies & Annual Calendar Order

Refund of Deposit/New Development/WC
Restriction-Novato

Radios for Wildwood Tank & Woodland P/S (2)

December Telephone Charges

36" Plate (18" Steel Main Damage)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Cellular Charges: Data ($645) & Airtime ($1tA¡

AMI Gateways, SCADA & Novato ($643) &
CIMIS Station

Sulfate Standard & Safety Gloves (2,000) (Lab)

Materials for STP Clearwell Project

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2019 Health lns)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

54.24

60.00

485.1 8

547.80

129.20

907.32

183.80

1,256.99

333.79

3,208.34

1,000.00

233.02

512.57

414.31

547.80

494.28

763 28

658.22

151.34

768.62

54.24

494.28

3,700.00

*Prepaid Page 4 of 5 Disbursements - Dated January 17,2019



Seq Pavable To For Amount

73 Yee, Ramona T.

ler

General

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Date

Date

400.00
294,538.51

TZ5f558'5fTOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $294,538.51 are hereby approved and

authorized for payment.

LL t //to

*Prepaid Page 5 of 5 Disbursements - Dated January 17,2019



D'SBURSEMENTS - DATED JANUARY 24, 2019

Date Prepared 1122119

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seo Pavable To For Amount

EFT"

EFT"

EFT*

EFT*

1 Alpha Analytical Labs

Atco Pest Control

Backflow Distributors

Blue, Julie

Bold & Polisner

Buck's Saw Service

2

3

4

P/R"

13

14

Employees

lnternal Revenue Service

State of California

CaIPERS

US Bank

Clipper Direct

Comcast

Core Utilities

Net Payroll PPÊ. 1 I 15119

Federal & FICA Taxes PPE 1115119

State Taxes & SDI PPE 1115119

Pension Contribution PPE 1115119

December Bank Analysis Charge (Lockbox

$912 & Other $426, Less lnterest of $196)

Lab Testing (Novato & W.M.)

Front Office lnsect Control

Parts for Backflow Repairs

January lnternet Connection

Consulting Services: December lT Support
($6,000), Troubleshoot Communication Problem
w/ Pump Stations ($2ZS¡, SCADA ($7ZS¡,

Website ($2ZS¡ & AMI Software Maint.($325)

$140,390.35

57,222.18

11,668.48

35,352.44

$1,141.80

2,468.00

95.00

3,383.75

46,066.67

38.00

3,717.0Q

58.57

8,050.00

70.30

520.00

705 04

464.00

140.71

7,600.00

5

6

7

B

Bank of Marin Bank of Marin Loan Principal & lnterest (Pymt
87 of24A)

California Dept of Tax and Fee
Administration

Exp Reimb: Airport Shuttle

December Legal Fees

Chains for Pole Saw (2)

State Sales & Use Tax 1118-12118

9 Caltest Analytical Laboratory Lab ïesting (OM)

10 Charles Custom Welding Welding Services (18" Steel Main Damage)

11 Charles Melin General Contractor Refund Security Deposit on Hydrant Meter Less
Final Bill

12 Commuter Benefit Program (3)

"Prepaid Page 1 of 3 Disbursements - Dated January 24,2019



Seq Pavable To For Amount

15

16

17

'18 Fisher Scientific

19 FrontierCommunications

20 Grainger

21 Lincoln Life

22 Marin lJ Processing Center

23 Mclellan, WK

McMaster-Carr Supply

McPhail Fuel

MSI Litho

Nationwide Retirement Solution

NMWD Employee Association

Novato Lock

Novato Horse & Pet Supply

NSI Solutions

Pace Supply

Vision Reimbursement

Service on Lab Deionization System (Lab)

Ear Plugs (800) ($138) & Urine Relief Bags
(1 00)

Sodium Atomic Absorption ($116) & Filter
Forceps for Membrane Analysis (Lab)

Leased Lines

Tie Down Ratchet, Couplings (20), Knit Gloves
(3), Repair Kit for 2" Air Pump ($Zll), Socket
Set ($398), Cup Brush Wire (6), Crimped Cup
Brush, Flap Disc (20), Cut-Off Wheel (100)
($315), Connectors (50) & Heat Shrink Tubing
(25) for Various Pump Stations

Deferred Compensation 1/15/19 PPE

Subscription Renewal (Mclntyre) (1 119-12119)

(Budget $525)

Misc Paving

Bolts for STP Centrysis (51), Filter for STP
VFD's (4) ($170) & lnternal Switches (2) ($281)

Propane for Crest Tank Generator (174 gal)

Business Cards (250) (Durbin)

Deferred Compensation PPE 1115119

NMWD Association Dues (1 1 115118-1 115119)

Employee Gate Replacement Latch

Straw for Erosion Control

QC Samples (Lab)

Nipples (22) ($128), Flanges (4) ($149), Rubber
Gaskets (4) & Meter Gaskets (20)

Power: Bldgs/Yard ($2.000¡, Rect/Controls
($419), Pumping ($18,390), Treatment ($241) &

Other ($12+¡

Evoqua Water Technologies

Fishman Supply

304.00

263.85

140.11

184.47

1,431.36

1,374.10

8,884.86

505.04

10,755.22

493.00

613.22

85.72

1,750.00

1 ,175.00

488.70

11.92

190.00

326.73

22,221.02

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

.1J

*Prepaid

PG&E

Page 2 of 3 Disbursements - Dated January 24,2019



Seq Pavable To For Amount

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

Point Reyes Light

Point Reyes Prop Mgmt Assn

Sonoma County Water Agency

SPG Solar Facility

Stericycle Transportation Svcs

Township Building Services

United Parcel Service

Subscription Renewal (1 I 19-1 121) (Budget
$120)

January HOA Dues (25 Giacomini Rd)

December Contract Water

December Energy Delivered Under Solar
Services Agreement

Hazardous Waste Disposal for WQ Lab

December Janitorial Services

Delivery Service: Returned Erroneous Gate
Parts, Gas Monitor for Repairs, Prepaid
Shipping & Sample for Analysis (Lab)

Repair Kits for STP Chemical Pumps ($450) &
Sample Tests (10) (STP) ($2sO¡

December Safekeeping Treasury Securities

Formed Metal Bracket & Metal Plates (10)
($224)

Door Handle, Axle, Seals & Nuts ('07 &'08
Chevy Colorados)

Deodorant Pads (100), Protective Eye Lens,
Plastic Aprons (2), pH Test Strips (600) ($70) &
Respirator Masks (5) (Lab)

Burlap Bags (100) & Quick Setting Mortar
Repair (3 Sgal Pails)
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

1 19.00

75.05

432,968.14

6,102.59

270.00

1,877.53

159.87

708.82

131.75

414.20

42.41

200.04

394.63
$813,814.64

41

42

43

44

45

USA BlueBook

US Bank

Van Bebber Bros

Victory Auto Plaza

VWR lnternational

46 White Cap Construction

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $813,814.64 are hereby approved and
authorized for payment.

u<- r/òa )q

ne ral MaGe

*Prepaid

nager Date

Page 3 of 3 Disbursements - Dated January 24,2019



@ NORTH MARIN WATER D/STRrcT
D i recto r's Co m p en s ati o n Reguesf

for Attendance at Meetíngs Other than District Board Meetings

Bonno Meru¡eeR: Rrcr FnnrrEs

50 Forrest Road

Novato, CA 94947

Dare J-L üfutJS
(roonv's oare)

and wish to be compensated as provided under the Board Gompensation Policy.

DIRECTOR SIcrunruRE

FOR ACCOUNTING USE ONLY

PRovED ro PnY Bv

CHanoe ro: 56001-01-11 Auourur
(filled in by Accounting)

Palo Pay PeRtoo Er.lolt¡c tt
t:\forms\check request completed\chec* request for frailes.doc
Rcv.0716



DISBURSEME'VTS . DATED JANUARY 31, 2019

Date Prepared 1129119

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Pavable To For Amount

P/R*

EFT*

EFT* State of California

EFT* CaIPERS

1 Alphagraphics Marin

2 Athens Administrators

AT&T

AT&T

Automation Direct

6 AWWA CA-NV SEC

7 Bay Area Barricade Service

Bender, Matthew

Borges & Mahoney

Calpico

Cummings Trucking

Diesel Direct West

Net Payroll PPE 1124119 - Retro Pay

Federal & FICA Taxes PPE 1124119 - Retro Pay

State Taxes & SDI PPE 1124119 - Retro Pay

Pension Contribution PPE 1124119 - Retro Pay

Notification Letters for AMI lnstallation (593) &
Mailing Services ($3eO¡

December Bill Review & February Monthly Fees

January lnternet Connection

Leased Lines

Communication Cards for Palmer Tank/Old
Ranch P/S PLC

G1 -WQ Analyst (51 19-5122) (Nommsen)
(Budget $60)

Marking & Striping Paint ($443) (108 cans) &
36" X 24" Sign: Customer Entrance (Front
Office)

Water Codes Volume 10 & 19

Preventative Maintenance Kits for STP (8)

Anodes (12) ($1,966) & Clamps (20)

Rock (99 yds) ($4,559) & Sand (a9 yds)
($2,779)

Diesel (2.23tgat) (516 gal) Gas ($2.40/gal) (500
gal)

AMI Meter lnstallations (3,437) ($75,748) &
Fiberlyte Lids w/Probe Holes (1,320) ($51,863)
(Balance Remaining on Contract $67,465)

Employees

US Bank

$33,035.28

7,599.92

640.64

6,579.73

736.01

1,011.48

85.00

66.06

440.00

55.00

536.90

1,177 .48

2,715.37

2,107.07

7,337.50

2,852.28

127,611.14

3

4

5

B

9

10

11

12

13

"Prepaid

Ferguson
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Seo Pavable To For Amount

14 Grainger

15 lnfoSend

16 JW Mobile

17 Maltby Electric

Mclellan, WK

Micro Motion

1B

19

21

Miller Pipeline

Mutual of Omaha

Neopost USA

Pace Supply23

26 Pollard Water

27 R&B

28 Red Wing Shoe Store

20

22

Two Way Portable Radios (2), Sump Pump &
Parts for Trumbull Pump Station ($284), Steel
Wool, Tool Box, Hole Saws (20) ($339), Pipe
Cutter, Pilot Drill Bits (20), Hand Soap for
Locker Room, 30'Tape Measures (20) ($338),
Sandpaper (300'), lntrusion Switches (2),

Propane Torch Heads (2), Disposable Gloves
(200) ($322), Connectors (2) & Tubing
Connectors for Pressure Regulator Controls (4)

December Processing Fee for Water Bills
($1,252), Postage ($3,523) & December
Monthly Supporl Fee ($756)

Smoke Tests (6) ('02 lnt'1, '99 F550, '07 lnt'1, '08

Peterbilt 335, '12lnt'l 4400 &'15 lnt'l 4400)

Copper Wire (500')

Misc Paving

Raw Water Flow Meter for Pt Reyes TP
($2,419) & Replacement Flow Meter for Winged
Foot P/S ($3,928)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

February Group Life lnsurance Premium

February Postal Meter Rental

Meter Pumps (2), Bushings (20), Couplings (7)
($2,603), Hydrants (4) ($7,298), Gaskets (2),

Elbows (20) ($308), Service Saddles (2),
Hydrant Extensions (4) ($302), Nipples (26),
Meter Spuds (40) & Corp Stop Adaptors (61)
($1 ,103)

Petty Cash Reimbursement: Safety Snacks &
Office Calendar

Wood Plugs (9)

Nipples (14), EIls (20) & 6" Silent Check Valve
Hydrant Extension (6" x 18") ($748)

Safety Boots (Rupp)

2,029.21

5,531.73

900.00

418.72

3,294.79

6,346.40

273.06

900.72

124.43

13,052.81

585.00

83.12

77.86

778.93

195 51

24 Parkinson Accounting Systems December Accounting Software Support

25 NMWD Petty Cash

.Prepaid Page 2 of 3 Disbursements - Dated January 31, 2019
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32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

29

30 SWRCB Accounting Office

31 Tamagno Green Products

Thomas Scientific

Univar

USA BlueBook

US Postal Service

Van Bebber Bros

VWR lnternational

Walker, Danielle & Nicholas

White & Prescott

40 Wildcat Engineering

L

Vision Reimbursement

FY19 Large Water System ($46,792) & Small
Water System Fee (Pt Reyes)

Sludge Removalfrom STP (1a yds)

Flip Top Sample Bottles (132) (Lab)

Sodium Hypochloride (8 Drums) (STP)

Check Valves for North Street Lift Station (2) &
Meter Wrenches (3) ($280)

Meter Postage

2" Barrel Hinges

pH Buffer for Meter Calibration & Clear Lens (2)
(Lab)

Refund of Deposit/New DevelopmentMC
Restriction-Novato

Prog Pymt#8: Crest Pump Station Site Plan &
Prog Pymt#9: AEEP Support -82 Reach A
(Balance Remaining on Contract $22,400)

Final Pymt - Release of Retention: Onsite
Retrofit for RW CentralArea (Total Project Cost
9575,752)

Clean & Calibrate Lab Balances

294.00

51,381,85

420.00

78.28

825.37

468.00

1,000.00

18.40

48.55

1,000.00

1,000.00

28,787,58

9,562.50

499.00

231.45
Ts.tfrsrnr

Wiley Price & Radulovich

Wine Country Balance

Winzer

December Legal Fees

OilAbsorb (2a) (Auto Shop)
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $324,793.13 are hereby approved and
authorized for payment.

41

42

43

t /aq
ler

ral MGe

*Prepaid

anager
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MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: Nancy Williamson, Senior Accountant

Administration
Engineering
Operations/Maint
Construction/Maint

ùi
February 1,2019

Subj: lnformation - FY19 2nd Quarter Labor Cost Report
tlac\word\memo\1 9\2nd qtr labor co8t rpt.doc

RECOMIUIENDEDAGTION: lnformationOnly

FINANCIAL ll,lPACT: None

Total labor cost decreased $57,701 (1.5o/o) from the priorfiscal year. Attached in graphicalformat

is a five-year comparative summary of total labor cost (Attachment A), overtime cost (Attachment B) and

temporary employee cost (Attachment C) expended during each fiscal year. Also attached is a summary

of total labor cost vs. budget (Attachment D), which shows that labor was 7 .7o/o under budget through the

end of the fiscal year.

($70,623)
( $30,779)

s2,417

(6.7o/o)
(4.7o/o)

O.2o/o

5.5o/o1,284
Net I ncrease/(Decrease) ($57,701) (1.5o/o)

Comment on Chanoe from Prior Year

Administration: Labor Cost decreased $70,623, or 6.70/o. The decrease is primarily due to the

resignation of the Accounting/Human Resource Supervisor on July 24th, 2018 and that position remaining

vacant and to the Auditor Controller and District Secretary positions being filled with lower salaries than

their predecessors. The decrease was offset by the two Senior Accountants working extra hours and

also to hours worked from retirees for special projects and general support to the Accounting staff. The

Consumer Services Supervisor worked extra hours due to the implementation of the AMI Project. There

were also four 5% step increases, and the 3.8% labor cost increase effective October I of 2018.

Engineering; Labor Cost decreased $30,779, or 4.7o/o. The decrease is primarily due to overlapping

salaries in FY18 arising from the addition of an Engineering Tech lV on August 16,2017 to replace an

employee who retired on September 30, 2017 and to the retirement of an Associate Civil Engineer on

October 31, 2018 and that position not being filled until December 3, 2018. The decrease was offset by

four 5% step increases and the aforesaid 3.8% labor cost increase.

Operations/Maintenance: Labor Cost increased $2,417, or 0.2o/o. The increase was primarily due

to 125 more hours worked, fifteen 5% step increases, and the 3.8% labor cost increase. The increase

was offset by the retirements of the Sr. Elec/Mech tech on December 30, 2017 and the Maintenance

Supervisor on May 31,2018 and those positions being filled with lower salaries.

Construction/Maintenance: Labor Cost increased $41 ,284, or 5.5o/o. The increase was due to 210 more

temporary and overtime hours worked, six 5% step-increases and the 3.8olo labor cost increase.

Department
lncrease / (Decrease) in
Labor Cost vs prior FY % Chanqe



s623,669

53,8t8,257

Jul 18 - Dec 18

5t,4t4,!79

5792,18O

s988,229

FTE 52.0

53,g!8,2s7

JultT - Dec 17

SL,4!t,762

S7s0,896

5l-,058,852

s654,448

53,875,958

S¡,szs,gss
FTE 53.0

Jul 16 - Dec 16

5]-,423,497

57!9,414

Sr,osg,+as

5637,334

S3,839,730

S3,839,730
FTE52.7

Ops/Maint
Const/Maint
Admin
Engineering

Total

3.6%

4.3%

3.s%

-t.5%
2.8%

5 Year Avg

Growth Rate

s699,810

5984,820

s619,301

53,736,977

Jul 15 - Dec 15

sL,433,O47

53,736,977

FTE5T.7

s668,805

s862,25O

$662,646

53,4!s,402

Jul 14 - Dec 14

5r,22s,702

53,4t9,402
FTE 51.7

I Eng

I Total

r Ops/Maint

I Const/Maint

r Admin

2t1t't9
t\f¡nancehrsrptwl9 2nd qtr labor cost report\all hrs $ chart.xls

Total Labor Cost

NMWD Fiscal Year through December
S-Year Comparison

S4,5oo,ooo

s4,000,000

s3,500,000

S3,ooo,ooo

S2,5oo,ooo

S2,ooo,ooo

Sr,soo,ooo

s1,000,000

s500,000

so

r Ops/Maint r Const/Maint r Admin r Eng I Total

ATTACHMENT A



Jul 18 - Dec 18

S58,404

541,754

s28,356

St2B,stfi

5!28,5L4

JultT - Dec 17

s61,933

53g,gg+

s6,801

s108,71-8

S108,718

Jul 16 - Dec 16

S45,958

527,547

s8,633

s82,138

s82,138

Jul 15 - Dec 15

S5o,56o

547,979

ito,074
Ss+

Si-08,697

s108,697

Jul 14 - Dec 14

54i.,993

547,54].

s8,268

54,353

Si.02,155

s102,155

r Ops/Maint

r const/Maint

r Admin

I Eng

I Total

2t1il19
t\f¡nance\hrsrptwl 9 2nd qtr labor cost report\ot $ chart

Overtime Cost

NMWD Fiscal Year through December
S-Year Com rison

S14o,ooo

S120,ooo

s100,000

sSo,ooo

s60,oo0

s40,000

S2o,ooo

So

r ops/Maint r const/Maint I Admin I Eng r Total

ATTACHMENT B



s9,843

522,671

Sqt,ezt

s15,590

s89,931

Jul 18 - Dec 18

s89,931

Srg,sso

5L4,460

s61,392

Jul t7 - Dec t7

s5,764

s21,318

s6].,392

s85,982

Jul 16 - Dec 16

512,298

s52,637

512,976

Sa,ozr

$85,982

SL1,oi.o

524,875

s93,282

Jul 15 - Dec 15

Sgr,+ro

52s,982

593,282

S!4,3tt
Stg,zst

s20,104

soo,gog

Jul 14 - Dec 14

S7,136

Soo,goe

r Const/Maint

r Admin

I Eng

r Total

r ops/Maint

t:Vìnance\hßrpt\FY1 9 2nd qtrlâbor cost rePort\temP I chart-xls

2t1t19
Temporary EmploYee Cost

NMWD Fiscal Year through December

5-Year ComParison
s100,000

s90,000

sSo,ooo

s70,0oo

s6o,ooo

s50,000

s40,000

S3o,ooo

s20,000

Slo,ooo

so

r ops/Maint I const/Ma¡nt r Admin r Eng I Total

ATTACHMENT C
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Total Labor Cost vs. Budget

t:\f¡nance\hrsrpt\labor æst compared to budget fy l 8\sâlary chart.xls

NMWD Fiscal Year through September

S+,soo,ooo

s4,000,000

s3,5oo,oo0

S3,ooo,ooo

S2,5oo,ooo

s2,000,000

S1,5oo,ooo

s1,000,000

s5o0,ooo

So

Administration

S4,136,000

53,8t8,257I

5]-,4t4,t79 51,484,000

s988,229
S1,093,ooo

S8so,ooo

5792,L80 s709,000
s623,669

r Labor Cost Thru !2/3U78

t Labor Budget rhru t2/31118

Constr/Maint Engineering Ops/Maint Total

ATTACHMENT D



MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

February 1,2019

Subj: lncrease in Directors' Compensation
t:\ac\word\directors\comp incr 201 Ldocx

RECOMMENDED AGTION: None - lnformation Only

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $1,750 Annually

ln accordance with Ordinance No. 27 per|aining to Director's Compensation, said

compensation amount shall be escalated annually on each January 1st based upon the change

in the San Francisco Bay Area Consumer Price lndex forthe prior 12 month period, but by no

greater than 5% per year, pursuant to California Water Code section 20200 et seq. The change

in the SF Bay Area CPI in2018 was 4.5%. Therefore, effective January 1,2019, each director

shall receive compensation of two hundred and thirty five dollars ($2aS¡ per day (t) for each

day's attendance at meetings of the Board, or for each day's service rendered as a director with

prior approval of the Board.

Director's compensation for the five-member Board is budgeted at $39,000 annually,

which amount includes payroll overheads. A 4.5o/o increase will add approximately $1,750 in

cost to the District annually.

(1) Note: This is a maximum daily limit. If a director attends two meetings in one day the

compensation is capped at reimbursement for only one meeting.

,+"{,



To:

From

Subj:

ñ$

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Nancy Williamson, Sr. Accountant

February 1,2019

Self-lnsured Workers' Comp - 2nd Quarter Status Report
t:\ac\word\personnel\wc\self ¡ns status 1 21 8.docx

RECOMMENDED AGTION: None

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Gumulative Savings of $546,277

The District returned to self-insuring its workers compensation liability effective July 1,

2011, after the low-cost proposal for first-dollar workers' compensation coverage increased 20o/o

over the prior year, to $159,331 . The avoided-cost since returning to self-insurance is calculated

at $417 ,768. When the Reserve for Future Medical (which is the estimated cost to fully resolve

open claims) is added, the total cash outlay avoided to date, including interest earned on the

cost avoided, is $546,277. This cash is set-aside in a reserve for future claims.

Through the 2nd quarter of FY19, the District incurred three claims. Due to the reduction

in cost of policy premiums and decreased savings margin the benefits of self-insuring will be

evaluated and reconsidered for FY20. Attached are charts showing a 1O-year history of annual

claims cost (average $60,000 per year) and 1O-year history of claims frequency (average 5

claims per year).

FY12
through

FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 Cumulative
Premium Avoided

Self-lnsurance Cost
Medical/lndemnity

Third-Party Admi nistration
Excess lnsurance Premiums

Legal/Miscellaneous
Net Cost Avoided

Reserve for Future Medical

Total Cash Outlay Avoided
lnterest Earned on Cash

Outlay Avoided

Cash Savings

-$fFs7"526-$191,000' 9109,2603 $s1,3764 $1,409,162

(182,867)
(60,000)

(247,754)

$542,314
0

(272,416)
(12,000)
(58,638)

(15,533)
(12,000)
(62,358)

12,591
11,389

(1,722)
(6,000)

(25,027)

16,019
2,800

(472,539)
(90,000)

(393,777)
35 078

$417,768
89,178

1

($153,156)
74,989

$542,314

11,453

($78,167)

9,124

$23,980

9,710

$18,819

9,044

$506,946

39,331

$553,767 ($69,043) $33,690 $27,863 $546,277

Proposed annualpremium of $159,331 (FY12), $170,574 (FY13), $311,764 (FY14), $203,722 (FY15) and $212,135 (FY16)
2 

Alli"d World Assurance was the low cost proposal with an annual premium of $'191 ,000.
3 

Zenith lnsurance Company was the low cost proposal with an annual premium of $109,260.
4 

Zenith lnsurance Company was the low cost proposal with an annual premium of $102,752.
5 E*."r. lnsurance Protects the District against Catastrophic Loss Exceeding $1,000,000 per claim
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January 9,2019

Drew Mclntyre, Executive Director &
The Board of Directors
North Marin Water District
PO Box 146

Novato, CA94948-0146

SENT BY EMAIL AND MAIL

On or about December 11 a notice was placed on our door indicating that our water use

had been high and that there was a possible leak. Shortly thereafter we received a notice

thatSI474.37 was to be automaÍicalIy withdrawn from our checking account to pay the

amount due.

By way of this letter, I am providing current contact information for our account and I am

withdrawing permission for you to make automatic payments from our checking account

to pay amounts due. Future invoices should be mailed to us. We will pay by check.

2022204
Robert Volpert
22Portola, Point Reyes Station
Box l l24,Point Reyes Station, CA94956
bobvolpert(a),gma i I . com
1 -4 1 5-663-8300
l -415 -l -208-756-8 1 1 6 (Office)
I-415-728-5837 (Cell)

I am appalled that a public agency would make an automatic withdrawl of this magnitude

without calling the account holder. The impact on a family with a mortgage. tuition costs,

medical expenses and other obligations could be devastating. I understaud that all the

Boald Members are probably wealthy but not everyone in Marin enjoys that status. How

dare an agency endanger a f'amily because of a water leak?

As a follow-up, we replaced a water heater that MAY have had a mitror leak. We also

checked and replaced interior toilet components. We can find no leaks. A Chris
Rodriquez inspected our property and meter on Friday, January 4. He initially found

nothing wrong but then inforrned ne that our PRV valrre needed replacing. We are

attempting to veri$ this and find a plumbel to do the work. If tlie need for a replacement

valve is confirmed, we will take care of it but that work can not be done until early

February.

Your lack of care and concern for your long-time customers is clisgraceful.

RECEIVED
Bob V

JÀN 1 4 2019

Account Number:
Name:
House Address:
NEW Mailing Address
eMail Address:
Telephone numbers:

cc: Marin County Board of Supervisors

North Marin Water District
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County honing Stafford Lake plan

NOVATO

By Adrian Rodriguez

arodri quez@.marinii. com @adrianrrodri on
Twitter

Marin County has made piecemeal improvements
to Stafford Lake Park over the years, and now
officials are ramping up efforts to complete a

master plan guiding future development of the
park.

"We want to create a vision for our parks that
really serves the need of the communities that
love them," said Max Korten, director of Marin
County Parks.

The park, situated at the western edge of rural
Novato, boasts 139 acres open space with
offerings like fishing, picnicking, room for
special events for up to 500 people, hiking, disc
golf, a bike park and a recently added adventure
playground.

Parks officials launched the master plan process

for Stafford Lake in20l4, hiring RHAA, a Mill
Valley-based landscape architect and planning
firm, to produce the document and perform the
staterequired environmental report. To date, the
county has paid the firm about $250,000 for
work.

Page I of3

to achieve because the lake is a drinking water
reservolr

Stafford Lake Park in Novato includes 139acres

of open space with amenities such as disc golf, a
bike park and a new adventure playground.

DOUGLAS ZIMMERMAN - SPECIAL TO
MARIN INDEPENDENT JOURNAL

The draft initial study was open for public
commentthroughNov. 13, andnowparks staff is
wading through those comments in order to
complete the report.

"Part of the master plan process is hearing from
the neighbors and understanding what people are

interested in," Korten said.

To that end, the master plan focuses on nature-
based recreation as well as traditional picnic and

play. There are five categories for improvements:
general park improvements; the Event Meadow;

http:llmarinindependentjournal.ca.newsmemory.com/ee l_nrrnm/-default-bb-include infra... 1ll5l20l9
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the picnic playground; the Back Meadow; and

miscellaneous amenities.

One of the popular wishlist items is a swimming
lagoon in the Back Meadow at the center of the

park, south of the bike park, said I(orten. He said

it is a big-ticket project that might be difficult

Page2 of 3

Other proposed projects include new bike and

pedestrian paths; a new gatehouse and events

center for the Event Meadow; a new picnic area

playground; and updated individual and group

picnic areas. There is also a vision for a
bouldering course, nature play pods and a BMX
track with a loop trail to be added to the Back
Meadow.

Tara Mclntire, a parks department senior
landscape architect, said that so far improvements
have created a new draw, especially the popular
bike park, which cost just over fì1 million and

opened in 2015.

"The bike park has really opened up the park as a

whole to different types of users," she said.

"Families ale now coming there, bringing their
kids to ride the track - we didn't know how
popular the purnp track was for adults and teens,

so it's really changed Stafford in a positive way'"

The bike park has seen a few additions, including
new trails and wood features in20l7. This past

sumlner a new bridge was added linking trails,
Mclntire said.

Other recently completed projects include the

$245,500 upgraded picnic area mow bands,

pathways and curbing. The county has also spent

$16,500 on drinking fountains and

infrastructure improvements; $ 1 7,200 for
hammocks; $8,250 on Adirondack chairs and

$55,500 to replace the playground, among other
projects.

Projects are paid for with Measure A funds.

Approved by countywide voters in20l2, Measure

A is a quarter-cent sales tax funds projects and

programs that benefit parks, open space and

agricultural lands across Marin. Fifty{wo percent

goes to Marin County Parks and Open Space.

Information is available at bit.lv/2FrxaRt.

http://rnarininclependentjournal.ca.newsmelnory.cotn/eel-nmum/-default-bb-include-infra... 111512019
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Recent community proposals for Stafford Lake
Park in Novato include a swimming lagoon and a

bouldering course.

FRANKIE FROST - MARIN INDEPENDENT
JOURNAL

copyright Terms and Terms of use. Please review new arbitration language here.
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Reservoirs in 'good shape'

THE COUNTY

with heavy rain on horizon

Marin water supply improving as wet season

replenishes basins

By Will Houston

w hous t o n@ mar inii. c om @Will -$ -Houst 
on on

Twitter

An approaching storm this week is expected to

pick up the slack for Bay Area rainfall.
Meanwhile, local reservoirs are also showing

signs of improvement following the meager

rainfall from the last water year.

While Tuesday is only expected to bring light rain
to the North Bay, meteorologists have their
attention focused on a Wednesday storm front
that could bring as much as 6 inches of rain to
Mount Tamalpais.

"Basically, we'rs going to get a lot of rain to fall
in a short amount of time," National Weather

Service Bay Area meteorologist Ryan Walbrun
said.

The storm is expected to cause rapid rises in local
waterways and will carry winds strong enough to

potentially bring down trees, branches and cause

power outages, Walbrun said.

While the storm might cause damage, it is also a

benefit for wildlife like endangered coho salmon

on Lagunitas Creek, which are spawning and use

the strong flows to push farther upstream.

Page 1 of3

Water falls down a spillway as it overflows from
Lake Lagunitas to Bon Tempe Lake near Fairfax
on Monday. More than2l inches of rain have
fallen at the lake since Oct. 1.

PHOTOS BY ALAN DEP - MARIN
INDEPENDENT JOURNAL

A crew from the Conservation Corps North Bay
works on a trail Monday near the Lake Lagunitas

spillway.

The rain is expected to provide a nice boost to the 'lVater year so far
Marin Municipal Water District's seven

http7lmaÅnindependentjournal.ca.newsmemory.com/ee/-nmum/-default-bb include infra... 1ll5l20l9
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reservoirs. 
'Water supply for all seven reservoirs is While the National'Weather Service's gauge at

ah'eady at 80 percent of full capacity, with the the Marin County Civic Center in San Rafael is

district's smallest reservoirs at Lake Lagunitas down due to ongoing construction, rainfall
and Phoenix Lalce spilling over as of Monday recordings in nearby communities show a

morning. promising start as the stolm season rolls in.

The district's supply is nearly 104 percent of its
historical average for this time in the water year,

which begins on Oct. 1.

While last year at this time only 16.48 inches

were recorded at Lake Lagunitas since the start of
the watel year, this year 2I.24 inches have been

recorded, according to district spokeswoman
Emma Detwiler.

"While we are in good shape so far, we always
want to keep in mind that our reservoirs hold only
a two-year supply of water," Detwiler said. "The
watel we save today is the water that will help us

through our next dry year. Ifyou have an

irrigation system, now is the time to turn it off for
the season."

The North Marin Water District's reservoir at

Stafford Lake, which makes up a quarter of its
water supply, was at 41 percent of its 4,400 acre-

foot capacity.

Downtown San Francisco recorded aboutT2
percent of its normal rainfall since the star"t of the
water year, or about 7.75 inches of the normal
10.75 inches. Santa Rosa has received about 81

percent of normal rainfall, having recorded 14.14

inches of its normal ll .5 inches, according to
Walbrun.

"I would think by the end of the week a lot of the

climate sites will be running about 100 percent of
normal for year-to-date rainfall," Walbrun said.

San Rafael's average rainfall for the entire water
year is about 34.35 inches.

The majority of Marin County and the state was

in a moderate drought as of Jan. 8, which is the
second to lowest drought classification on the

U.S. Drought Monitor. Vy'ater supplies at many of
the state's larger reservoirs were at or below their
historical levels for this time in the water year,

according to state data.

Drew Mclntyle, the district's general manager,

said it typically takes about 7 inches of rain to
saturate the ground and provide runoffit can

capture and store. About 1 1.9 inches of rain were
recorded from Oct. 1 through Jan. 13.

"'We're well-positioned now to capture as much
of the rainfall that we get in runoffto help fill the
reservoil'," Mclntyre said.

Rainfall at Stafford Lake is also improved from
last year. About 8.7 inches were recorded from
October through December as opposed to 3.9

inches during the same time period last year,

according to Mc-Intyre. This year's rainfall is still
below the average of about 10.3 inches, however.

Both local water districts also purchase varying
amounts of their supply from the Sonoma County
Water Agency. The agency's two main reservoirs
at Lake Sonoma and Lake Mendocino were at 55
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percent and 54 percent capacity respectively as of Water overflows from Lake Lagunitas, one of the

Monday morning, according to California Marin Municipal Vy'ater District's seven

Department of Water Resources data. resel'Voits, on Monday.

ALAN DEP - MARIN INDE,PENDENT
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City undergoing some changes in administration

NOVATO

By \üilt Houston

w hous ton@ mariniÌ. c om @Will _$,flous ton on
Twitter

Novato City Hall will have some new faces in its
administration following recent staff changes.

Vicki Parker will start as the city's new
community development director on Jan. 28
following the retirement of Bob Brown last week.
Parker, 58, most recently served in the same
position for the city of Cotati and has previous
work experience in other local governments in
Southem California, according to a city news
release. Parker also worked for a private,
international cónsulting firm, Stantec Consulting,
which is headquartered in Alberta, Canada.

Page I of2

Mean while, Assistant City Manager Peggy Flynn
is set to bec ome city manager for the city of
Petaluma where she is also a resident. The
Petaluma City Council is set to vote on Jan. 28 on
whether to appoint Flynn to the position.

Flynn would be paid $210,000 ayear if
appointed, higher than her current salary of
$170,000. Having worked forNovato since2012,
Flynn said she is proud of the work that the city
has accomplished with the community.

ooAs a Petaluma resident, I am excited and
grateful for this opportunity to serve my
community," Flynn said in a statement. "To work
with our experienced, professional, and dedicated
staff and council to serve

Parker will be paid a salary of $169,872 ayear,
according to the city.

"Community planning is multi-faceted and needs

a diverse set of voices in order to develop public
policy that achieves the goals of those voices,"
Parker said in a statement. "I look forward to
assisting the Novato community achieve its
ambitions both large and small."

Parker

Parker comes at a time when the city is working
to craft commercial cannabis regulations, conduct
a potential review of the city's permitting
processes and focus on developing the downtown
area.

Flynn

Parker replaces five-year director Brown who
retired from the position last week. A reception is
planned for 5 p.m. Jan.29 at City Hall, 901

Sherman Ave.

City Manager Regan Candelario said Parker's
experience in public and private sectors as well as

her knowledge of regional issues and her
collaborative nature makes her a "perfect fit."
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our residents and businesses is a dream come
true. I am deeply committed to ensuring a

thriving Petaluma for generations to come."

Flynn's last day with Novato is set for Feb. 7 and
will start her new position on Feb. 25 if
appointed.

"Peggy has been an incredible asset to Novato,"
Novato Mayor Eric Lucan said in a statement.
"She is an exceptionally

experienced manager who has transformed the
way we engage our community and our staff,
which has ultimately improved our decision-
making process. Her impact is far-reaching. We
will greatly miss her."

In addition to finding Flynn's replacement,
Novato is currently in the hiring process for its
human resources director and finance director
positions.
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PG&E halts process to sell Potter Valley Project

MARIN \ilATER SUPPLIES

By rilill Houston

w houst on@mar inii . c om @Wil I _$ _Houst on on
Twitter

Pacific Gas and Electric Co. announced Friday it
will no longer relicense and sell its Potter Valley
Proj ect hydroelectric power plant.

This decision comes as various stakeholders were
considering ways to address longstanding issues

of water supply and impacts to the environment
caused by the Mendocino County-based power
complex's construction 110 years ago.

Marin County water officials have been tracking
this relicensing process from afar due to potential
impacts to their water supplies. 

'Water diverted by
the power facility feeds into the Russian River
and affects water supplies across four counties,
including Marin. The Russian River supplies
about 75 percent of North Marin Water District's
water supply and about 25 percent of the Marin
Municipal'Water District' s.

PG& E stated in a news release Friday that it
submitted a letter to the dam relicensing
authority, the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission or FERC, notiffing it of its
withdrawal. The utility said it will also

"expeditiously" cease its ongoing auction process

for the power project, which began last year and

was accepting initial proposals.

Page I of2

in lawsuits and liabilities from wildfires caused

by its equipment. It is not immediately clear how
that process will affect the future steps for the
Potter Valley Project, but stakeholders are eyeing
the announcement as an opportunity.

Congressman Jared Huffman had convened a
stakeholders working group in20I7 to plan for
what he sees as a "two-basin solution" in which
the environmental impacts on the Eel River and

the water supply issues in the Potter Valley and

Russian River watershed are addressed.

Environmental and fishing stakeholders have

striven to remove one of the project's dams, Scott
Dam, which has cut off hundreds of miles of
historic fish spawning habitat for the rivers now
threatened or endangered salmon species. The
Friends of the Eel River environmental group

states PG& E already faced significant costs to
improve the structural integrity and address fish
passage issues with the dam as part of the
relicensing process. The group is advocating for
the removal of Scott Dam at the very least.

"PG& E may be facing financial reality here, but
they have yet to come clean either about the
potentially disastrous safety situation at Scott
Dam, or about the ecological impacts of the dam
on Eel River salmon, steelhead, and lamprey,"
said David Keller, the group's Bay Area director.
Ukiah Daily Journal reporter Justine Frederiksen
contributed to this report.

PG& E said it anticipates FERC will now "initiate
its Orphan Project process," meaning that
interested parties can submit an application for a
new project license.

"We believe this path will allow interested parties
more time to prepare for the acquisition of the
project, and the ability to submit a License
Application on their own terms rather than
assuming PG& E's current application," PG& E
stated. "If the Orphan process does not result in Scott Dam in Potter Valley in20l4.
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the issuance of a new Project License, it is
expected FERC will order PG& E to prepare and
submit a Surrender Application and
Decommissioning Plan."

Saturday, 01 12612019 Pag.AO4

In the meantime, PG& E states it will continue to
operate the facility "until a new license is issued
or the project is decommissioned."

The announcement also comes after PG& E
announced earlier this month its intention to file
for bankruptcy as it faces billions of dollars

Copyright 'l'erms ancl Telms of Use. Please t'eview new albitration language het'e.
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Gavin Newsom budget
calls for drinking water tax
to help poor communities
BY DALE KASLER,

RYAN SABALOW, AND

ALEXEI KOSEFF

Tackling what promises to be a controversial issue, Gov. Gavin Newsom proposed

a tax on drinking water Thursday to help disadvantaged communities clean up

contaminated water systems.

Newsom's plan for a "safe and affordable drinking water fund," included in the

new governor's first budget proposal, attempts to revive an idea that died in the
Legislature last year.

A McClatchy investigation last year showed that at least 36o,ooo Californians
rely on water that does not meet state standards for toxins. McClatchy also found
that 6 million Californians have water providers that have violated state

standards at some point since 2oL2.

"That is a disgrace," Newsom told reporters at a budget press conference, citing a
figure of r million people without access to safe drinking water.

Newsom said he also wants to earmark $zS million for safe drinking water, to
jump-start the effort. His proposal was immediately hailed by safe drinking water
advocates.

"These are our fellow Californians, and it's past time to get this crisis resolved,"

said Jonathan Nelson, policy director at a nonprofit advocacy group, the
Community Water Center.
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But Jon Coupal of the Howard Jarvis Taxpayer Association said he thinks
improvements for water systems shouldn't be addressed with a new tax when the

state is sitting on a $r¿.8 billion budget surplus.

Coupal called Newsom's proposal an example "of California's knee-jerk reaction

to default to a new tax whenever there's a new problem."

Details of Newsom's plan weren't immediately available, and state Sen. Bill
Monning, D-Carmel, who spearheaded the tax proposal last year, said it could

take several weeks to figure out the specifics.

Last year's proposal would have taxed residential customers 95 cents a month, to
raise about $rro million a year. Most of the Californians with unsafe drinking
water resources live in the Southern San Joaquin Valley and the Mojave Desert,

McClatchy found.

Dairy producers and feedlot operators would have contributed about $3o million
in fees, for a total annual fund of $r4o million. The dairy industry largely

supported the bill, which provided some relief from disciplinary action as long as

dairies followed "best practices" to limit toxins such as nitrate from cattle manure

from leaching into drinking water.

"We're excited," said Anja Raudabaugh, CEO of Western llnited Dairymen. "\Me

appreciate Gov. Newsom's commitment to providing long-term solutions to

drinking water in our communities, and we're looking forward to providing a
solution that includes certainty for our dairy producers."

The Legislature scrapped the idea after protests from some segments of the

agricultural community and the Association of California Water Agencies, which
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represents more than 4oo water districts. It became clear that the proposal would
have trouble it was proving increasingly difficult to secure the two-thirds super-
majority needed to impose a new tax. Former Gov. Jerry Brown tried to resurrect
the program last fall as a voluntary tax, but that died in the Legislature as well.

Cindy Tuck, a deputy executive director at the water agency association, said her
group still has major concerns about the proposal.

"We think the problem can be solved without a tax," she said.

Democrats' success in the November elections means the tax could have a better
chance of passing this year. Democrats now hold super-majorities in both houses

of the Legislature, unlike last year.

But it's no sure thing the proposed tax will make it through the Legislature even

with Democrats firmly in charge. In November, California voters rejected the

$B.g billion Proposition 3 water bond that promised $Soo million to clean up
drinking water.

And within hours of lrTewsom's announcement, some Democrats were expressing
anxiety about a new tax.

Assemblyman Phil Ting, a San Francisco Democrat, said it would be a "very

tough lift" in the Legislature to tax all Californians, most of whom have clean
drinking water, to pay to fix pollution in a "very specific area."

"It really comes down to how much time he and his staff are going to put toward
it," Ting said. "One of Gov. Brown's strengths was really having a very narrow list
of things to work on and get done, and because of that, he was able to get them
done."
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